Public Document Pack

Agenda for Strategic Planning Committee
Tuesday, 5th March, 2024, 10.00 am

. . . District Council
Members of Strategic Planning Committee

Councillors: B Bailey, J Bailey, K Blakey, B Collins, O Davey East Devon District Council
(Chair), P Fernley, C Fitzgerald, M Hartnell, P Hayward, M Howe Blackdown House
(Vice-Chair), B Ingham, D Ledger, Y Levine, T Olive and H Parr Border Road
Heathpark Industrial Estate

Honiton

Venue: Council Chamber, Blackdown House, Honiton EX14 1EJ
DX 48808 HONITON

Contact: Wendy Harris; Tel: 01404 515616
01395 517542; email wharris@eastdevon.gov.uk www.eastdevon.gov.uk

(or group number 01395 517546)
Friday, 23 February 2024; Reissued Monday, 26 February 2024
Reissued Wednesday, 28 February 2024

This meeting is being recorded for subsequent publication on the Council’'s website and will
be streamed live to the East Devon District Council Youtube Channel.

1 Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 3 - 13)

N

Apologies
3 Declarations of interest

Guidance is available online to Councillors and co-opted members on making
declarations of interest

4 Public speaking
Information on public speaking is available online

5 Matters of urgency
Information on matters of urgency is available online

6 Confidential/lexempt item(s)

To agree any items to be dealt with after the public (including the Press) have
been excluded. There are no items which officers recommend should be dealt
with in this way.

7 Local Plan Timetable Update Report (Pages 14 - 22)
This report advises on an update on work on local plan making and summarises

progress on key work streams.

8 Consultation on Housing Sites (Pages 23 - 65)

page 1


https://www.youtube.com/@eastdevoncouncil1/streams
http://eastdevon.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/councillor-conduct/councillor-reminder-for-declaring-interests/
https://eastdevon.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/public-speaking/have-your-say-at-meetings/all-other-public-meetings/#article-content
https://eastdevon.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/matters-of-urgency/

9 Topic Paper relating to Town Centres, Retail and Sequential Test in the new
Local Plan (Pages 66 - 147)

Members are asked to consider this topic paper which explains the proposed
approach to be taken and establishing up to date Town Centre Area Boundaries
and Primary Shopping Area Boundaries.

10 EastDevon Playing Pitch Strategy (Pages 148 - 166)

This report provides details of work to date on production of the Playing Pitch
Strategy for East Devon.

Under the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014, any members of the
public are now allowed to take photographs, film and audio record the proceedings and
report on all public meetings (including on social media). No prior notification is needed but
itwould be helpful if you could let the democratic services team know you plan to film or
record so that any necessary arrangements can be made to provide reasonable facilities for
you to report on meetings. This permission does not extend to private meetings or parts of
meetings which are not open to the public. You should take all recording and photography
equipment with you if a public meeting moves into a session which is not open to the public.

If you are recording the meeting, you are asked to act in a reasonable manner and not
disrupt the conduct of meetings for example by using intrusive lighting, flash photography or
asking people to repeat statements for the benefit of the recording. You may not make an
oral commentary during the meeting. The Chair has the power to control public recording
and/or reporting so it does not disrupt the meeting.

Members of the public exercising their right to speak during Public Speakingwill be
recorded.

Decision making and equalities

Fora copy ofthis agendain large print, please contactthe Democratic
Services Teamon 01395517546

page 2


http://new.eastdevon.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/committees-and-meetings/decision-making-and-equalities-duties/

Agenda Item 1
EAST DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL

Minutes of the meeting of Strategic Planning Committee held at Council
Chamber, Blackdown House, Honiton on 13 February 2024

Attendance list at end of document

The meeting started at 10.00 am and ended at 2.13 pm. The meeting was adjourned at 12.15
pm and reconvened at 12. 30pm and adjourned for lunch at 12.55 pm and reconvened at 1.32
pm.

60  Minutes of the previous meeting

The minutes of the Strategic Planning Committee held on 9 January 2024 were
confirmed as a true record.

The Assistant Director — Planning Strategy and Development Management updated
Members on Minute 55; Resolution 3 from the meeting held on 9 January 2024 advising
that the pending technical guidance from the Department of Levelling Up, Housing and
Communities had now been received which confirmed the council was only required to
demonstrate a four-year housing land supply instead of the five-year which meant that
the council no longer needed to apply the tilted balance when considering planning
applications.

61 Declarations of interest

Minute 65. Designation of Green Wedges in the new Local Plan.
All Members of the Strategic Planning Committee advised receiving various lobbying
communication on this item.

Minute 65. Designation of Green Wedges in the new Local Plan.
Councillor Dan Ledger, Affects Non-registerable Interest, Owns property in Seaton
directly opposite to a Green Wedge.

Minute 65. Designation of Green Wedges in the new Local Plan.
Councillor Mike Howe, Affects Non-registerable Interest, Bishops Clyst Parish Councillor.

Minute 68. Cranbrook Town Centre Masterplan.
Councillor Kevin Blakey, Affects Non-registerable Interest, Cranbrook Town Councillor
and a resident of Cranbrook.

Non-Committee Members
Minute 65. Designation of Green Wedges in the new Local Plan.
Councillor Paul Arnott, Affects Non-registerable Interest, Colyton Parish Councillor.

Minute 65. Designation of Green Wedges in the new Local Plan.
Councillor Peter Faithfull, Affects Non-registerable Interest, Ottery St Mary Town
Councillor.

Minute 65. Designation of Green Wedges in the new Local Plan.
Councillor lan Barlow, Affects Non-registerable Interest, Sidmouth Town Councillor.

Minute 65. Designation of Green Wedges in the new Local Plan.
Councillor Geoff Jung advised receiving various lobbying communication on this item.
page 3



62

Strategic Planning Committee 13 February 2024

Minute 68. Cranbrook Town Centre Masterplan.
Councillor Kim Bloxham, Affects Non-registerable Interest, Cranbrook Town Councillor
and a resident of Cranbrook.

Public speaking

Rachel Creasy, a resident of Budleigh Salterton spoke on the Designation of Green
Wedges in the new Local Plan report, who along with local residents strongly objected to
the removal of the Green Wedge for Area 3 and to any consequential development.

Concerns were raised that if the Green Wedge was removed from the west side of
Budleigh Salterton and a high density development was positioned close by it would
have an overbearing and intrusive effect on the area. In the assessment it was
suggested that Site A would be obscured from public view — this was misleading as
areas 3 and 5 are elevated and any development would be visible.

Areas 1, 3 and 4 would close the separation of the Green Wedge between Budleigh
Salterton and Knowle and the proposed reduction would not be sufficient, Site A would
generate additional traffic problems to an already bottleneck single land entry point.

An increase in housing would also put a strain on oversubscribed local facilities including
the school, GP Practice and public transport.

The following statement on minute 65 — Designation of Green Wedges in the new Local
Plan was read out on behalf of Carole Hooper.

| was one of the many who raised concerns during the last consultation, dated January
2023, as the consultation referred to potential development of the prime agricultural land
that is behind our house in Knowle Rd — area 2 as per the Budleigh Salterton to Knowle
Green Wedge Assessment. | now understand that that the council proposes to reduce
the green wedges originally proposed even further, using the rationale that only a small
green wedge is required to maintain the gap between Budleigh Salterton and Knowle
village.

| consider the role of the green wedges to be much more than that of maintaining a
divide between Budleigh Salterton and Knowle village. Green wedges provide an extra
layer of protection against building development and help to maintain the landscape and
wildlife in the area. Any proposal to reduce the existing green wedges by such a
significant amount puts the land and its wildlife atrisk. | cannot help distrusting the
motives for reducing the green wedges so significantly.

My arguments against the proposal are:

Effectively the reduction of the green wedges between Budleigh Salterton and Knowle
village results in a very small portion of land remaining. Rather dramatically Budleigh
Salterton will become much closer to Knowle village — what is there to stop further
reduction of this gap on the basis that the gap is too small to be worth maintaining?

There appears to be no discussion or awareness of the value that Knowle Rd brings to
the AONB. By allowing such a development the beautiful rural nature of the road would
be destroyed .

The countryside along Knowle Rd is beautiful with ancient Devon banks and hedgerows
that support the local wildlife. On seveprgé tg)ﬁcasions | have seen polecats and stoats and



Strategic Planning Committee 13 February 2024

other creatures scurrying across the road from Eastto West, on their way to the area
around Knowle Brook (area 9 as per the Budleigh Salterton to Knowle Green Wedge
Assessment. Developing the land would result in the loss of this exceptional landscape
and all that it represents for our wildlife and to our community.

| am not the only person who thinks in this way. Knowle Rd is a walkers’ paradise.
Many people walk down the road every day, far exceeding the cars that use the road. It
feeds their souls, as it does mine. To lose the unique quality of this road would be like
losing a limb! It is a true social amenity and hundreds of Budleigh / Knowle residents
would feel its loss acutely.

Knowle Rd is too narrow as it is to allow cars to overtake one another. Without major
widening, the road would not be able to safely cope with the additional traffic resulting
from development of 4 and 6 of the Budleigh Salterton to Knowle Green Wedge
Assessment. Any development changing the road would represent a loss of the
wonderful environment that | have already tried to convey to you.

Finally any further erosion of the green wedges between Knowle Village and Budleigh
Salterton would represent pursuing the requirement to building new housing without
considering the value of what would be lost in so doing. This is equivalent to knowing
the cost of everything and the value of nothing.

The following statement was read out on behalf of Sylvia Meller.

Our green wedges are of massive importance not just for flora and fauna but also for us
living here. We need some green spaces for our wellbeing as well as for absorbing rain
water to avoid flooding. Reducing the area of green wedges and opening up the
possibility of being built on will have a huge impact on the whole ecosystem and people
living in the area.

| do understand the need for new housing, but we have a lot of derelict buildings as well
as brownsites which can be used for new building sites. One thing we do NOT need are
more expensive houses which the locals can't afford, without infrastructure - the current
problems we have with

South West Water show clearly that they are already overwhelmed with the existing
situation.

Please keep the green wedges intact and consider creating even more so not just our
but also next generations have a chance to live in a place worth living in and with
reduced risks of flooding.

The following statement was read out on behalf of Brian Webb.

Budleigh Salterton is within and forms an integral part of the East Devon AONB and
includes the River Otter nature reserve an area of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI).

| object to the Green Wedges being removed, reduced or moved, they are just one of the
Residents first lines of defence against the concreting over of our wonderful AONB
countryside and coastline.

| and many of the local Residents are committed to ensuring that the status quo of the
green wedges be maintained, that our environment is protected for the benefit of future
generations of both people and animals and that we avoid development that cannot be
supported by the existing infrastructure.

The following statement was read out on behalf of Kevin Bates.

page 5



Strategic Planning Committee 13 February 2024
| strongly object to any proposal to reduce the size/location of these important areas.

As well as providing a haven for local wildlife the existing green wedges provide for a
distinction, and general separation, between Knowle and Budleigh communities.
Although the communities are not 100% separated today If the green wedge was to be
reduced as proposed, then the two communities would clearly be almost joined, with no
separate identity and just a very small physical separation.

The proposed changes would presumably potentially enable future development which
would appear to be unsuitable for this area and would certainly not protect the character
of this part of the AONB, which is of course a nationally important landscape designation.
Within, and around, the existing wedge are Grade 1 agricultural land, areas prone to
flooding each year, rural lanes, views and an ancient lane.

The following statement was read out on behalf of Councillor Ray Steer-Kemp for
Bishops Clyst Parish Council.

Bishops Clyst Parish Council have recently been made aware of the fact that the
Strategic Planning Committee is proposing to reduce the present area of ‘Green Wedge
titled ‘East of Exeter and south of the A30’

The proposal is to reduce the ‘green wedge’ area with runs from south of Clyst St
George up the Clyst Valley to Sowton and the A30 to the north and replace it with just
the small area of flood plain between Clyst St Mary and the motorway. The existing area
of green wedge is an essential buffer between the east of the district and Exeter and
safeguards the River Clyst Regional Park.

At their meeting on 12 Feb the Parish Council expressed their strong objection to the
proposal and their wish that the present ‘green wedge’ remains as existing.

The following statement was read out on behalf of Councillor Mike Galloway for Bishops
Clyst Parish Council.

As the Parish Councillor for Sowton, | must on behalf of Sowton Village and Clyst St
Mary lodge a strong objection to the proposed alteration to the existing Green Wedge
shown on pages 47 & 48 in the Public Reports Pack.

The only reason for the alteration is to release the area of land designated Sowt 09 from
the existing Green Wedge and perhaps this should be looked at as a separate issue with
respect to Green Wedge.

Removal of the Green Wedge will remove the protection to Sowton and Clyst St Mary
and logic for the proposal should be revisited and any decision should involve the views
of the local population affected by the Emerging Local Plan.

Councillor lan Balow, spoke as a member of the public on the current planning strategy
and asked Members to consider whether the council can require officers to do the
following on all major planning application:

e To include at least one local ward member and one member of the Planning
Committee to attend any pre application meeting or discussions alongside
officers; and

e To no longer accept comments from consultees who support applications if the
comments clearly show they need to be challenged.

page 6



63

64

65

Strategic Planning Committee 13 February 2024

Councillor Geoff Jung speaking as Portfolio Holder for Coast, Countryside and
Environment raised concerns about how the council was proposing to reduce over 70%
of Green Wedges and drew Members attention to the fourth bullet point of the action plan
for the Climate Change Strategy ‘Protecting and enhancing the natural environment'.
Residents see Green Wedges as the ‘green lungs’ of our wildlife areas and by reducing
the Green Wedges by this magnitude will send out the wrong message that this council
does not care about environment protection. Our countryside is our number one asset.

Councillor Jung advised Members there was a vital need to produce a Green
Infrastructure Strategy that could sit alongside the Local Plan as a Supplementary
Planning Document but was advised this could not be undertaken due to resourcing
iIssues and questioned how to tackle the reduction of our Green Wedges.

Matters of urgency

There were no matters of urgency.

Confidential/lexempt item(s)

There were no confidential or exempt items.

Designation of Green Wedges in the new Local Plan

The Committee considered the Assistant Director — Planning Strategy and Development
Management’s report which sought endorsement of the proposed methodology for
defining Green Wedges that Members agreed in principle at the meeting on 3 October
2023.

A summary of the proposed changes, the methodology and resulting full assessment
were detailed in the appended appendices where in most cases it was proposed to
reduce the size of the current Green Wedges. The Assistant Director — Planning
Strategy and Development Management advised that although many of the Green
Wedges had been carried over from previous Local Plans this cannot be relied upon in
the new Local Plan as the constraints of the district will make it increasingly difficult to
find suitable sites for development and there is significant risk of challenge at
examination if they are carried over again. It is important to have clear robust evidence
that will identify areas designated as Green Wedges and the need to show that land is
not being protected simply for the sake of it and to show there is a real purpose for the
Green Wedges.

Strategy 8 in the adopted Local Plan states ‘that within a Green Wedge development will
not be permitted if it would add to existing sporadic or isolated development or change
the individual identity of a settlement or could lead to or encourage coalescence’. This
wording leads to assessments being taken on a case by case basis to determine
whether the Green Wedge would be harmed. However, the proposed wording for the
Green Wedge policy in the new Local Plan would take away this uncertainty and would
prevent development within the Green Wedges unless there was an essential need that
could not be located elsewhere.

The Assistant Director — Planning Strategy and Development Management advised it
was important to remember that areas where Green Wedges were being proposed to be
removed would still be protected as open countryside and in some cases other

protections would apply such as Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty (now National
page 7



Strategic Planning Committee 13 February 2024

Landscapes) and flood zones. It was also advised that additional benefits of designation
such as for recreational purposes, landscape protection and habitat protection purposes
would be best dealt with by other policies and included in the new Local Plan and should
not be reasons for designating as a Green Wedge. These could be dealt with by a
Green Infrastructure Strategy or a Local Nature Recovery Plan.

Points raised by Members during discussion included:

e Green Wedges are needed to prevent urban spawl by keeping land permanently
open.

e The concerns raised by Members at the Strategic Planning Committee meeting on
3 October 2023 have not been implemented in this report.

e There is no mention of the assessment of Green Wedges already in
neighbourhood plans. Ottery St Mary Neighbourhood Plan specifically states their
Green Wedge which could not be removed.

e |t was suggested that the report did not provide Members with sufficient
information to truly make an informed decision.

The maps and images are incorrect and arrows are facing the wrong way.
The methodology does not take into account the loss of character and essence of

a place.

e Support was expressed that the green spaces of special interest would still be
protected.

e |t was questioned why Green Wedges were proposed to be removed in flood
areas.

e It was reported there would be a net loss of 75.7% of our current designated
Green Wedges with only one existing Green Wedge remaining the same.
Whimple would see a 47% net loss, Budleigh Salterton 70%, Exmouth and
Lympstone 84% and West Hill and Ottery St Mary 84%, Clyst St Mary at 99% and
the worst affected would be Poltimore which loses its protection entirely.

¢ Reference was made to the minutes of the meeting held on 3 October 2023 where
Members had raised concerns about the evidence criteria that focused heavily on
the visual impact on landscapes when in reality the impact would need to focus on
more than what can be seen. There is no wording at all in the current report that
reflects these comments.

Councillor Todd Olive advised that as the existing Green Wedges had been looked at by
external experts including the Planning Inspectorate on three separate occasions
including on adoption of the 1995 — 2011 Local Plan and at the adoption of the current
Local Plan 2013 — 2031 there is no reason to cut itto pieces and proposed the following
motions which were seconded by Councillor Dan Ledger as he believed the methodology
was flawed and so much more was needed to protect communities from coalescence.

1. That Strategic Planning Committee cannot agree that the draft Green Wedges as
presented are drawn in accordance with the intent of the Committee or with the
spirit of the proposed policy.

2. That the Assistant Director for Planning Strategy and Development Management, in
review of the proposed boundaries in light of he issues raised by Committee and
bring a revised proposal with relevant evidence back to Committee as soon as
possible for consideration prior to Regulation 18 consultation.

3. That the Assistant Director for Planning Strategy and Development work with the
Portfolio Holders for Strategic Planning and Coast, Country and Environment, as
well as relevant Assistant Directors,to scope the potential approach to a new
Countryside and Green Infrastructure Strategy and Supplementary Planning

page 8



Strategic Planning Committee 13 February 2024

Document and bring a proposal back to Strategic Planning Committee at the
appropriate time.

Further points raised included:

e The assessments have not been completed in an efficient and robust way and
they clearly have inconsistencies.

e There is a need for an electronic mapping system.

e |t was suggested that the Committee had been ambushed with the changes to the
Green Wedges and that they are important to protecting our countryside.

e The methodology does not address the aspirations of residents and its imperative
that the Green Wedges are kept.

e Support was expressed for the motion made by Councillor Olive as it reflected
Members views.

e Support was expressed for a workshop to focus on the wording of the Green
Wedge Policy and an invite should be sent to all Members.

e Section 144 of the NPPF suggests that this council qualifies for Green Belts.
There is a need to encompass Green Belts in larger developments.

In response to all the points raised the Assistant Director — Planning Strategy and
Development Management advised it was not officers’ intentions to blindside Members
and suggested that perhaps Members misunderstood the likely outcome of the
methodology which was agreed by Members. He acknowledged that the report needed
tidying up and reformatting but thought Members would prefer to input into the draft work
as soon as possible and that it was important they did in order to keep to the timetable.
He advised that officers could look at the methodology again but they would need a clear
steer from Members highlighting exactly where it was incorrect. The Assistant Director —
Planning Strategy and Development Management was happy for Members to attend a
workshop session which could include Planning Officers to go through individual areas.

In light of the comments received Councillor Todd Olive proposed the following revised
motions which was seconded by Councillor Dan Ledger.

1. That Strategic Planning Committee cannot agree that the draft Green Wedges as
presented are drawn in accordance with the intent of the Committee or with the
spirit of the proposed policy.

2. That the Assistant Director for Planning Strategy and Development Management in
consultant with the Chair and Vice Chair of Strategic Planning Committee, urgently
review the methodology, proposed policy wording and proposed boundaries in light
of the issues raised by Committee. With particular regard to accounting for non-
visual, intrinsic settlement separation and with input from Ward Members and bring
a revised proposal with relevant evidence to a workshop with all Committee
Members invited, with conclusions and recommendations brought back to
Committee as soon as possible for consideration prior to Regulation 18
consultation.

3. That the Assistant Director for Planning Strategy and Development Management
work with the Portfolio Holders for Strategic Planning and Coast, Country and
Environment, as well as relevant Assistant Directors, to scope the potential
approach to a new Countryside & Green Infrastructure and Supplementary
Planning Document and bring a proposal back to Strategic Planning Committee at
the appropriate time.

page 9



66

Strategic Planning Committee 13 February 2024

4. That a report be brought to Committee as soon as possible setting out the options
of exploring a Green Belt designation in the West End of the District.

The Assistant Director — Planning Strategy and Development Management sought
clarification from Members about what they wanted to achieve from the workshop.
Members advised the workshop should be to consider the methodology and that this
should be arranged as soon as possible. The Assistant Director — Planning Strategy and
Development Management advised the workshop would need to be before the next
Strategic Planning Committee meeting on 5 March 2024.

RESOLVED:

1. That Strategic Planning Committee cannot agree that the draft Green Wedges as
presented are drawn in accordance with the intent of the Committee or with the
spirit of the proposed policy.

2. That the Assistant Director for Planning Strategy and Development Management in
consultant with the Chair and Vice Chair of Strategic Planning Committee, urgently
review the methodology, proposed policy wording and proposed boundaries in light
of the issues raised by Committee. With particular regard to accounting for non-
visual, intrinsic settlement separation and with input from Ward Members and bring
a revised proposal with relevant evidence to a workshop with all Committee
Members invited, with conclusions and recommendations brought back to
Committee as soon as possible for consideration prior to Regulation 18
consultation.

3. That the Assistant Director for Planning Strategy and Development Management
work with the Portfolio Holders for Strategic Planning and Coast, Country and
Environment, as well as relevant Assistant Directors, to scope the potential
approach to a new Countryside & Green Infrastructure and Supplementary
Planning Document and bring a proposal back to Strategic Planning Committee at
the appropriate time.

4.  That a report be brought to Committee as soon as possible setting out the options
of exploring a Green Belt designation in the West End of the District.

Councillors Collins, Fitzgerald, Hartnell and Levine left the meeting.

Designated Neighbourhood Areas Housing Requirement (DNAHR)

The report before Committee updated Members on the findings from an engagement
webinar with town and parish councils and neighbourhood plans groups on their
responsibilities for land allocations with regard to the Designated Neighbourhood Area
Housing Requirement. Members noted that an online survey had also taken place with
43 parish councils responding summarised at paragraph 5.14. There was a mixed
response seeing only 9 parish councils indicated they were likely to make housing
allocations.

The Assistant Director — Planning Strategy and Development Management outlined the
two preferred options to help keep the method options simple and straightforward which
were set out in paragraphs 7.12 to 7.20.

Option 1 — All housing supply forecast for the period 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2040
excluding an allowance for future windfalls (recommended as the preferred option).

page 10



67

Strategic Planning Committee 13 February 2024

Option 2 — All housing supply forecast for the period 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2040
including an allowance for future windfalls (recommended as the rejected option).

The preferred option would replicate the current approach which would give flexibility to
communities on whether they want to see growth.

It is proposed that the consultation would include a straightforward summary document
detailing the proposed two main options which would include a summary table giving
figures for each area and a technical report which would include all options identified and
how the district windfall allowance could be apportioned to Designated Neighbourhood
Areas.

Questions raised by Members included:

e Clarification was sought on housing allocation numbers if a town or parish council
put forward suggested ideas about additional housing and whether this would be
added to their housing allocation numbers. In response the Assistant Director —
Planning Strategy and Development Management advised additional housing
allocation suggestions would be classed as extra. It was explained that it was
difficult to account for them any other way as some communities did not want to
see growth and some did and yet the Local Plan needs to take a consistent
approach notwithstanding this.

e Clarification sought on whether the Regulation 18 consultation would include both
the including and excluding windfall sites options. In response the Assistant
Director — Planning Strategy and Development Management confirmed these
were the two preferred options but the other options would be detailed in the
evidence that itis behind the consultation and could also be commented on.

RESOLVED:

1. That the updated information available from the early engagement with parish
councils and neighbourhood plan groups to inform consultation on Designated
Neighbourhood Area Housing Requirements further to the report on this matter
presented to Members in March 2023 be noted.

2. Members agreed that the preferred approach for calculating Designated
Neighbourhood Area Housing Requirements for consultation purposes should be
based on the housing supply forecast for the period 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2040
excluding an allowance for windfalls.

3. That the proposed approach to Regulation 18 stage consultation on the method
selection for calculating Designated Neighbourhood Area Housing Requirements
set out in the report be agreed in principle, subject to a technical paper for the
consultation including the housing requirement figures for each designated
neighbourhood area being agreed by Members prior to the consultation launch.

Councillors Blakey and Jess Bailey left the meeting.

East Devon Local Plan - approach to redrafting of local plan
chapters an revised chapters 1 and 2 of the plan

The report before Members sought endorsement of the proposed approach to Chapter 1
— Introduction and Chapter 2 — Vision and Objectives of the new Local Plan which
reflected Members discussions at the last meeting.

Members noted an updated version of the new Local Plan would be brought back to
Committee prior to the Regulation 19 Publication.
page 11



68

Strategic Planning Committee 13 February 2024

RESOLVED:

1. That the approach to making amendments to the Local Plan set out in the
committee report be endorsed.

2. That the new proposed working draft text for Chapters 1 and 2 of the Plan be
endorsed, noting that further minor refinements may be needed later in 2024 and
will be brought to Members as part of the Regulation 19 Publication Draft version of
the Plan.

Cranbrook Town Centre Masterplan

The Assistant Director — Planning Strategy and Development Management presented
the report that sought approval to produce a Cranbrook Town Centre Masterplan. He
updated Members on the community responses to the consultation regarding the future
of the town centre and Members noted the excellent response rate received from
residents which was summarised in paragraph 2.3 expressing some excellent ideas to
what they would like to see. These responses would then progress to producing a
masterplan for the town centre.

Comments from Members included:

e The Chair thanked the residents of Cranbrook for their contributions to enable the
Masterplan to progress which he was confident would reflect the views of
residents.

e The Chair was pleased to see support for active travel and support for a leisure
centre and provisions for cycling and walking.

e Clarification was sought on the timescale for the Masterplan. The Assistant
Director — Planning Strategy and Development Management confirmed that he
hoped it would be completed by August 2024, acknowledged the need for a
project plan and timetable to be developed and said he was happy for the
Strategic Delivery Board to oversee the project.

e |t was suggested that the Chair and Vice Chair, supported by the Ward Members,
should have regular updates about the Masterplan so that pitfalls can be
addressed early.

e Members were in support of the Strategic Delivery Board to oversee the
Masterplan.

RESOLVED:

1. That the outcomes of the Cranbrook Town Centre consultation be noted.

2.  That the production of a Cranbrook Town Centre Masterplan be approved and
brought to the Strategic Delivery Board to oversee so that any pitfalls could be
addressed early before completion in August 2024.

Attendance List

Councillors present (for some or all the meeting)
J Bailey

K Blakey

B Collins

O Davey (Chair)

P Fernley

C Fitzgerald
page 12



Strategic Planning Committee 13 February 2024

M Hartnell

P Hayward

M Howe (Vice-Chair)
B Ingham

D Ledger

Y Levine

T Olive

H Parr

Councillors also present (for some or all the meeting)
P Arnott

| Barlow

K Bloxham

C Brown

J Brown

R Collins

P Faithfull

V Johns

G Jung

Officers in attendance:

Ed Freeman, Assistant Director Planning Strategy and Development Management
Anita Williams, Principal Solicitor (Deputy Monitoring Officer)

Wendy Harris, Democratic Services Officer

Councillor apologies:
B Bailey

Chairman Date:

page 13



Agenda Item 7
]

Report to: Strategic Planning Committee

Date of Meeting: 5 March 2024

Document classification: Part A Public Document —— .
District Council
Exemption applied: None

Review date for release N/A

East Devon Local Plan —timetable update report and further plan consultation
Report summary:

This report advises on an update on work on local plan making and summarises progress on
key work streams. In summary itis reported that work is progressing broadly in line with plan
redrafting timetables albeit the need for a workshop to further discuss green wedges following
Members discussion at the previous meeting will cause a delay of at least a couple of weeks in
the addendum Regulation 18 consultation being launched with now set to be for early April
following the committee meeting on the 2 April.

This report also:

- sets out details of the proposed additional topic specific local plan consultation that is
scheduled for March to April 2024; and

- specifically comments in more detail on potential future work on building standards and
carbon emissions (such work we highlight would/will delay bringing a revised local plan
climate change chapter back to committee).

Is the proposed decision in accordance with:
Budget Yes X No [

Policy Framework Yes X No [
Recommendation:

1. That committee note the ongoing work on local plan production as summarised in this
update report.

2. That committee agree to the proposed approach to additional local plan consultation in
Apriland May.

3. That committee advise on whether they wish to pursue a policy approach in the new
local plan that sets out local plan policy on energy efficiency standards/approaches that
exceed those of building regulations.

Reason for recommendation:

To ensure Members of committee are kept aware of local plan making progress.

Officer. Ed Freeman — Assistant Director, Planning Strategy and Development Management,
e-mail — efreeman@eastdevon.gov.uk, Tel 01395517519

page 14


mailto:efreeman@eastdevon.gov.uk

Portfolio(s) (check which apply):

Climate Action and Emergency Response
Coast, Country and Environment

Council and Corporate Co-ordination
Democracy, Transparency and Communications
Economy and Assets

Finance

Strategic Planning

Sustainable Homes and Communities

Tourism, Sports, Leisure and Culture

Equalities impact Low Impact

Climate change Medium Impact

Risk: Medium Risk; This report contains information around possible policy options that could have
differing (though not quantified) Carbon emission impacts.

Links to background information

The consultation draft local plan from November 2022 and other local plan papers can be
viewed at:

Draft Local Plan Consultation - East Devon

Links to other background documents are contained in the body of this report.

Link to Council Plan

Priorities (check which apply)

Better homes and communities for alll
A greener East Devon
A resilient economy

1. Local plan work planning

1.1 This report provides a follow-on update report on local plan making progress from a
similar report to Strategic Planning Committee in January 2024. It follows a pattern of
updates being provided every two months.

1.2 The emphasis on updating is to:
e report on key work and tasks being undertaken
¢ highlight any concerns about deviation from the timetable, and
e report on forthcoming reports to committee.

1.3 Updating on progress should be seen within the wider context of getting to the

Publication consultation stage of plan making to a target date of November 2024 and
thereafter to the Submission stage to a target date of May 2025.

page 15


https://eastdevon.gov.uk/planning/planning-policy/emerging-local-plan/draft-local-plan-consultation/
https://eastdevon.gov.uk/councilplan/

14

15

1.6

1.7

We are reviewing work progress alongside the timeline chart set out below/over the
page. This chart was first presented to committee on 31 October 2023. We would
advise of some deviations from this timetable further inin this committee report.

At this February committee meeting (ahead of the March timetabled date) committee
has/will receive revised Chapters 1 and 2 of the local plan. We would advise,
however, that for reasons set out in more detail later in this report we will not be in a
position to have redrafted Chapter 7 - Climate change for the scheduled April
committee meeting.

By way of further update we can advise that consultants have been appointed to
undertake a whole local plan and Community Infrastructure Levy viability assessment,
and tentative work has also started on an Infrastructure Delivery Plan that will support
and inform local plan production.

At the time of drafting this committee report an advert has been placed, with
responses received, to appoint an agency planner to assist with planning policy work.

page 16



Proposed table of key work stages to take the East Devon Local Plan to Submission for Examination

2023 2024 2025
| > o =1 I = o) = > o =3 I

R S S| 2| 8| 52| 3| 23532 8 38 28 5 ¢33 s

Committee approval of this work plan (31 Oct 2023) X

Ongoing evidence work and preparing Reg 18 consultation documents

Reports on emerging evidence as it becomes available XX |[X|X

SPC approval of Reg 18 consultation X

Reg 18 consultation

Officer assessment of representations received

Feedback on consultation to committee X
'éOngoing evidence and assessment work
® Redrafted chapters to committee as below:
o Ch. lintroduction and Ch. 2 vision X

Ch. 7 Climate change and Ch. 8 Housing X
Ch. 10 designand Ch. 11 transport X
Ch 15. heritage, Ch 16. community X
Ch. 13 biodiversity and Ch. 14 open space X
Ch 12. Landscape and Ch 19. Glossary X
Ch 5. and Ch 6. development allocations and Ch. 9 economy X
Ch 3. spatial strategy and Ch 17. implementation X

Final redrafting of the proposed Publication Plan

SPC approval of Reg 19 Publication plan X

Council approval of Publication plan for consultation X

Publication plan consultation

Officer assessment of submissions received

Council approval of plan submission X

Submission of the planfor Examination X

|:|:| Green bars indicate key background work and consultation periods

Red crosses indicate key committee dates (actual dates to be confirmed)



2.1

2.2

2.3

24

25

2.6

2.7

Local plan consultation in April and May 2024

Committee will note that on the agenda for this 5 March 2024 meeting there are a
series of topic-based papers that we are seeking authority to undertake consultation
on in respect of:

e Potential new housing or other allocations

e Town centre retail boundaries

Others will follow at the 12t March meeting.

Following Members consideration of green wedge boundaries at their previous
meeting a workshop is being arranged to further discuss these issues and this has
consequential delays for the proposed consultation. It is now envisaged that the
consultation materials will be presented to Members across the 51" March, 12th March
and 2" April meetings with consultation to commenced as soon as possible following
the 2" April meeting. The proposed consultation papers considered by committee will
need minor tidying-up before completions, for example in respect of standardising
page layouts and pagination.

Consultation material will be posted on the Council’'s communication and engagement
software, Commonplace, and it will be viewable on-line and people will be able also to
download pdf copies of documents. We will encourage responses to be made through
the commonplace platform but will make materials available in other formats for those
unable to use the platform and likewise enable responses to be received through other
means where necessary. Whilst the consultation material will be kept as simple and
engaging as possible there will be background technical documents that will be
available that go into considerably more detail on subject matters. We will ask simple
and limited questions in the consultation and will encourage on-line responses.

We will publicise the consultation through our web site and newsletters and send out
emails to our lists of consultees. As part of our general Neighbourhood Plan making
work we hold on-line meetings with parish councils and will look to run such a meeting
alongside and during the local plan consultation period.

We would not, however, recommend that public face-to-face meetings or exhibitions
are held. The narrow range of issues covered in this consultation would not warrant
such events and engagement levels through the commonplace software is now very
good. Officers would be available by telephone and e-mail to answer any questions but
we do not have the resources to run face to face events and keep the various
workstreams for the plan on track as well.

We will, however, seek to give notice to Parish Council’'s and any other interested
party to advise of the consultation so that any third party, should they choose, can
organise their own events.

During the consultation period there will be publicity material prepared and sent out.
We will focus each week on a different topic matter in terms of online promotion on the

web / social media. We will also look to prepare videos, to be posted on subject
page 18



2.8

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

matters that are out for consultation. There will be joint working with the
communications team at the council on these and wider areas of the engagement
work.

After the consultation is completed officers in the Planning Policy team will prepare a
feedback report on comments received with summaries of the main themes and issues
emerging. Our expectation is that all comments received will be made public and
published on our Planning Policy web pages, though redacting of personal details will
be needed and comments will be reviewed to ensure any racist, sexist or otherwise
unacceptable text is not published.

Climate change chapter of the local plan

We specifically wanted to highlight and draw to members attention considerations
around the climate change chapter of the plan that are particularly pertinent and that
are relevant to not bringing a redrafted chapter to committee in April 2024.

In December 2023 there were three significant Government actions:

a. Consultation on proposed revision to building standards - The Future Homes
and Buildings Standards: 2023 consultation - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)

b. Consultation on matters relating to heat networks - Heat Network Zoning
consultation 2023 (publishing.service.gov.uk)

c. Ministerial statement on acceptability of having local plan polices on building
standards on energy matters that exceed building regulations - Written
statements - Written questions, answers and statements - UK Parliament

There is a long established system of building regulations that exists in the UK that set
out minimum standards that new developments and redevelopments are required to
meet. These address such matters as structural and fire safety, damp proofing,
impacts of toxic substances, soundproofing, ventilation, hygiene, drainage, heating,
stairs, disability concerns, glazing and electrical safety.

One of the matters addressed through the building regulations is energy efficiency in
development. There are minimum build standards that are set out and have to be
complied with and through consultation (item a. above) the Government are consulting
on somewhat more demanding (more energy efficient) standards. We use the word
‘somewhat’ advisedly as assessment clearly indicates that the new standards
proposed are not as demanding as they could be. Furthermore new buildings are
increasingly being built to levels of energy efficiency that exceed existing and
suggested new efficiency standards; and therefore predicted carbon emission
standards during the operation and use of a building.

ltem b. above relates to a more process and procedural consultation about heat
networks and how they will be established and governed and rules and regulations

that exist within.
page 19


https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/the-future-homes-and-buildings-standards-2023-consultation/the-future-homes-and-buildings-standards-2023-consultation
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/the-future-homes-and-buildings-standards-2023-consultation/the-future-homes-and-buildings-standards-2023-consultation
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/659bc73ad7737c000ef33508/heat-network-zoning-consultation-2023.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/659bc73ad7737c000ef33508/heat-network-zoning-consultation-2023.pdf
https://questions-statements.parliament.uk/written-statements/detail/2023-12-13/hlws120
https://questions-statements.parliament.uk/written-statements/detail/2023-12-13/hlws120

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

Consultation feedback, under delegated authority, has been/will be sent to
Government expressing concerns that standards are not demanding enough and
greater emphasis should be placed on building efficiency in development.

It is advised that up to late 2023 it has been possible to have planning policy in local
plans, for energy efficiency standards, that seeks to exceed standards set out in
building regulations. A number of local planning authorities, including in the southwest
- Cornwall and Bath and North East Somerset - have such polices in adopted plan.
However there are distinct technical challenges in respect of establishing and
enforcing such polices and also challenges around the legality of such policies. We
understand that in some cases Inspectors have rejected these types of policies at
local plan examinations.

The picture of complexity of having local plan policy on building standards that exceed
those in building regulations got even more complicated, however, by a ministerial
statement issued in December 2023 (reference as item c. towards the start of this
section of this report).

The ministerial statement includes text stating ‘the Government does not expect plan-
makers to set local energy efficiency standards for buildings that go beyond current or
planned buildings regulations. The proliferation of multiple, local standards by local
authority area can add further costs to building new homes by adding complexity and
undermining economies of scale.”

The above may be reasonably read to conclude that we are effectively barred from
seeking higher standards in our local plan. But the next sentence, on face value,
somewhat contradicts what went before by stating “Any planning policies that propose
local energy efficiency standards for buildings that go beyond current or planned
buildings regulation should be rejected at examination if they do not have a well-
reasoned and robustly costed rationale that ensures:

e Thatdevelopment remains viable, and the impact on housing supply and
affordability is considered in accordance with the National Planning Policy
Framework.

e The additional requirement is expressed as a percentage uplift of a dwelling’s
Target Emissions Rate (TER) calculated using a specified version of the
Standard Assessment Procedure (SAP).

In our draft local plan commonplace-reg-18-final-071122.pdf (eastdevon.gov.uk) we
included Strategy 28 that sought net zero carbon emissions from new development
(the adopted Cranbrook Plan has policy coverage that also seeks high efficiency
standards). Regardless of the Ministerial Statement Strategy 28 would have required
some wording tightening up in redrafting.

But, we would now however wish to gain clarity from Committee on whether they
would wish to pursue a local plan policy approach that would seek to exceed existing
or new potential building regulations standards. There is a case against seeking
higher local standards in that it would appear contrary to Government aspirations and

expectations, it will involve some extra work, with no certainty of success, to seriously
page 20


https://eastdevon.gov.uk/media/3724891/commonplace-reg-18-final-071122.pdf

3.13

3.14

3.15

3.16

3.17

3.18

3.19

pursue such an approach and it might be felt that Government standards do or will go
far enough anyway. It is clear that minimum standards now are much more
demanding than they were in previous years, heating related carbon emissions from
new buildings are lower than from old buildings and there is an argument that
consumers, should they choose (and have the money) can buy or rent a property that
is more energy efficient than minimum standards anyway.

Arguments for seeking or explicitly imposing higher standards rest on such matters as
the fact that even after new standards come into place (assuming they do)
developments (such as new homes) will still emit carbon and that we should be doing
everything (reasonably) possible to reduce overall carbon emissions. It is also the
case that more energy efficient homes will cost less to heat and be more comfortable
for residents (but there is a cost to greater energy efficiency).

We would highlight that there is a legal challenge (proposed or perhaps already
logged) in respect of the validity of the ministerial statement. Also the Town and
Country Planning Association are lobbying for a collective local authority campaign of
opposition to the Government ministerial statement position.

Given the above considerations, and pending instruction from Committee, we
regarded it as appropriate to hold back on bringing a revised climate chapter of the
local plan to committee in April. Should committee wish to challenge the government
position, and seek policy for more demanding standards, we would see the need to
buy in specialist consultancy advice on this matter.

We would also wish to highlight that it would be appropriate to undertake potentially
substantive further work on and relating to Strategy 31 of the local plan that relates to
wind energy developments (turbines and wind farms).

The National Planning Policy Framework National Planning Policy Framework
(publishing.service.gov.uk) (December 2023) at Footnote 58 advices “Except for
applications for the repowering and life-extension of existing wind turbines, a planning
application for wind energy developmentinvolving one or more turbines should not be
considered acceptable unlessit is in an area identified as suitable for wind energy
developmentin the developmentplan or a supplementary planning document; and,
following consultation, it can be demonstrated that the planning impacts identified by
the affected local community have been appropriately addressed and the proposal has
community support.”

Strategy 31 sets out that “wind energy development will in principle be supported in
the identified wind energy suitable area ....”. The Policies Map of the draft local plan
colours in such areas (ie they are identified). But there is a question around whether
policy wording meets the NPPF tests and more importantly whether we have identified

appropriate areas.

The areas identified are taken from a study produced for the Council (and partner
authorities) by the Centre for Energy and the Environment at the University of Exeter
in 2020 UoE-2020-Low-Carbon-and-Climate-Change-GESP-report-net-zero-draft-

120320.pdf It was originally for the Greater Exter Strategic Plan but is now applied for
page 21



https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/65a11af7e8f5ec000f1f8c46/NPPF_December_2023.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/65a11af7e8f5ec000f1f8c46/NPPF_December_2023.pdf
https://www.gesp.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/12/2020/04/UoE-2020-Low-Carbon-and-Climate-Change-GESP-report-net-zero-draft-120320.pdf
https://www.gesp.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/12/2020/04/UoE-2020-Low-Carbon-and-Climate-Change-GESP-report-net-zero-draft-120320.pdf

3.20

3.21

3.22

our local plan work. This work was undertaken at a higher level and areas identified
for wind were derived from technical assessment of suitable wind speeds and applying
buffers (areas excluded from being defined) around selected physical features and
environmental assets —to include (not the full list) - roads, houses, all of the AONBs
(now national landscapes), listed buildings, overhead powerlines and woodlands.

On a technical level suitability considerations may have changed since 2020 when the
work was completed. But of more significance the definition and application of buffers
is not as sophisticated as would ideally be desirable and finer grained assessment
work on sites would be highly desirable.

Commercial on-shore wind turbines, itis understood, can reach up to 150 metres (or
more) from ground level (up to turbine tips) and as such they can be prominent and
highly visible (noting that whilst some people find them attractive others take a counter
view). They can be of a height that exceeds those referenced in the evidence report
and this may mean differing technical considerations should apply now. But,
especially at these higher heights the potential for adverse impacts in respect of
technical constraints and receptors of adverse environmental or heritage impacts are
likely to be more significant.

In due course it will be relevant for committee to consider how they weigh up the
potential for wind turbines and farms to have adverse impacts against the renewable
energy generation benefits they offer. We would consider, however, that such
considerations should ideally be informed by finer grained assessment and analysis
work. We would also need to give some further consideration, given NPPF wording, to
how we would meet the test of “......the planning impacts identified by the affected
local community have been appropriately addressed and the proposal has community
support.”

Financial implications:

There are no direct financial implication resulting from the report.

Legal implications:

The legal implications are covered in the report.

page 22



Agenda ltem 8

Report to: Strategic Planning Committee

Date of Meeting Tuesday 5 March 2024

Document classification: Part A Public Document e .
District Council
Exemption applied: None

Review date for release N/A

Consultation on Housing sites
Report summary:

The Draft Local Plan consultation which took place from November 2022 to January 2023 included
numerous housing and employment sites for consultation as either ‘preferred’, ‘second choice’, or
‘rejected’. Additional sites for housing development were submitted in this consultation which
have been reviewed and assessed, in accordance with the Site Selection methodology. As a
result, a total of 13 ‘new’ sites are recommended for the upcoming public consultation. Six sites
are ‘preferred’ allocations, six are rejected, with one site currently categorised as second choice.

Is the proposed decision in accordance with:
Budget Yes X No L]

Policy Framework Yes X No [
Recommendation:

1. That Strategic Planning Committee agree to consult on the housing sites detailed in this
report as part of the Reg 18 Addendum consultation planned to start at the end of March.

Reason for recommendation:

To ensure public consultation on housing sites as part of the Local Plan preparation process.

Officer: Ed Freeman — Assistant Director, Planning Strategy and Development Management,
efreeman@eastdevon.gov.uk, Tel 01395517519

Portfolio(s) (check which apply):

Climate Action and Emergency Response
Coast, Country and Environment

[] Council and Corporate Co-ordination
Communications and Democracy
Economy

Finance and Assets

Strategic Planning

Sustainable Homes and Communities

O Culture, Leisure, Sport and Tourism

Equalities impact Low Impact

Climate change Medium Impact

page 23


mailto:efreeman@eastdevon.gov.uk

Risk: Medium Risk; It is important that we follow a defined assessment process in deciding which
sites to allocate for housing development, to ensure a rational process is followed and can
subsequently be justified. It is important that the public are given the opportunity to provide
feedback in response to the draft proposals.

Links to background information The consultation draft local plan from November 2022: Draft
Local Plan Consultation - East Devon Site Selection methodology (May 2022)

Link to Council Plan

Priorities (check which apply)

Better homes and communities for all
A greener East Devon
A resilient economy

Reportin full

1. Introduction

1.1  One of the most important aspects of producing a Local Plan is allocating sites for new
development. To ensure we have a clear approach on how we consider sites, we have
published a Site Selection methodology and are taking all potential sites through this
process. Under this process, first we identify a ‘long list’ of sites (Stage 1), then sift out
sites that are unreasonable (Stage 2), only assessing in more detail those sites with a
reasonable prospect of being allocated (Stage 3). Finally, based upon a combination of the
site assessment, Local Plan spatial strategy, and district-wide housing/employment
requirement, we select which sites to allocate, and not, with reasons why (Stage 4).

1.2 The Draft Local Plan consultation which took place from November 2022 to January 2023
included numerous housing and employment sites for consultation as either ‘preferred’,
‘second choice’, or ‘rejected’. We also published a summary of the Site Selection findings
at that time.

1.3  The Draft Local Plan included a housing requirement of 18,920 dwellings over the plan
period 2020 — 2040. The plan included an additional 10% ‘headroom’, which results in a
total of 20,800 dwellings. Against this, the Draft Local Plan identified a supply of 20,441
dwellings, a shortfall of 359 dwellings against the draft policy aspiration.

1.4  Additional housing sites were submitted during public consultation, and these have now
been subject to a ‘summary assessment with a recommendation as to whether they should
be allocated, or not. In addition, one site (Seat_13) was not included in the Draft Local Plan
consultation; whilst a smaller version of another site (now known as Brcl_31) was not
previously included inthe Draft Local Plan consultation due to significant highways
constraints — further detail on this is included later in this report.

1.5 The purpose of this report is to highlight the summary assessment findings of these
additional housing sites, with the intention these are published for consultation in March
2024.

2. Consultation on Housing Sites

page 24


https://eastdevon.gov.uk/planning/planning-policy/emerging-local-plan/draft-local-plan-consultation/
https://eastdevon.gov.uk/planning/planning-policy/emerging-local-plan/draft-local-plan-consultation/
https://eastdevon.gov.uk/media/3724949/site-selection-methodology-v2.pdf
https://eastdevon.gov.uk/councilplan/

2.1 Atotal of 38 additional housing sites were submitted in consultation on the Draft Local Plan.
None of the additional sites have been assessed by the HELAA panel to date as it has not
been possible to arrange a panel meeting to consider them. They have however been
assessed by officers with advice from consultees. Most of the sites were sifted out (Stage 2
in the methodology) for reasons including lack of evidence from the landowner on land
availability, overlap with existing sites, and being located in a rural location (i.e., not within
or adjacent to settlements in tiers 1 — 4 of the settlement strategy, and not offering potential
to be a new settlement).

2.2  The site sifting process resulted in 12 ‘new’ sites, plus the existing site at Seaton (Seat_13)
that have been subject to site assessment. At this stage, a ‘summary’ site assessment has
been prepared, with further detailed assessment on matters of landscape, historic
environment and ecology to be undertaken following public consultation.

2.3 Appendix 1 contains a map of each site, some factual details, and the summary site
assessment and conclusion for the 13 sites. The following table highlights the conclusion
for each site on whether to allocate or not.

Summary of Housing sites proposed for consultation

Settlement Site ref. | Address No. Allocate?
dwellings
The Co-operative Food,
Axmi_16 | West Street, Axminster,
Axminster EX13 5PA 15 No — rejected
Land at Millwey Chard
Axmi_17 | Road, Axminster, EX13
Axminster 5NL 19 Yes — preferred
Millwey Garages, St
Axmi_18 | Andrews Drive, Axminster,
Axminster EX13 5EZ 6 Yes — preferred
Websters Garage, 9 Lyme
Axmi_23 | Street, Axminster, EX13
Axminster 5AT 10 Yes — preferred
Land West of Prestalier
Axmi_24 | Farm, Beavor Lane,
Axminster Axminster, 29 Yes — preferred
Beer Beer 03 | Land at Quarry Lane, Beer | 35 No — rejected
Land SW of Marley Hayes,
Lymp_17 | Hulham Road, Exmouth No — rejected
Exmouth EX8 5DZ 20
Exmouth Exmo 50 | Disused police station 20 Yes — preferred
Land West of the Village No — rejected
Plymtree Plym 05 | Hall 43
Seaton Seat 13 Land adjacent to Axe View
- Road, Seaton, EX12 2JT 39 Yes — preferred
Tipton St Otry 22 | Combe Bank No — rejected
John 29
Western side Land at Mosshayne Lane,
of East Brcl_31 Pinhoe, East Devon, EX1 Second choice
Devon 3TR 1000
Woodbury Wood 46 | West of Wood 10 23 No — rejected

* For information, sites Axmi_17, Axmi_18 and Seat_13 are owned by East Devon District Council.

page 25




2.4

2.5

3.1

3.2

As the table shows, a total of six sites are ‘preferred’ allocations for housing, totalling some
123 dwellings; with six sites totalling 165 dwellings not preferred for allocation.

Approximately 1,000 dwellings are included in site Brcl_31, a large site adjacent to the
boundary of the M5, proposed as a second choice site for the purposes of the forthcoming
consultation. This site was submitted by a national housebuilder in consultation on the
Draft Local Plan, which included a sketch masterplan. A key issue is it appears that
highways access from the B3181 to the north is required over land that is owned by
National Highways, who emphasise that "...our estate cannot be considered as being
available for third party development and alternative access proposals should be explored.
National Highways would request this is made clearin any public consultation." The
housebuilder has said they intend to commence discussions with National Highways shortly,
with the aim of resolving any issues prior to publication of the Regulation 19 Local Plan. The
forthcoming public consultation may also provide further detail on this matter.

Next steps

Following discussion and approval at this Committee, the 13 housing sites will be subject to
Regulation 18 public consultation alongside the other aspects on this agenda, with
consultation taking place from March 2024. An addendum to the Sustainability Appraisal
report will also be published for consultation, highlighting the key sustainability effects of the
housing sites, as well as the other aspects of the Regulation 18 consultation.

Where appropriate, some of these housing sites may then be included as allocations in the
Regulation 19 ‘publication’ Local Plan, later in 2024.

Financial implications:

There are no direct financial implication resulting from the report

Legal implications:

There are no direct legal implications resulting from the report.

page 26



Appendix One — Housing Site Selection summary findings

The map below shows the location of sites that were assessed. The detailed site
assessments that follows starts off with the large strategic site at Mosshayne Lane,
Pinhoe (east of M5) and then site ordering follows the hierachy of settlemnts as set
out in the draft East Devon local plan. Firstly Exmouth then the principle centres and
after that local centres and service villages (see Strategic Policy 1 of the consultation
draft local plan).

Housing sites for Local Plan Regulation 18

1 ITUPUSTU TTUOUSITTY AMTOUCATIUTTS TUT OPTITTY ZUZS CUTTSUTIATToOTT

consultation, March 2024 / \

) A

o 17} 24
| Axmi 23
\xmi

mi 1
m
i2

i17
Hfpooi s
2 ? I’
- o
N

Kilometers
4.5 9 13:5 18 m
| )evon

© Crown copyright and database rights 2024 Ordnance Survey AC0000809498

page 27



Site details

Settlement: Land at Mosshayne Lane, Pinhoe (east of M5)

Reference number: Brcl 31

Site area (ha): 109.75

Address: Land at Mosshayne Lane, Pinhoe, Exeter, East Devon, EX13TR

Proposed use: Residential plus related uses

Site map

3 Floodzone 2 - 0.1% 4
{ [2] County wilie Sites (Cws) | -
[] Public Rights of Way
Status

| === Bridleway
e Byway

§ = Footpath

s Restricted Byway
| Listed Buildings

| Grade

| ] No grade?

| -

[ 11sTAR
LIy

U VA7) Localy Listed

I (553 pelisted

0 015 03 0.6 0.9 1.2

@ Crown copyright and database rights 2024 Ordnance Survey AC0000809498

Site Assessment Summary and Conclusion

Infrastructure

Full spectrum of facilities expected including Community Hall, GP practice, Primary
School, Secondary School, Public Houses, Shops, Post Office & Stores, Open Spaces,
and Play Areas.

Clarificationis needed regarding the access point off the B3181 at the northern end of the
site. The Barratt Homes / David Wilson Homes Regulation 18 representation states:

page 28



"The maijority of the developmentwould be accessed via a spine road from the B3181,
with the smaller residential parcels in the south western part of the site accessed from
LangatonLane. It is therefore considered that any concerns from the highway authority
can be suitable addressed and mitigated through an alternative access strategy."
However, National Highways owns land that includes a ransom strip to this access point
and a representative on their behalf has since told EDDC: "lwould like to emphasise that
our estate cannot be considered as being available for third party development and
alternative access proposals should be explored. National Highways would request this
is made clearin any public consultation."

The housebuilder has said they intend to commence discussions with National Highways
shortly, with the aim of resolving any issues prior to publication of the Regulation19 Local
Plan.

Landscape

Medium - This large site of mainly undeveloped fields has the M5 and the new
developments at Pinn Court Farm & Moonhill Copse to the west, the Exeter-Waterloo
trainline and the new development at Tithebarn to the south and Exeter Logistics Park &
Skypark to the south-east.

Historic environment

Medium - There is a Grade Il listed building on the site (West Clyst Farm on Mosshayne
Lane), but this is already surrounded by a small development and the proposals state
that the existing lane would be maintained.

Ecology

Minimal ecological impact provided trees and hedgerows are retained. The site includes
an Unconfirmed Wildlife Site (Broadclyst Moor - Dymonds Bridge Marsh) but this could
be incorporated into the Clyst Valley Regional Park. Overall, minor adverse effect
predicted (not significant).

Accessibility

The site would require its own range of facilities, butitis currently within 1,600m of four or
more facilities, including schools, a hall, and a pub. The nearest primary school is
currently Westclyst Community Primary School and nearest secondary school is Clyst
Vale Community College. The nearest train stationis Pinhoe (approximately 700m from
the south-west corner of the site).

Other constraints

A total of 14.81ha falls within FZ3 (1%) and 20.22ha within FZ2 (0.1%) but these areas fall
within the Clyst Valley Regional Park portion of the site. AgriculturalLand - Only a small
pocket of the site (in the south-east) was classified in the post-1988 assessment (at
Grade 2 and Grade 3b) but the 2002 strategic assessment work found the majority of the
site to be Grade 1 (and Grade 3 in the north and along the boundary to the south-east of
the site). Noise issues that would affect the site will likely require mitigation — particularly
from the M5 to the west and possibly also from the railway line to the south.

page 29



Within Green Wedge in adopted Local Plan 2013-31 or made Neighbourhood Plan?

No.

Opportunities

North-South trail (part of the Clyst Valley Regional Park Strategy), sports pitches,
community facility, natural & semi-natural greenspace for biodiversity enhancements and
greenwith play space.

Yield (number of dwellings or hectares of employment land)

Approximately 1,000 dwellings
Contribution to spatial strategy

Land at Mosshayne Lane is a sustainable location for new development, which would
alignwith the Council’s overall spatial strategy. The site is in close proximity to the
extensive facilities and services available in Exeter, as well as other existing
infrastructure in the vicinity of the site, including Pinhoe Railway Station to the south west
and Exeter Science Park to the south. The proposed development could facilitate a
connection over the railway line, providing a link to these facilities.

Should the site be allocated?

Second choice.

Reasons for allocating or not allocating

The site is being promoted by a national housebuilder who have stated they have the
resource and expertise to deliver this developmentin full. The proposed development
would accommodate approximately 1,000 dwellings, land for educational use and
extensive areas of public open space (including a country park), which would collectively
represent a sustainable community that could benefit future and existing residents within
the western part of East Devon.

If whole site is not suitable for allocation, could a smaller part be allocated?

N/A

page 30



Site details

Settlement: Exmouth

Reference number: Lymp_ 17

Site area (ha): 3

Address: Land southwest of Marley Hayes, Hulham Road, Exmouth EX8 5DZ

Proposed use: Residential

Site map

[Garden and
L

Kilometers
0 0.03 0.06 0.12 0.18 0.24 @
| evon

® Crown copyright and database rights 2024 Ordnance Survey AC0000809498

Site Assessment Summary and Conclusion

Infrastructure

The site is being promoted with an access over a private road via a narrow junction onto
Marley Road. Without significant upgrading, involving substantial vegetationloss, itis
suggested thatit is highly unlikely that this junction could support anything more than
minimal new development (perhaps nil development) and there would also be a need for
widening of a narrow private lane. If allocated the assumptionis that access would need

page 31



to be achieved via other proposed allocated land in this north-eastern part of Exmouth or
perhaps a new access off Marley Road would be possible.

Landscape

The site is well screened with mature trees and vegetationto boundaries and within. The
site has a quiet and quite remote countryside feel, in part because of maturity of
surrounding vegetation, despite relative proximity to built development on its north-
easternedge. There are many mature trees within the site that would need to be
retained and adequately buffered - this would place significant limits on development
potential. Overall, medium-high landscape sensitivity.

Historic environment

There are no listed buildings in close proximity of the site and nil or limited potential for
adverse heritage impacts would be expected from development. Overall, low: no
concerns on current evidence, although archaeological mitigation measures may be
required.

Ecology

The site comprises of what would appear to be non-improved grassland with a
substantial number of mature trees within the site and to its boundaries. A number of
these trees are subjectto Tree Preservation Orders. As such there will be significant
local wildlife value atthe site. The site is an Unconfirmed County Wildlife site. Overall,
significant moderate adverse effect predicted.

Accessibility

The site falls within 1,600 metres of a range of services and facilities.
Other constraints

No additional constraints are noted.

Within Green Wedge in adopted Local Plan 2013-31 or made Neighbourhood Plan?
No

Opportunities

No specific opportunities are noted.

Yield (number of dwellings or hectares of employment land)
20

Contribution to spatial strategy

Exmouth is the Principal Centre in East Devon and should therefore see significant
development to serve its own needs and that of the wider surrounding areas.

page 32



Should the site be allocated?
No
Reasons for allocating or not allocating

Based specifically on wildlife value of the site and concerns around acceptability of
highway access the site should not be allocated for development.

If whole site is not suitable for allocation, could a smaller part be allocated?

No

page 33



Site details

Settlement: Exmouth
Reference number: Exmo_50
Site area (ha): 0.55

Address: Disused police station

Proposed use: Residential

Site map

| Listed Buildings
Grade

&l |:| No grade?
L

[ nsTAr
{1

V/7/) Localy Listed
&@'} Delisted
Conservation Areas

i.,..1 Confrmed

Proposed

(| K44] Foodzone 2-0.1% | . |
W

B T Tales RERpal o e
Kilometers
0 0.02 0.04 0.08 0.12 0.16 m
| evon

© Crown copyright and database rights 2024 Ordnance Survey AC0000809498

Site Assessment Summary and Conclusion

Infrastructure

From officer assessment there is no evidence to suggest that there are technical
constriants that would inhibit re-development for housing.

page 34



Landscape

This site sitsinan urban area of Exmouth, close to the town centre and surrounded by
built development, predominantly in residential use. Landscape sensitivityis considered
to be low and potential for adverse landscape impacts has been screened out.

Historic environment

The land around the police station site forms one of the core historic areas of
development of Exmouth. Late 19th Century Ordinance Survey mapping shows an
already built-up residential urbanfabric inthis part of the town and the site itself,
referenced as Branswick Square on historic mapping, canbe assumed to have been a
formal green urban square to what were, and predominantly remain, substantial
residences (a few splitinto flats) fronting on to, and near to, the site/the square. The
existing police station building (understood to become redundantinits current form) is a
post second world war Modernistinformed development of some 20th Century historic
interest. There are a significant number of Grade Il listed residential properties, mostly
dating from the early/mid 19th Century, that are at and around the site boundaries. The
sites past use and history plus the relevance of surrounding assets canform a positive
cue to inform a well designed and implemented scheme that offers scope for
enhancement of the setting of the assets. Overall, medium: no significant effects which
cannot be mitigated.

Ecology

There are no designated wildlife sites at orin close proximity of the site. The site is
currently occupied by a police station building builtin the latter half of the 20th century.
There are limited formal green spaces around the existing building and a small number
of existing trees on site. Overall, minor adverse effect predicted (not significant).

Accessibility

The site falls within 1,600 metres of a range of services and facilities, itis close to
Exmouth town centre and has good access to public transport.

Other constraints
No additional constraints are noted.
Within Green Wedge in adopted Local Plan 2013-31 or made Neighbourhood Plan?

No

Opportunities

No specific opportunities are noted.

Yield (humber of dwellings or hectares of employment land)
20

Contribution to spatial strategy

page 35



Exmouth is the Principal Centre in East Devon and should therefore see significant
development to serve its own needs and that of the wider surrounding areas.

Should the site be allocated?

Yes

Reasons for allocating or not allocating

The site occupies an urban residential location and the existing police station
building is understood to be redundant. Devon and Cornwall Police have advised of
their intent to submit a planning application for the redevelopment of the site to
include a new police station and for 0.4 hectares of the site to accommodate
residential development. The site falls within the Exmouth Conservation Area and
there are a large number of Grade |l listed residential buildings close to the site and
on its northern and western edges directly fronting on to the site. There is, therefore,
significant heritage interest that any redevelopment will need to be especially
sensitive to. The police station building itself is representative of a period of post 2nd
world war Modernist informed architecture, that is increasingly being lost, and as
such is of some interest. The site does present a good opportunity for sensitive
redevelopment to include residential uses.

If whole site is not suitable for allocation, could a smaller part be allocated?

Yes - In line with Devon and Cornwall Police aspirations around 0.4 hectares of the
site would form a reasonable allocation element for residential uses.

page 36



Site details
Settlement: Axminster
Reference number: Axmi_16

Site area (ha): 0.2

Address: The Co-operative Food, West Street, Axminster, EX13 5PA

Proposed use: Residential

Site map
2 N
@
(2}
- : A
urch Stregy g
Sy
/”s,&
I»%’
7
/ | $
/ &
/ ‘/// ; oé)s‘\
/ / 4
) / / / ¢ 77 ¥
| P72 Floodzone 3 - 1% //
Conservation Areas o'? %,
Status & ""o}
> R
Confirmed & %,
& o
Proposed
Kilometers
0 0.01 0.02 0.04 0.06 0.08
| Jevon
©® Crown copyright and database rights 2024 Ordnance Survey AC0000808498

Site Assessment Summary and Conclusion

Infrastructure

Devon County Council Highways advise that there is an existing private access into this

brownfield site that also serves private car parks and is already subject to regular levels
of vehicle movement. It is also close to local amenities and well served by public
footways. DCC Education advise that there is capacity for secondary places at Axe

page 37



Valley School, but it may be difficult to extend primary school provisionto accommodate
housing levels beyond those set out in current local plan.

Landscape

Overall landscape sensitivity - low. Site comprises a food store inan urban setting.
Historic environment

Medium: no significant effects which cannot be mitigated.

Ecology

The site is within 50 metres of a potential nature recovery network (grassland) and a
habitat of principle importance (a small stream). Minor adverse effect predicted (not
significant). The site is within the River Axe SAC Nutrient catchment zone and would
need to deliver nutrient neutral development .

Accessibility

The site is withinthe town centre and 1600 metres of at least 9 different types of services
and facilities, including a GP practice, community hall, post office, pubs, shops, primary
and a secondary school. Axminster train stationis within 350 metres and the site is closet
to a bus route with an hourly service.

Other constraints

The site is adjacentto an area of potentially contaminated land.

Within Green Wedge in adopted Local Plan 2013-31 or made Neighbourhood Plan?
No

Opportunities

none identified

Yield (number of dwellings or hectares of employment land)

15

Contribution to spatial strategy

The emerging local plan spatial strategy promotes significant development to the
main centres of East Devon, including Axminster as a 'Tier 2' settlement. Axminster
has a good range of facilities including a train station and secondary school. In
principle, Axminster is considered to be a good location for additional housing and
employment growth within the plan period.

Should the site be allocated?

No

page 38



Reasons for allocating or not allocating

The site is located within the proposed town centre and primary shopping area,
where development should enhance the range and quality of town centre, shopping
and leisure facilities. Redevelopment of the site for housing would be incompatible
with this as it would result in the loss of a supermarket.

If whole site is not suitable for allocation, could a smaller part be allocated?

no

page 39



Site details

Settlement: Axminster

Reference number: Axmi_17

Site area (ha): 0.95

Address: Land at Millwey Chard Road, Axminster, EX13 5NL

Proposed use: Residential

Site map

Miltwey

Gommunity

Centre

m Floodzone 2 - 0.1%
Public Rights of Way
| Status

= Bridleway

== Byway Cemetery

Footpath

,?93%’ B/

Restricted Byway

Kilometers
0 0.02 0.04 0.08 0.12 0.16 %
| Jevon

© Crown copyright and database rights 2024 Ordnance Survey AC0000809498

Site Assessment Summary and Conclusion

Infrastructure

Devon County Council Highways advise that the site has good pedestrian accessibility
with the existing access being in close proximity to a pedestrian crossing and opposite a
bus stop. Access arrangements may require mitigation. DCC Education advise that
there is capacity for secondary school places at Axe Valley School, but it may be difficult
to extend primary school provisionto accommodate housing levels beyond those set out
in the current local plan.

page 40



Landscape

Overall landscape sensitivity - Medium. Site forms a 'green’ and visually 'open' space
within the urban fabric of the town. It is bounded by mature hedges, but views across the
stie are available form the field gate to Chard Road with filtered views through the hedge
during the dormant season.

Historic environment

Low: no concerns identified on current evidence, although archaeological mitigation
measures may be required. No impact upon an assetis predicted or, ifan impactis
predicted, the cultural heritage value of the asset(s) would be unaffected. The Devon
Historic Environment Record shows that the site formed part of a second world war
United States military hospital.

Ecology

The site is a potential nature recovery network site (grassland). Minor adverse effect
predicted (not significant). The site is within the River Axe SAC Nutrient catchment zone
and would need to deliver nutrient neutral development.

Accessibility

The site is within 1600 metres of at least 9 different types of services and facilities,
including a GP practice, community hall, post office, pubs, shops, primaryand a
secondary school. Axminster train stationis within 1400 metres and the site is adjacent to
a bus route with an hourly service. Pedestrian access to the town centre is possible
along Chard Road.

Other constraints

A small section of the site is subject to flooding and will require further assessment. The
site forms open space and was previously used for sports purposes. Any potential for
allocation for development would need to take into account the acceptability of open
space loss and also the possible need for replacement provision of equal or greater
benefit.

Within Green Wedge in adopted Local Plan 2013-31 or made Neighbourhood Plan?
No

Opportunities

The site is owned by the District Council so there is an opportunity to tailor housing to
local priorities and to provide for other community needs

Yield (number of dwellings or hectares of employment land)

19

Contribution to spatial strategy

page 41



The emerging local plan spatial strategy promotes significant development to the
main centres of East Devon, including Axminster as a 'Tier 2' settlement. Axminster
has a good range of facilities including a train station and secondary school. In
principle, Axminster is considered to be a good location for additional housing and
employment growth within the plan period.

Should the site be allocated?

Potentially Yes — but as it is existing open space with a previous use for sports pitches it
would need to be demonstrated that any net loss would be acceptable in planning terms
taking into account, if relevant, potential replacement provision elsewhere.

Reasons for allocating or not allocating

The site is located within the existing urban fabric of the town and is well related to a
very good range of services and facilities.

If whole site is not suitable for allocation, could a smaller part be allocated?

N/A

page 42



Site details

Settlement: Axminster

Reference number: Axmi_18

Site area (ha): 0.25

Address: Millwey Garages, St Andrews Drive, Axminster, EX13 5EZ

Proposed use: Residential

Site map
& \\ - 15 N
. > AL A
\\v |
.IB
Vi~
J
&
N
= Sy 2
Fact g &
Y . 4 fS
£ Millwey / y
: . > ' ™~

(Axmi 18 /

Area £ /
% Yl

Kilometers
0 0.02 0.04 0.08 0.12 0.16 m
| Jevon

© Crown copyright and database rights 2024 Ordnance Survey AC0000809498

Site Assessment Summary and Conclusion

Infrastructure

Devon County Council Highways advise that it is difficult to assess the access from
desktop analysis but the visibility to the access may have its constraints due to existing
surrounding infrastructure. DCC Education advise that there is capacity for secondary
school places at Axe Valley School, but it may be difficult to extend primary school
provision to accommodate housing levels beyond those set out in current local plan.

page 43




Landscape

Overall landscape sensitivity - Low. The site comprises a garage courtand parking area
surrounded by housing and industrial buildings.

Historic environment

Low: no concerns identified on current evidence, although archaeological mitigation
measures may be required. No impact upon an assetis predicted or, ifan impactis
predicted, the cultural heritage value of the asset(s) would be unaffected. The Devon
Historic Environment Record shows that the site formed part of a second world war
United States military hospital.

Ecology

The site is withinthe River Axe SAC Nutrient catchment zone and would need to deliver
nutrient neutral development. No other issues identified. Overall, minor adverse effect
predicted (not significant).

Accessibility

The site is within1600 metres of at least 9 different types of services and facilities,
including a GP practice, community hall, post office, pubs, shops, primaryand a
secondary school. Axminster train station is within 1800 metres and the site is close to a
bus route with an hourly service. Pedestrian access to the town centre is possible along

Chard Road.

Other constraints

The access road is narrow and may be unsuitable for proposed development.

Within Green Wedge in adopted Local Plan 2013-31 or made Neighbourhood Plan?
No

Opportunities

Development would remove unsightly garages.

Yield (humber of dwellings or hectares of employment land)

6

Contribution to spatial strategy

The emerging local plan spatial strategy promotes significant development to the
main centres of East Devon, including Axminster as a 'Tier 2' settlement. Axminster
has a good range of facilities including a train station and secondary school. In
principle, Axminster is considered to be a good location for additional housing and
employment growth within the plan period.

page 44



Should the site be allocated?
Yes
Reasons for allocating or not allocating

The site is located within the existing urban fabric of the town and is well related to a
very good range of services and facilities.

If whole site is not suitable for allocation, could a smaller part be allocated?

N/A

page 45



Site details

Settlement: Axminster

Reference number: Axmi_23

Site area (ha): 0.28

Address: Websters Garage, 9 Lyme Street, Axminster, EX13 5AT

Proposed use: Residential

Site map

AT F ATREFTL_
|

Axmi 23

tounet
Irformaton

Canle

Listed Buildings s
Grade

\_‘ No grade?
H

| 0] nsTAR
n

Y/ Locally Listed |
@ Delisted I

Conservation Areas |-
Status

: ““’Conﬁrmed
Proposed
Kilometers
0 0015 0.03 0.06 0.09 0.12 @
Devon

© Crown copyright and database rights 2024 Ordnance Survey AC0000809498

Site Assessment Summary and Conclusion

Infrastructure
No DCC highway or education comments available.

Landscape

page 46

District Cauncil



Landscape sensitivity - low. Site of demolished buildings being used as a temporary
surface car park but located in core of the historic town and surrounded by heritage
assets.

Historic environment

The redevelopment of the site has the potential to affect the setting of several heritage
assets. Overall, medium: no significant effects which cannot be mitigated.

Ecology

The site is withinthe River Axe SAC Nutrient catchment zone and would need to deliver
nutrient neutral development. It is also within 100 metres of a potential grassland nature
recovery network (the Churchyard). Although a 'significant moderate adverse effectis
predicted' by the standard methodology due to the proximity of the churchyard, giventhe
existing nature of the site (formerly developed site inuse as a car park) a minor adverse
effect predicted (not significant).

Accessibility

The site is withinthe town centre and is less than 1600 metres from atleast 9 different
types of services and facilities, including a GP practice, community hall, post office, pubs,
shops, primary and a secondary school. Axminster train station is within 500 metres and
the site is adjacent to a bus route with an hourly service.

Other constraints

Much of the site is potentially contaminated land. The site is in use as a public car park
and is within the proposed town centre area.

Within Green Wedge in adopted Local Plan 2013-31 or made Neighbourhood Plan?
No
Opportunities

The site comprises anunsightly surface car park inthe conservationarea and
surrounded by heritage assets. Redevelopment of the site provides an opportunity to
improve the visual appearance of the site and provide a mix of appropriate town centre
uses, including an element of housing.

Yield (humber of dwellings or hectares of employment land)
10
Contribution to spatial strategy

The emerging local plan spatial strategy promotes significant development to the
main centres of East Devon, including Axminster as a 'Tier 2' settlement. Axminster
has a good range of facilities including a train station and secondary school. In

page 47



principle, Axminster is considered to be a good location for additional housing and
employment growth within the plan period.

Should the site be allocated?
Yes
Reasons for allocating or not allocating

The site is located within the existing urban fabric of the town and is well related to a
very good range of services and facilities. Residential use is acceptable as part of a
mixed use redevelopment scheme.

If whole site is not suitable for allocation, could a smaller part be allocated?

N/A

page 48



Site details

Settlement: Axminster

Reference number: Axmi_24

Site area (ha): 2.65

Address: Land West of Prestalier Farm, Beavor Lane, Axminster,

Proposed use: Residential

Site map

Axmi 24

Fj;/ Floodzone 2 - 0.1% |
(| Public Rights of Way
Status

Bridleway
— Byway
| s Footpath

- Restricted Byway

Kilometers
0 0.03 0.06 0.12 0.18 0.24 %
| Jevon

@© Crown copyright and database rights 2024 Ordnance Survey AC0000809498

Site Assessment Summary and Conclusion
Infrastructure

No DCC highway or education comments available.
Landscape

Landscape sensitivity - medium.

Historic environment

page 49



Low: no concerns identified on current evidence, although archaeological mitigation
measures may be required. No impact upon an assetis predicted or, ifan impactis
predicted, the cultural heritage value of the asset(s) would be unaffected.

Ecology

The site is withinthe River Axe SAC Nutrient catchment zone and would need to deliver
nutrient neutral development. No other issues identified. Overall, minor adverse effect
predicted (not significant).

Accessibility

The site is within 1600 metres from at least 9 different types of services and facilities,
including a GP practice, community hall, post office, pubs, shops, primaryand a
secondary school. Axminster train station is within 1300 metres and the site is within 300
metres of a bus route with an hourly service.

Other constraints

none identified

Within Green Wedge in adopted Local Plan 2013-31 or made Neighbourhood Plan?
no

Opportunities

Yield (number of dwellings or hectares of employment land)

29

Contribution to spatial strategy

The emerging local plan spatial strategy promotes significant development to the
main centres of East Devon, including Axminster as a 'Tier 2' settlement. Axminster
has a good range of facilities including a train station and secondary school. In
principle, Axminster is considered to be a good location for additional housing and
employment growth within the plan period.

Should the site be allocated?

Yes

Reasons for allocating or not allocating

The site is well connected to a range of services and facilities.

If whole site is not suitable for allocation, could a smaller part be allocated?

N/A

page 50



Site details
Settlement: Seaton
Reference number: Seat 13

Site area (ha): 8.39
Address: Land adjacent to Axe View Road, Axe View Road, Seaton, EX12 2JT

Proposed use: Residential

Site map
AT T 7z
3 s 5
AN o % g
i KX £ o
Ve % S R0
Only the northern field is a preferred allocation < % = S it
2
l . @% f -
X e L’“’eﬁelqs 3
| 2\ )
oW RO s L
Reservoir (cov} eview ?)\‘r\ L |
& SN 1 |
%& Eimfield Road
% ‘ Nl
% Py
%, Sl R
Oo <
% %
{ 23
& whcna Park s %
) Seat 13 i %
¢ i R
, «\a“‘\l
Roman Wa 3ok 4
Y ) Roman way, : %
&
o
&
P S
! - ROMAN WELL >
Honey Ditches DIlve" < e
: I : A o 2
Public Rights of Way = 8 < ot 2
Status &
|/ =3
¥ = Bridieway 4
s / o
— Byway 8 5 / &
Footpath : | ) g 2 & i
‘ootpa ) 1 E - & 90 Dy,
Restricted Byway §
=
Scheduled Ancient Monuments (SAM) fig &
Kilometers
0.19 0.285 0.38

0 0.0475 0.095

@ Crown copyright and database rights 2024 Ordnance Survey AC0000809498

Site Assessment Summary and Conclusion

Infrastructure
DCC Highways: Access would be off existing Estate Roads. Existing pedestrian
infrastructure and local transport nearby.

DCC Education: Seaton primary has capacity to support some development - but not to
the overall level proposed in the town. The impact should be considered alongside
proposed sites inthe vicinity of Colyford. The ability to provide safe walking routes

page 51




between the proposed sites and the primary school should also be considered.
Secondary capacity needs to be assessed with other proposed sites within the Axe
Valley school catchment area.

Landscape

Widely visible site, sloping from west to east towards the Axe Valley. However, seenin
context of modern dwellings to east/north eastand caravan park to north/north west, and
simple landcover. Overall, medium landscape sensitivity to new development.

Historic environment

Roman And Earlier Settlement At Honeyditches Scheduled Monument forms the
southern three fields of Seat_13. This Scheduled Monument runs along the southern
boundary of the remaining (northern) field which passes the HELAA, and is therefore
subject to site assessment. Given proximityto SM, archaeological assessment required
before site is developed. Overall, medium: no significant effects that cannot be mitigated.

Ecology

Single field of agriculturally improved grassland, 4-5 mature trees within hedgerow
boundary including 1x veteran tree. Within Beer Quarry and Caves SAC consultation
zone, sustenance zones, landscape connectivity zone, so a significant moderate adverse
effect predicted.

Accessibility

10 out of 12 facilities within 1,600m of site (excl. Colyton Grammar). Pedestrian access
can link into existing footpath on Axeview Road. Hourly or greater (intra town) bus
service from Barnards Hill Lane 120m to east. 1.4km to town centre, but school, GP
closerat 400m.

Other constraints
Grade 3 agricultural land. Slither of surface water flood risk (1/100yr) runs eastto west
through the southern part of the site. Northern half is within a Green Wedge designated

in Local Plan 2013-31, but itis not considered that development would damage
settlement identity or lead to settlement coalescence.

Within Green Wedge in adopted Local Plan 2013-31 or made Neighbourhood Plan?
Yes

Opportunities

Pedestrian access canlink into existing footpath on Axeview Road, adjacentto east.
Yield (number of dwellings or hectares of employment land)

39

Contribution to spatial strategy

page 52



As a Main Centre, the emerging LP proposes significant development at Seaton to
serve its own needs and that of wider surrounding areas. However, Seaton has
fewer jobs, lacks some strategic facilities (train station, secondary school, swimming
pool), and is located in a less accessible location compared to some other Main
Centres.

Should the site be allocated?
Yes
Reasons for allocating or not allocating

The scale of development on this site would help deliver the district-wide housing
requirement in a manner that is consistent with the spatial strategy. Good access to
facilities and employment, medium landscape sensitivity, but ecological impacts
relating to use by Beer Quarry and Caves SAC bats and impact upon Scheduled
Monument will need to be addressed in delivering the site.

If whole site is not suitable for allocation, could a smaller part be allocated?

Yes - the single field immediately north of the Scheduled Monument.

page 53



Site details

Settlement: Woodbury
Reference number: Wood 46
Site area (ha): 1.99

Address: West of Wood_10

Proposed use: Residential

Site map

y Eie
Floodzone 2 - 0.1% z
2 e~

/] Flaodzone 3 - 1% » ;;,‘ :.
::::c; Rights of Way : W ‘
s Bridleway 7 .» 5 7

— Byway 4 7
i Footpath >, é

- Restricted Byway

H :
Conservation Areas

rrrrrr

i, Confimed

Proposed
Listed Buildings
Grade

1] ,_\ No grade?
| I

[ ] usTArR
[l

I /75 Locally Listea y o
X% pelisted T

Kilometers
0 0.03 0.06 0.12 0.18 0.24 %
[ Jevon

© Crown copyright and database rights 2024 Ordnance Survey AC0000809498

Site Assessment Summary and Conclusion

Infrastructure

No DCC Education and Highways comments specifically for this site, but education
capacity issues are highlighted for other sites in Woodbury, and comments for Wood_10
across the road identify need for continuous footway to connect to adjoining site - the
public right of way just beyond the northern edge of Wood_ 46 offers the opportunity for a
continous footway that avoids the mainroad, although this would require a bridge over

page 54



the intervening stream. The middle and outer zones associated with the high pressure
gas pipeline cover the western part of the site.

Landscape

Located within Landscape Character Type E. Lowland plains. Large, level, arable field
adjoining the western tip of Woodbury. Open, short distance views of the site from the
public right of way to the north of the site. The site protudes into open countryside, with
limited context of built form. Overall, a medium/high landscape sensitivity.

Historic environment

Woodbury Conservation Area 30m to NE but intervening trees mean limited intervisibility.
2 Grade Il listed buildings 90m to east and 65m to south, but intervening dwellings mean
no adverse impact upon these assets. Overall, Low: no concerns identified on current
evidence, although archaeological mitigation measures may be required.

Ecology

A single arable field, with a stream running along the northern boundary and small group
of trees to NE and NW. Minor adverse effect predicted (not significant).

Accessibility

10 out of 12 facilities within1,600m, but currently the site does not link to existing
footpaths. The public right of way just beyond the northern edge of the site offers the
opportunity for a continous footway that avoids the mainroad, which would require a
bridge over the intervening stream.

Other constraints

Grade 3 agricultural land. Flood Zone 3 covers northern part of site, overlapping with
surface water flood risk, so net area of 0.95 ha and yield reduced accordingly. Flood
Zone 2 extends further across the site, leaving around 0.44 ha in Flood Zone 1.

Within Green Wedge in adopted Local Plan 2013-31 or made Neighbourhood Plan?
No

Opportunities

Upgrade the public right of way to provide a pedestrian route that connects to the existing
footpathinto the settlement centre, including a footbridge from the site over the stream.

Yield (humber of dwellings or hectares of employment land)
23
Contribution to spatial strategy

The spatial strategy identifies Woodbury as a Local Centre to meet local
development needs and those of immediate surrounds. Whilst the site in isolation

page 55



accords with this strategy, there are other more preferable sites in Woodbury to meet
this strategy.

Should the site be allocated?
No

Reasons for allocating or not allocating

Medium/high landscape impact, poorly related to the existing built form in Woodbury.
Whilst the site in isolation accords with the spatial strategy, there are other more
preferable sites in Woodbury to meet this strategy.

If whole site is not suitable for allocation, could a smaller part be allocated?

No

page 56



Site details

Settlement: Beer

Reference number: Beer 03

Site area (ha): 1.23

Address: Land at Quarry Lane, Beer

Proposed use: Residential

Site map

| (44 Floodzone 2 - 0.1%
East Devon National Landscape
[ county widite Sites (cws)
Public Rights of Way
Status
- Bridleway
— Byway

s FoOtpath 3 \ \ e

Restricted Byway

Kilometers
0 0.03 0.06 0.12 0.18 0.24

[ evon
© Crown copyright and database rights 2024 Ordnance Survey AC0000803438

Site Assessment Summary and Conclusion

Infrastructure

Site is adjacentto Quarry Lane and is assessible by pavement from the centre of Beer.
Comments of the Highway Authority regarding creation of access onto Quarry Lane not
yet available. The Education Authority advise that Beer Primary school has limited
capacity to supportdevelopment and lies on a very constrained site, and also that there
would be a transportimplication for access to the nearest secondary school.

page 57



Landscape

Sensitivityis considered to be high. The site lies entirely within the East D evon National
Landscapes (AONB) and the Coastal Preservation Area, just beyond the far extent of
built development at Beer along Quarry Lane. The site forms part of the setting and
approachto Beer at this point, and has an intact tranquil and rural character (typical of
the landscape character type for the area). It is considered to have a high scenic quality,
with few modern detractors visible.

Historic environment

There are no designated heritage assets within100m of the site. The site lies ¢.200m
from the far eastern extremity of the Beer Conservation Area which covers the historic
centre of Beer, and ¢.230m from the nearest Listed Building withinit, with intervening
modern/ new residential development. Whilst there is no directintervisibility, the site
forms part of the setting of Beerand has a sense of being part of an historic landscape
due to the enclosed pastoral nature of it. Lying on Quarry Lane, ¢.230m from the former
stone quarry, there is also a cultural/heritage association with the quarrying industry
which has shaped the development of Beer. There is possible archaeological interest
lying within any artefacts scattered adjacent to a lithic working site. Overall, heritage
impactis assessed as medium where there are no significantimpacts that could not be
mitigated.

Ecology

Site comprises pasture/scrub and mature boundary hedgerows/hedgebanks and trees.
Beer Quarry and Caves Special Area for Conservation (SAC) and Site of Speical
Scientific Interest (SSSI) lies in close proximity (c220m) to the west and in an area used
by foraging bats, within the Consultation, Sustenance and Landscape Connectivity
Zones. Also lies within 100m of Bovey Lane Fields County Wildlife Site (species-rich
unimproved grassland) and opposite (across Quarry Lane) from areas identified on both
priority habitatinventory and as nature recovery network, comprising 'additional' (no
main) habitat, interspersed with areas of deciduous woodland/forest. No designations
within/overlapping the site. Atthis stage, significant moderate adverse impact predicted.

Accessibility

The site includes 9 community facilities and services within1600m. This includes an
hourly or better bus service, primary school, convenience shop(s), post office, community
hall, pub(s), open space/allotment, GP and children's play area. There is limited capacity
at the primary school however as noted by the Local Education Authority. The majority
of these facilities are within the village centre to which there is a direct safe walking route
on pavements from immediately opposite the easternmost end of the site.

Other constraints

Although the site frontage along Quarry Lane is relatively flat, there is steep topography
within the site, with gradients as steep as 1:3. The site is not within but close to an area
of floodzone 2/3; itis not subject to surface water flooding. It is within a drinking water
source protectionzone 2 and Mineral Consultation Area. The site comprises Grade 3
agricultural land, which may include bestand most versatile land (3a).

page 58



Within Green Wedge in adopted Local Plan 2013-31 or made Neighbourhood Plan?
No

Opportunities

None identified.

Yield (number of dwellings or hectares of employment land)

35

Contribution to spatial strategy

Delivering this site would be consistent with the spatial strategy for Beer as a Service
Village to allow limited development to meet local needs.

Should the site be allocated?
No
Reasons for allocating or not allocating

Primarily for reasons of landscape impact and intrusion in to the countryside,
combined with heritage and ecology concerns.

If whole site is not suitable for allocation, could a smaller part be allocated?

No itis unlikely that a reduced area would overcome the issues identified.

page 59



Site details

Settlement: Plymtree

Reference number: Plym_05

Site area (ha): 3.29

Address: Land West of the Village Hall

Proposed use: Residential

Site map

77z

Struan House

Plymtree Manor

[44A Fioodzone 2-0.1%
Public Rights of Way ) %
Status ’

Bridleway

—— Byway

= Footpath
Restricted Byway

Listed Buildings

Grade

,_| No grade?

L

[ nsTAr

[

V//) Localy Listed

154 Delisted

Jshgrove House

Kilometers
0.28

0 0.035 0.07 0.14 0.21

© Crown copyright and database rights 2024 Ordnance Survey AC0000803498

Site Assessment Summary and Conclusion

Infrastructure

Plymtree Primary has some capacity to support development, but not to accommodate
all of the potential development. Transport costs to the secondary school would apply.

page 60

[ evon



Landscape

Medium impact. Existing development on one side provides some context of built form,
and the presence of mature hedgerows and trees lessen visibility over parts of the site.
However the site has a close relationship with surrounding countryside.

Historic environment

Medium- no significant effects which cannot be mitigated. Animpactis predicted, but
would not compromise the asset(s) cultural heritage value to the extent that the attributes
that led to its designation, or ability to understand or appreciate its value, are diminished
or compromised. Mitigation may make the impact acceptable, this is likely to be in the
form. The overall significance of the asset would not therefore be materially changed.

Ecology
Minor adverse effect predicted (not significant)
Accessibility

The site is within1,600 metres of 4 or more different local facilities but over 1,600 metres
from a train station or bus route with an hourly or better service

Other constraints

Within Green Wedge in adopted Local Plan 2013-31 or made Neighbourhood Plan?
No

Opportunities

Yield (humber of dwellings or hectares of employment land)

43

Contribution to spatial strategy

Plymtree is a service village in the emerging Local Plan settlement hierarchy.
Should the site be allocated?

No

Reasons for allocating or not allocating

The site is a significant greenfield site which contributes to the setting of the adjacent
listed Manor House and it's formal gardens. It is located on the periphery of the
village (albeit the village hall is located beyond it) and would extend built form into
the open countryside.

If whole site is not suitable for allocation, could a smaller part be allocated?

No

page 61



Site details

Settlement: Tipton St John
Reference number: Otry 22
Site area (ha): 0.97
Address: Combe Bank

Proposed use: Residential

Site map
1‘ N
b--
.//,’r 1
|
|
7
|
., /// VAN -

East Devon National Landscape
/4] Floodzone 2 - 0.1%
Public Rights of Way
Status

s Bridleway

— Byway .

-

Kilometers
0 0.015 0.03 0.06 0.09 0.12

| e Footpath

———q

Restricted Byway

© Crown copyright and database rights 2024 Ordnance Survey AC0000808498

Site Assessment Summary and Conclusion

Infrastructure

This site can be accessed via the 'main' road, with the 30mph speed limitextended.
Concerns as the current Tipton St John primary school buildings are located inthe
floodplain. DCC are trying to find a site to relocate the school out of the floodplain.
Currently the majority of children come from Sidmouth or Ottery St Mary - so
development could lead to a push back to these schools which have limited capacity.
Any significant development within the village should consider the requirement fora new

page 62



primary school site. Additional secondary capacity required and transport costs would
apply. The Kings School academy has previously clearly indicated it will not expand
unless with significantinvestment and potentially new school buildings.

Landscape

Medium-High. An enclosed site, surrounded by hedgerows on most sides. Topography
and sloping site mean that the site sits higher than the adjoining road and developmentis
therefore likely to be more visible. Long range intervisibility from the AONB to the south
eastis likely. New road access is needed, so a hedgerow would need to be removed and
this would openthe site up to views from the road. Long distance views of hills looking
out from the site.

Historic environment

Low: no concerns identified on current evidence, although archaeological mitigation
measures may be required. No impact upon an assetis predicted or, ifan impactis
predicted, the cultural heritage value of the asset(s) would be unaffected.

Ecology
Minor adverse effect predicted (not significant)
Accessibility

The site is within1600m of 4 or more facilities including a school (although this is
proposed to be relocated outside the village), a hall, a pub and a shop. There is not a
regular bus service.

Other constraints

Within Green Wedge in adopted Local Plan 2013-31 or made Neighbourhood Plan?
No

Opportunities

Yield (humber of dwellings or hectares of employment land)

29

Contribution to spatial strategy

Tipton St John is a service village in the emerging Local Plan settlement hierarchy,
however it will lose this staus if the school closes

Should the site be allocated?
No

Reasons for allocating or not allocating

page 63



The site is a greenfield site which would extend into open countryside. There is no
other development on this side of the road. Development would be visible from a
considerable distance and negatively impact on the AONB.

If whole site is not suitable for allocation, could a smaller part be allocated?

No

page 64



page 65



Agenda ltem 9
|

Report to: Strategic Planning Committee

Date of Meeting: 5 March 2024

Document classification: Part A Public Document —— .
District Council
Exemption applied: None

Review date for release N/A

Topic paper relating to town centres, retail and sequential test in the new Local Plan
Report summary:

At the 7 September 2021 meeting, this committee agreed in principle that the emerging local
plan should continue to take a policy approach which will support the positive appearance and
active use of town centres, ensuring they are vital and viable. Members are now asked to
consider a topic paper explaining the proposed approach to be taken and establishing up to
date Town Centre Area boundaries and Primary Shopping Area boundaries. It is intended that
the proposed boundaries, supported by the assessment work, be subject to public consultation
in Spring 2024.

Is the proposed decision in accordance with:
Budget Yes X No [
Policy Framework Yes X No [l
Recommendation:
1. That Strategic Planning Committee endorse the topic paper supporting the policies of
the Local Plan, set out in appendix 1 of this report.

2. That Strategic Planning Committee agree that the draft Town Centre and Primary
Shopping Areas, drawn in accordance with the methodology set out in the topic paper,
be subject to public consultation.

Reason for recommendation:

To ensure that Town Centre and Primary Shopping Areas are based on a logical and
transparent assessment process and that the public are given an opportunity to comment on
the proposals as part of the local plan production process.

Officer: Ed Freeman — Assistant Director, Planning Strategy and Development Management,
e-mail — efreeman@eastdevon.gov.uk, Tel 01395517519

Portfolio(s) (check which apply):

L1 Climate Action and Emergency Response

L] Coast, Country and Environment

(1 Council and Corporate Co-ordination

L1 Democracy, Transparency and Communications

Economy and Assets
page 66


mailto:efreeman@eastdevon.gov.uk

[ Finance

Strategic Planning

[] Sustainable Homes and Communities
L] Tourism, Sports, Leisure and Culture

Equalities impact Low Impact

Climate change Low Impact

Risk: Medium Risk; It is important that we set out how Town Centre and Primary Shopping
Area boundaries are to be defined to ensure a rational process is followed and can
subsequently be justified. It is important that the public are given the opportunity to provide
feedback in response to the draft proposals.

Links to background information

See links in Appendix 1.

Link to Council Plan

Priorities (check which apply)

Better homes and communities for alll
A greener East Devon
A resilient economy

1. Introduction

1.1 The emerging East Devon Local Plan will contain policies to ensure that East Devon’s
town centres continue to thrive and meet the everyday shopping, leisure and service
needs of local residents and visitors. This report seeks Member endorsement of the
attached topic paper which explains the approach taken to the retail and town centre
policies and sets out the boundaries within which these policies will apply. Members
are asked to agree that the boundaries be subject to public consultation in March/April
2024.

1.2 Based on size, population and shopping facilities, East Devon has eight towns:

» Axminster;

* Budleigh Salterton;

* Cranbrook;

* Exmouth;

* Ottery St Mary;

* Honiton;

» Seaton; and

« Sidmouth

which are assessed in the report attached at Appendix 1, along with the smalll
town/large village of Colyton and the village of Beer which both have an extensive
range of shops for their size. The Local Plan establishes a hierarchy of settlements
based on their role and function- tiers one and two comprise settlements with a range

page 67


https://eastdevon.gov.uk/councilplan/

1.3

14

15

2.1

2.2

of shopping facilities but not all of the tier 3 and 4 villages contain a range of shops
and those that don’t are not the focus of the report.

Each of these towns support a town centre (although at Cranbrook the planned centre
is not yet fully established). Colyton is the smallest of the East Devon towns (it could
be considered a large village) and it has the least facilities of the centres listed. The
village of Beer, although slightly smaller than Colyton, actually supports more shops,
with a number of these most likely to be viable on account of the busy tourist trade.

As identified by the Government nationally, the role and function of East Devon’s town
centres is shifting away from retail uses. The last ten years has seen the decline of
traditional shops selling comparison goods. These are products which are purchased
infrequently, such as white goods, household items and clothing where consumers
want to compare a range of items to get the best value and quality. These products
can often be bought more conveniently online. This can be quick and convenient but it
reduces the viability of physical shops and in turn reduces the availability of goods and
services to those without the internet, without electronic banking or without the means
to access alternative out-of-town shops.

Whilst East Devon’s High Streets are still relatively vibrant (there are fewer vacant
units and more independent shops than the national average 10.3 %- (High Streets
and Town Centres 2030 report
https://publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm201719/cmselect/cmcomloc/1010/report-
summary.html the traditional anchor town centre uses such as banks, clothing shops
and pubs have closed many outlets. Where vacant shops have been taken over, they
are often filled by cafes and coffee shops and health and beauty businesses — nail
salons, hairdressers, tattoo parlours and barbers — all offering experiences rather than
products. Higher numbers of vacant units and new uses with ‘blank’ frontages or visits
by appointment are unattractive to shoppers and reduce the interest and bustle
generated by diverse window displays enticing passers-by, although by-appointment
businesses can be an excellent way to bring upper floors into use.

Local Plan Proposals

Currently, the adopted Local Plan Policy E9 Town Centre Vitality and Shopping Areas
provides the overarching policy relating to retail provision inthe current defined town
centres. Policy E10 establishes Primary Shopping Frontages. These are areas within
which permission will not normally be granted for the change of use of ground floor
premises from retail to non-retail uses unless it can be demonstrated that this would
not be harmful to the existing character or primary shopping function of the area. In
addition, Policy E11 requires a sequential approach to be taken to ensure that town
centres remain the preferred location for new retail development. Other policies
address smaller, neighbourhood centre shops, rural retail and loss of village shops and
services.

The NPPF has relaxed the previous requirements for town centres to focus mainly on
retail use and now allows changes between uses and encourages housing and

page 68


https://publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm201719/cmselect/cmcomloc/1010/report-summary.html
https://publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm201719/cmselect/cmcomloc/1010/report-summary.html

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

3.1

3.2

activities such as leisure, community, offices and healthcare alongside traditional
shopping.

In Winter 2022 “Strategic Policy 56- Town Centre hierarchy, sequential approach and
impact assessment” and “Policy 57- Town Centre development” were subject to
consultation as part of the draft new Local Plan. Policy 56 is a strategic policy because
it establishes the network and hierarchy of centres. Maintaining the vitality and viability
of the town centres in East Devon is a strategic priority inthe plan. This policy is also
the starting point for the suite of non-strategic policies on town centres and primary
shopping frontages, local shops and services, and rural shops.

Policy 57 takes a positive approach to the growth, management and adaptation of the
town centres. As part of a positive strategy for the future of each town centre, the
Local Plan defines their extent and makes clear the range of uses that are acceptable
within them.

This consultation referred to the Town Centre area and Primary Shopping Area (which
in most cases are one and the same due to the compact nature and concentration of
retail uses) but did not show the boundaries on the Policies Map. If Members agree,
the boundaries (as set out inthe report at Appendix 1) will be subject to a further
consultation in Spring 2024.

It should be noted that the criteria-based policy relating to Primary Shopping
Frontages (E10) in the adopted Local Plan was reviewed and considered to be out of
date given the change of use now allowed by permitted development rights. We have
now taken on board the consultation responses received during last Winter's
consultation which stressed the importance of keeping frontages up to date, the need
for a policy approach that sought to retain a certain proportion of retail uses in the
town centres and concerns that historic features will be lost during conversion and has
addressed these matters through other policies.

The attached report also addresses the potential impact of out of centre retail
development and proposes that a lower than nationally prescribed, 500sgm, threshold
for retail impact assessments be applied (as it currently is in the adopted Local Plan)
but the NPPF default threshold of 2500sqm be applied to other types of development.

Public Consultation

It is proposed that public consultation on various local plan designations and
allocations, including Town Centre and Primary Shopping Areas, will be undertaken as
soon as possible after receiving SPC approval. Such consultation will last for a
minimum of 6 weeks.

The suggested text and maps for the consultation are overleaf (these may be subject
to minor amendments). The strategic policy does not establish policy area boundaries
but does explain our approach and set out the settlements to which these will apply,
hence it's suggested inclusion in the consultation. Other retail related policies, for
example those supporting provision of local-scale neighbourhood shops and facilities
and preventing loss of shops in small settlements, are criteria based and do not have
associated maps, so are not subj&% e’got_)gwis consultation.



East Devon Local Plan 2020 to 2040
Preferred Options Reg. 18 Further Consultation Draft Plan
Spring 2024

We consulted on a draft local plan from November 2022 to January 2023 that referred to Town
Centre Areas and Primary Shopping Areas. At that stage we suggested possible policy
wording but did not show proposed boundary lines on maps. We are now consulting on:

e The Policy Wording (this has been revised from the previous consultation)
e Town Centre Area Boundaries
e Primary Shopping Area Boundaries

In considering these we would encourage you to look at the consultation commonplace-reg-
18-final-071122.pdf (eastdevon.gov.uk) as this sets out the context for the policy and also to
read our background technical papers - insert link (the topic paper which includes the
methodology and full assessments).

The idea behind Town Centre Areas and Primary Shopping Areas is to protect important
services and facilities at the heart of local communities. These policies will only apply to the
main towns and villages with a large range of shops and services; other policies in the plan will
protect shops and services elsewhere.

The Strategic Policy below sets out the settlements where town centre areas will be identified
and the Town Centre Area and Primary Shopping Area policies will apply. As well as shops,
these areas will offer a wide range of facilities often including: leisure and entertainment; sport
and recreation; offices; cultural spaces and tourism development which are essential for local
communities. In order to help town centres to thrive, we will not usually allow larger scale town
centre uses (based on national planning policy) to be developed elsewhere if town centre
locations are available. The policy also explains how these applications will be dealt with. We
welcome your views as to whether the policy wording is appropriate:

Strategic Policy xx — Town centre hierarchy, sequential approach and impact
assessment

The tier one and two town centres will be the preferred location for the developmentof main
town centre uses as defined in the NPPF. Proposals must be appropriate in terms of their
scale and design to the centre in which they are proposed, as well as the function of the centre
and accord with other policiesin the plan. The hierarchy of centres in East Devon is defined as
follows:

e Tierone Town Centre: Exmouth

e Tiertwo Town Centre: Axminster, Cranbrook (this is subject to the Cranbrook Plan policies),
Honiton, Ottery St Mary, Seaton, Sidmouth

e Tier three Local Centre: Broadclyst, Budleigh Salterton, Colyton, Lympstone, Woodbury

e Tier four Village Centre: Clyst St Mary, Uplyme, Beer, West Hill, Newton Poppleford,
Feniton, Whimple, Kilmington, Otterton, East Budleigh, Stoke Canon, Tipton St John,
Musbury, Sidbury, Chardstock, Broadhembury, Payhembury, Branscombe, Plymtree,
Dunkeswell, Hawkchurch, Exton. Settlements shown in bold text have defined Town Centre
Areas to which town centre developmentpolicy will apply.

Applications for maintown centre uses that are not proposed in the defined town centres and
are not allocated for developmentthrough other policies of this Plan will only be permitted
where the applicantcan demonstrate that:

e The proposal accords with (satisfies) the sequential test as set outin the NPPF, and
page 70



https://eastdevon.gov.uk/media/3724891/commonplace-reg-18-final-071122.pdf
https://eastdevon.gov.uk/media/3724891/commonplace-reg-18-final-071122.pdf

flexibility has been demonstrated on issues such as the format and scale of development.

e For retail proposals greater than 500sg.m, and other town centre use proposals greater than
2,500sg.m, an impactassessment has been undertaken, which shows that the proposal will
not have a significant adverse impact in line with requirements set out in the NPPF, either
alone or cumulatively. Neighbourhood Plans may set different thresholds where local
considerations, supported by evidence, indicate this is appropriate.

¢ Retail developmentwill only be alloned on sites allocated for other uses if equally suitable
alternative provision can be accommodated in the immediate locality.

Edge-of-centre! and out-of-centre sites, which satisfy the sequential test, should be accessible
by public transport, bicycle and foot and well-connected to the centre by these modes. Routes
to the centre should be clearly signed. In order to ensure that land is retained for the benefit of
the local economy, permitted developmentrights allowing changes to alternative uses will be
withdrawn.

Over recent years the national rules have been relaxed to allow a wider range of activities in
town centres and to allow buildings to change between uses without the need for planning
permission. This, combined with changes to the way that people shop and greater online
shopping and home deliveries, has led to fewer shops and leisure uses in town centres. We
are still very keen to ensure that town centres offer a wide range of good quality shopping,
along with other uses and activities to draw in customers and visitors and ensure that
everyone is able to meet their day-to-day shopping needs. We have identified areas within
town centres where most shops are located and where it is particularly important to maintain
retail uses. We will resist changes to non-retail or leisure uses within these ‘Primary Shopping
Areas’. It should be noted that in some cases, the Town Centre Area and the Primary
Shopping Area share the same boundary.

We have drafted new policy wording for the town centres, as set out below. This explains what
we would allow within these areas. We welcome your views as to whether the policy wording
IS appropriate:

Policy xx - Town Centre development

Town Centre Areas and Primary Shopping Areas are defined on the Proposals Map for
the tier one and two towns (excluding Cranbrook which is subject to the policies of the
Cranbrook Plan) and the settlements of Budleigh Salterton, Beer and Colyton.

To ensure that Town Centre Areas are vital and viable, proposals for developmentwill
be permitted where they improve the quality and/or broaden the range of retail and
leisure facilities and enhance the role of the town centres as sustainable shopping and
leisure destinations.

Proposals must not undermine the shopping character or visual amenity of the town
centre, either alone or cumulatively, or adversely affect the amenity of the surrounding
area through noise, smell, litter, traffic or disturbance arising from operating hours.
Development proposals should make a positive contribution to the townscape of the
centre in which it is proposed.

Opportunities to enhance the natural and historic environmentwill be sought wherever
possible.

1 Edge-of-centre locations are defined for retail purposes, as locations that are well connected and within 300
metres of the Primary Shopping Area. For all other main town centres uses, it is a location within 300 metres of a
town centre boundary, howewver for office dewelopment this includes locations outside of the town centre but
within 500 metres of a public transport interchange. Local circumstances should be taken into account when
determining whether a site falls within the definition_of e99_e-of—centre.

page



High quality, safe routes through the town centre will be sought wherever possible,
both for pedestrians and cyclists (to include properly designed and located cycle
parking) and to act as well designed, connected, diverse natural corridors for wildlife.

The Primary Shopping Areas will be the focus for retail and appropriate leisure uses.
Development proposals for other town centre uses within the Primary Shopping Areas
will only be permitted where the majority of the total number of ground floor units in the
Primary Shopping Area are inretail or leisure uses. Unless it can be demonstrated that
there is no longer a retail or leisure demand, other town centre uses (including
residential) will not be permitted on the ground floor within the Primary Shopping
Areas. Evidence of demand should be outlined in a marketing statement. Criteria on
what will be considered an adequate marketing statement will be published and
available online via the Council’s website.

Where change of use of a shop is permitted within the town centre and the shopfront,
entrance or other features are considered to be of architectural or historic merit they
should be retained and incorporated into the new developmentscheme.

Throughout the Town Centre Area appropriately designed development proposals for
residential or community use of upper floors will be encouraged. Such use should be
independently accessed, have provision for refuse storage and should not resultin
adverse impacts on any retail use of the building.

The maps that follow show the areas of land that we think should be designated as
Town Centre Areas and/or Primary Shopping Areas because they are really important
in terms of providing shopping, leisure and associated uses at the heart of local
communities. We think that development in these should enhance the range and
guality of town centre, shopping and leisure facilities.

We include maps of the proposed Town Centre Areas and Primary Shopping Areas in
the remainder of this report and we would welcome your views on whether you think
we have shown appropriate boundaries. If you think that different boundaries would be
more appropriate, please tell us where they should go and why.

page 72




¢ abed

ET
R
AmbSta |
(dis) - -
_ -, vy -
. ‘
2o Filling n
" . Station L

o
Goagn |

o

Rowe:
Houss

Rosamount

A Rosemsunt
1 Gardens

Purzabrook
. House. "

Sk COOMBEFIELD

i
ik Lo

PCs

Car Park

Coombeligkt

. k e RN o i JTCB - e T C B R B FILARY.CL 4 -
- 7 vic!
N ; Lo Castle ol
R Axminster - Town Centre Area & Prlmary Shopplng Area
' -
v The Ol el D T " play Area B R k; 7 o ESS CHARD ROADHILARY GARDENS.
Famhouss, / SRS 3 Path-: . ChORTHSTREET 5 ot 3
Stonay . El 2 L . foplar Moun
s Stoney | Bub St ¢ ; ) s : CarPark . o e s
s Bridge | Mg o biame. LB P, i o Dattags L . - e ’
- . 7 L S ST S S EERES S Axminster *" “HouseThe Corek . T !
i GASTLE HILE. | LT ; o - Hespital - Hangsiy's e !
J e R ; i [ - B N
rossingCatt’ 5 ety e - + » ey . » i
Rt sk s 5 Y, Gandwinehi® o o o Hawse . . R = \ °,
AR e : Sy G Calie bl e Popu}amcﬁ;:&m : ¢
VALE “House A / et e " o House oA
2 a1 ’ Towsr Cottags
- NP i44.25 Whks - InTheDeos. T N Scwrtﬁ
Rt N A - - entre
| “Shiralee Tl
Etheldens | - MAR
o Sears ey A . ; b 1
Coal Yard REET Maws i o  Axe Valley Academ
! it i
' “ il
|
|
/ gy Hovseubiles A ol
Fountain = : Surim K
AXMINSTER NN N
5 B ~ rays Tre-RuRossdale
3 : \ . ; T Danouss
U Dnain ) : \M_am\ . ; i )
! 1
= g i b Car f\ Housd
' : h F \ Sl ) / - 7 Cotlage
\' : & Tourist < i : : N -
X A0 — wnrmalmrr : P X <
= Tlub LYME ROAD ~
? o . ppiegantt e S
& * Churd iy &9 = . e f el : E
Signal Gantey ; % -~y ,.m.;.:su.vE& \ Ty, - “Caompaliy Haudh | S eaer fomaos
; bt e 4 i . T A 2 House A S £ :
e \ o \ Cramiersy Y gy - il 1 nesisosimve | Hisido Church The Laurels:” /5261 Pippins:
3 . \Th o Ca n% Hal w L ¥ ‘Setags y House it Tannars " “-Centre
River Aje: Tt © Ot Caggh-to - s EOOMBE LANE - Nelson tjme House| . Coftage - !
: ; . o "M:.G Toleae T Hause
3 - NRGHS}REEI B

The Elms

Legend
D Town Centre Areas

i : S Primary Shopping Areas St
e = 7“ l 2‘ B £/ ; H -'w.;FA'VR:IELDCL:GSE 7\:',2_‘ LLM.E ?‘FDE;E
- L iy / R Nomit ciogE
lderlair S / W TFOSSEWAY CLOSE I S
fag / T N —— w——Kilometerses ) I NIE
‘ jrrne el oMl 00 0,02 0.04 0.08 0.12 0.16 ' ] Eiy
HNawsnharn WDEPOST LANE Ut 5. L Preswyila o i Sibggkt o =

Town Centre Retail Survey

- Axminster -

© Crown copyright and database rights 2024 Ordnance Survey 100023746



v, abed

=

The Mot

Wiriseolls .

“BERRY LANE [~ |
TBARTON B ) Pine Ridge . -
N 3 GERES) NEW ROAD. Rungalawin: c
Southernhay . . e The, |
Wil Rakaja 2 GP_L I

< Yew Tree Caftage”

El Sub Sta

" |Beer - Town Centre Area & Primary Shopping Area

Beer Hil
Gottag

Clanbani

e
" o . vy

= i LB Tl
. B 74T ;
. o . , - : - | R
S aps R " ottagesl ol 1T B o ! ) ! e Garlands
> ; - Cotagesg s can | . Abstgranga i '
waysice Virginia . T sageconagy pal N ol
i R P B3T4 - ! Bremel Hayes
| — " starre, v X The Mullions ~. | Sugar Hill
oo House - ' LANG HILL -+ Hillside v
. . N % N .
Lian e » “inglenoak -
Collags | . UL Marine A el sep . .
| . s canae | Villas RELVIRK. .
- = A - o oLl
R i “iieuan et ; Shanghai 1
Encsiaigh . e P )
Sunny | Nethercombe s / o d
Bank Barling ' ? * 8t Michacls : o E
= T o ' Gottage " Colebiaaks Hooge dount ! ;
- ! = - . 2 ; " Windyridge
- . Brooklyn Villa X
—  Thurlestone: .
- Glenmore 3 |
i - Dalfall ; Iy . ! ]
— - — Barleyy _ -1 _ D+ — <Pippins " -
. Durstn - . . O SRR T R Geer Haven
. . Hardergraft - Aliawah . . R S g ; : |
| Four g . BARLINE : TTo e Posts
. L winds _ - st Faiths . Rose Cafiages ¢ ¥, :
- - ] T GordonCollages
5 . W R :
- rupion o ) Wyndeliffe : .
! R Higher, | . !
[ g’ Wyndolifre i b y | |
o - - ; " 1 ! ' |
s LT Lavender EI'sub st .Cemetery Chapel . : o
Coftage - Al Syt . Eriarclyst
Adichorageg o ) Bee r . Gordon Terrace ./ Path
. i Grey e .
" Kephala, Tiles Marmora Terrace _ .
R B e Fouran
o d L s i © “Hall
i e DTN A Rl I N [ 8 Cotiages 1 arifs Cottage :
 GonuayOskile- - e ! ST Siite
B arway b . _ | it
X Vincent Car Park Surgery i
- The Gleri . . X
Vagmend. ; - |
sl e .
Fimieigh - NN ! B Ppg $ta Sapview | !
@ o Highfeld Teacs 0 i Koriwacd ; El Sub Sla ' Jubilse
fa i : Gl THE HEABOWS
_ J. ose C puge . . Memorial ) Ledend
. - . - | Ground - Anniss g
Bancrolt ! - - Newlans < [ i 2 “Knob §
Tradawincs L T Na eg S ¥ . seA HILL s . ! i o K
Petersot . i S . HileonHIGHER MEADGYYS G Mon Shalar s D Town Centre Areas |
Gien Devan . o o7 e ;
Sandover: .. - - .
LAnEREAD — Lt L . . .
I S . 1, e o - Primary Shopping Areas ;
Muree R . - T T -, .
. . . L THEMEADOWS 0 - . 4
= . Esgair ®. Terrace : _ ——— - T
- : o - ea View P A LT
= ' - Michelens Westigld g SN 8 b Py
— — Stafford House [ Snelter Landing | . o
- : Wesion y . King's Hold
i T o Kilometers -Heritage stage | TTE
- Stonasourt e ~0 0.0179.035 0.07 0.105 0.14 Centre
Bera wiateh Westert Clevelands JCONMON Li ;

Town Centre Retail Survey
- Beer -

© Crown copyright and database rights 2024 Ordnance Survey 100023746



G/ abed

T T § e o [ - Tennis Cours

S o __ Budleigh Salterton - Town Centre Area & Primary Shopping Area

P N -y T g T e Teage, -
i s . N ! owling L3 P T ' ®
it ~ 1 8 y . : T garden T Legend
- g A : - Fiibgird House*sshs . o e Ingleside el e i
Car Park " o Hat e . S ferd S Gourt; | Frire Sl
. . Lo EfSubsta < asshoppars Court ey ) House | freyamen Town Centre Areas . :
. T T A PR Ll S T S - O L o . Primary Shopping Areas | Iy
. TPWL ! 1 . -ESS. | ‘s _
# . - 1 ! o B - =
N P Creen Mews Lo ! - :
, PR e - '
o . B RS ; I < The Dial House
R Fom - T i g e SO m e cHapELHIL ! : ) i
< Salterton * — - T Palmer- i S - ! Y 2 _
Workshaps - Court | THE Lt P ) : - ’
- . > ; 3 & T T Summerands o G PR — -
[ — E S il bt
sir
Lo Elvestone
b -1 St Peter's = - / =T . -
i o . Church L S [T} RN .

s 0T

Braok House R

T EASTTERRAGE | i E Cen
- : Cesunsta . e

2

L

[ enuren

Gar

| Pabble Lane S
ok T L POPLAR ROW

Qutfall

Shingle . Shingld

' -:-ﬁ—:_Kilometers
o0 0 0.017‘5).03_5 . 0.07 0.105 0.14

Links

Town Centre Retail Survey
- Budleigh Salterton -

© Crown copyright and database rights 2024 Ordnance Survey 100023746



9/ abed

TerThouE
N . Dy : :
| - .
Colyton - Town Centre Area & Primary Shopping Area
Chantry Bridge I - -
| [ - Umborme s
- g o o= — R . Bridge .- -
- - - River Coly - - -- . Brdg ap The Toll House ~ ~ ~
- - — ROAD S
. T - L - — - - R _ - - - - - P .. ! o
. - - — stanclews T | - - STATION = Lo
EEET The Forge Terrace : 2 : -
Wil g , R . I
- | = Marine;Ho ' e il House . e — | L
- , - - ' ' odge P
= e L The Chantry (L Colybank ! Tcwn ML, T - o
] we - fhe Sh K I . d R R [
N - - - it : o ~ | Rose o I i
fannery | — . The Bear ' S ) al - L oy ' apCottage | Raselands Liddens
; Etgub Sta R L - = L Housa 7 I oy Dram Fam
- | N o Chantry e Chantry . ! o bt o [ g @
= (= J Orchard Cottage .- -~ 17! Restofickrow| | RASEMARY LANE - I Y. Y
N - - . o PR L Frsmein N S River ;
R | o e : T sTaNDREWS ST . fouse © Mews:
|1 i [ The i Chantry (KT . SQUAREFoundary el Y 2 * -Roselands Cotfages. L
- i ioj o Cottage Place Ol Grthard A Cotiage.. : S 5 I
- . . AN - syt © . Sivar Hows " — Track
Mabels Gottage Seleen VICARAGE STREET | - Bermy " 2 | g
I * < Hause o i L L L
. ilae. " ff < Andrew's ;
 Athea Colytan House Place St -y ) r v arhview . -
i / < Garten  \Nyweg . Chureh - - o g Gardent =
- ClariantsSt % The 5, Tetface T =+ .A!l"hwspy |g L
Brerewond Shang Piokarngs : ' 2 o
E Old Dairy - 1 ! '3 RCH v Dalphin, ¥ # -
= B T - KING STREET House Heuse, Cotglhe -20“ '
| - - e ! Lo Wheelwright
. ) . & Le St Andrew's : e
i - Richmond Ghurch A DOLPHN STREET
Gardens Warjarie Baker House : George. © ‘o . V. :
| ; 5 R
- It NMalt . Viearage War Clarsmanicantsd Elm Grove -
- > e ; R ™ 2 oy AsaF Terrace . }
- - — enmong Richmand House ( ;O I : Y I O N s\, s Fee Sy Path (um)
o ) £ A Maringh EBellowar Tysons s o -
Termave ; Hargay ™/ Jlotng Chambers P ; 2
s : {ca . Cwithian old v N .
Victaria Cottage et - \ ermnaid House
LA N Ho . The Old Bakary!em a1 House The .
Beiinda o Appledors U * Couit Cotisgs Wit ®
Sunnyside. Ly e e g ! o e Cottage
I . St AndreisC . LR
; . The Laurels Closer /. . Endwel
e, 0ld ColirlHouse | N SN |
‘en - . b i . i
 Quinee ST chuRe sTREET ’ ‘
il ! P e Bull's Caurt 3 .
; |
hl PCs | ’
1 Gm’fe ‘ Car Park '
TelEx 2 ) QUEENS - -
: (24 SQUARE
Garton : 3 ¥
House
Calylol
“Thg Ot g BT Cetage. Bulls Court FE
Vi A T uEENS COUR ——
g Fumsourt
Fome Great House ]
isieth Eitgela e Catipe - 1 e i ? .
SCHOGL UAKE =y 1 il Giub PR, A
e ‘ Rupeck e AR : . . “-| Legend
Chonsnesun”_YeorErs J ) Hause  Biooklickd - N S :
: ST : : - : : L
. . 5 L Keg } > N |:| Town Centre Areas
g L Flintstone : R AT ; . o ;
menoioft L i CFFe jwnt Gotage e T ST ) RS o . . X
i ; Swimming Pool CoftagaHaze! : s i ar oo Sunnymead - L B o Primary Shopping Areas
v E : Rosdire- 5 Grey Walls Ko N R
i (covered) - .- i 5 N sd S Fomeland o E Ty, . e 0o - )
9 ", . N / § 7 T April Cottace, h 3 . .
St Leonard's’. < , . o 8 & + P g - - P R
Terrace’ Primary School S e K‘lometerswca o L o
Upper B Colyten ¢ ssrookrietoorQ) 0.01790.035 0.07 0.105 0.14 o T PO . ) : 7 . - —
mn S e D vunays SOUINSTREET ~ pip R . i

Town Centre Retail Survey

- Colyton -

© Crown copyright and database rights 2024 Ordnance Survey 100023746




) ) abed

Exmouth
Town Centre Area & Primary Sh
o Lo :

opping Are

a .
I

ﬂuﬁﬂ"ﬁ

= =
S
|

* Sports Gentro

Legend
D Town Centre Areas
S Primary Shopping Areas

Kilometers .-
. -0 0025005 0.1 0.15 02 '

Town' Centre VRetaiI Survey
- Exmouth -

© Crown copyright and database rights 2024 Ordnance Survey 100023746




g/ abed

' a i Ca
NORTHGOTE ==~ et G " ; . y \ S
; R N S P P T . ot e R ¥ .
: S o Hall VER STREE e RNy s ROMAN RoAgeS SPERET
; e S M, X*B I
g . R : [y e L StPauls Y .1 E - P
- 2 - : i L - Ersun sta. “Church - T N i
_ . CPasts 1 N ; » s : .
X = - EISupgR  WINE PASSAGE el i % hurch <" #
- - . g Weatheill Caurt ) TC P e T e g
;. S~ . . N i € Q  “aiton Sisib st v
f Car Park _ . . , e Phace R -
g = AN . Dolggin Ct LA \ a " ey §
R o : B posis, . : HIGH STREET . zh R s
. ~, 0 : War el gy, & ; . = i v
5 Posts \ g \ pH - — S, '
2 . g o \ \ e < : S A Swm i
RS - h r The . " o = -y - L - 4
, HeQiidm S SRS TN T S0
2f S L \ \ Wy - w %10 schoot. : -, R . 5 i T -
Victoria Terr Bl 3 Church \ CENTRA: PLPN 2 \ \ *g;; COURT 8 .- 3 o e B oo Ry <
v A - ~ SR - S : o o L e : - . L
" >l e e \ . : ) ¥
! : % . *Coach :
.. House
C ; . e N CRCHARD WAY : "
\ B T Gl e ;
FB : 7 ¢ o Courley Hou g © MP 154.5
el ? .
GALLERY
cLOSE g i
N Vilwe g b B
< Ve STRE
DGR COEENSTREET ...
- LAl - . e
o . car
» o ark sL

N e

% | KINGSTERIACE
3 inat !

i

L ehapel .

o T Wi
Flkasey T Vwings

*, Sansom's
Terrace

Kiigs News 1

", Works.

epot

Honiton - Town Centre Area & Primary Shopping Area

LW Sl = Car
\ ~CLOSE
Depot ° .57 = . Park
* ! . i |:| Town Centre Areas
o i 2 L ! JERRARD 3
" E Garage o 0l s . i Primary Shopping Areas
-t B R o L Playground 1 s |
- w1 Brdge a2 - JERRARD. CLOSE | JERRARDGRESCENT _-- CHOSE . " a
: b House ', " a - ' . - :
2, i ; HANSFORD ¥
S Builders GOURT; ; i iseot 1 s o
‘ e [ - 3 Westcofl e . ;

g Whitsist

e

- Pogasus Hoilss

irary

Claywell "

[
JERRARD, -

Legend

Town Centre Retail Survey
- Honiton -

© Crown copyright and database rights 2024 Ordnance Survey 100023746



6/ abed

m?&ACE

- 7 [ HOAD.:
e

1= N
The  Homevile
Donrithornas

E|

. - . Hidgsrd
ST it Fairview & _“ :
L LyntonZe” - Place K

EL e
2 Rose Gott:
ai 45 Rose Cott,

18, o PERTes P
E - i X T / .E‘Suhsﬁa
Fan ! : NS I
[ S, - 3 T N G
Oter Mill FL A8 "“ 3 L .i“ﬂ‘::ﬂ'_b- - e
; LT Y . - . ‘ Z L TIPRI - SN p -7 ' LoNsDOGS LANE
" . ¥ X 2 T ey T i ' | i %h R »
[rUMBLING WEIR WY . -~ HosSOP, h ’ g A T . AL Longdogs Glose [T e :
Tl ¥ P L Chiirch. T X i Ul . - R - s :
oy “Underclifie I s N T View E . : R St - = H -
T Skl — il oo * FRANKILFA Cl DSE . w
e i . o d ;
Ol ) . : 2 JE T, Tie Legend
| - R T s k
- < Ty BT SAVIOURS ROAD .-
BT T MILLOROFT, = S w3 Copsa . ,
“ " Midhoria Terraga 1 11 e e z ol ; N . A Town Centre Areas
- R - e it " T P s o Bayford
g 8 5 At . S R i i el Holsg
Storis 1. L BPENCRE et COPSe: S e S Primary Shopping Areas
i - ! Coyrt= Sauth - - , :
S . &y = 4 Bty ! < "Merridene’ i :
,E - : U s 8 S : Y _ : SIDNOUTH ROBradieigh Ené 8% ST REGETT ETTspt
S e . T L T ———— s Kilometers. - ’
oeeT robe. RVERSIOE oyt HicHLano0 0.0? 0.04\ . 0.08 0‘.12 - 0.16 ot

- . A [ . Stone [l L R T L e Y 3 i - Dormans.
N y
3 o - - - -
' T - ttery t Mary - Town Centre Area Prlmary hopplng Area
Ll - T == -
: A : - T T - T — Tdgewar T T T T —
: 7 P S N K : E L : - ot S R i T orenard
P ; . ; . . R, ; ECAR
Ladge. ; Chanter's 2 Yy 8 GARDEN: RCR
§ 1 FB i rosa . |t : oo ., GHRDE " ELsub Sia
. ! i L ) - TONSEONt  RiDGEWAY B e :
Ottary End T y L . :
| I
. ! Stone - o - I
Z N [y [T
[, g ;
o 4 s = 7
! ! B < ' Y 0 StMary's )
! i ) I /!, Church .
o Car Park Sy N I i - 4
i . - | ! | Vidar Merml [~ ERBOKDALE
S T S | | Stocks' - R Y & :
ATl - | i 2 Pann s 1E ¢ 3 1 o 53, .
- : pord . THECOLLEGE . Ly, SANDHILLSTREET®. Highar s
[ S [T = i - - S Brapklands’ - D
i fi . | - - - - L4 BROGKLAND . o et - FEATHERS CLOSE
E T Snks warddms | g : e ! x
T . T Maunl, or L%
1 Houso o s Sehool ' ston Fiemmon . eopie e
: ) Vicarage tsite 0 L Tomasat RN R T
‘ cotei i - Brookland -
; i B - Brooklang: Terrace | 2* Milas yonder Corner
Tumbling - - - K - ST A TR e S
[wVeir Hotel . L pest S e o
e 1 PlayAea | L b pod BATTS.
1 - Health Cenire c‘“‘ 'ﬁa i = e (1] Bunny _—_— car i
cookenle o eaiiaan iy Comer / wT LANE oy * Park Sherman’House
s Carnan - ' ) ? el oy
' Past o o R ETREET PHBrwks\fJe House " -Post S "
; i Mews i z d a5t i
T e L S :
; — rc [ .
o T H
g TRaleigh  ° StAnthony " 3 W =
Humbling Housd o -
Weir Court” R B

Haven

VONDER CLOSE S
Taio e

Tl s L. Orchard Hil
[t:4 . N

e

. ; P
g : S RN

The Qrehard
P -

Town Centre Retail Survey
- Ottery St. Mary -

© Crown copyright and database rights 2024 Ordnance Survey 100023746




08 abed

no e :
MEADQW ROAD!™

by gy 8
Cnedlngtﬂn%a"ﬂ- L

Wi iy
e FLEET COURT

;7 Cfeeve

Play
(IR

Manar 1
Close | R3N7S

ashley ; i,
THouse S

“Hawdanby -
““Stanhope House -

b FORE §1REET

K\r\g&wav

S ROAD
ARSH

i oRfimesn

B - R snm }
SEAFIELD ROAD “'Seafield and Festival -
P . Gardens, .o

Playaround

Pavilion

% Bowling

; . ¥ A s' nGr;vnI e
g o pn s Pavilion: -

Rediands . - €1 5ub Sta T&lw

Area Playing Field | ~
L Twrs

-, Skatepark:

Picnic

Car Park By Area

-

_dgmgsclmj .

JARBOLR ROAD

RSl Hil 4 Lo B"“”“ﬂ"’- i i | Homebaye * C{ay
Houser Castie 2 eRmem 2% T House [
Shnew, " GASTLEHlLLEottage -~ Cllf g =
v Hsheot 'EAF\mm“:ytE“ge s N e
S = wastington - Shelers- . B
; “Pandaan ‘. | House - g - — - =
EEC y : _ ESPLANADE
T Looo-- Posts L - - - I - - — LT == =
e - (= = - = E - — e =
o L e = f— s
- Seaton Beach Shingle
et Wtk < R - - - — - -
T Shingle
T R ) Kilometers - - -
e T 0 0025005 0.1 0.15 0.2
o Weter

%ﬂ?’

Neréembe Caur

aEEr

Riverside '
Depot

il lehol 1z,

‘ | Riverside Workshops

“ RIVERSIDE vy |

IS - —
, : Works

Harbaur Mews
h s

= nr

B3vE

[ [ Y I M
1 MTF =y

4

Al KORD ™

Legend s |
D Town Centre Areas C o
S Primary Shopping Areas

Town Centre Retail Survey
- Seaton -

© Crown copyright and database rights 2024 Ordnance Survey 100023746



= T el

* = Maybury

ST Sidmouth
. |Town Centre Area & Primary Shopping Area | |

e
TR TR T T T T T ™ T N
b . - . . Tl 4 Esutnmhgda\e Coltage Emmak\ - ol o
+ ] {VICARAGEROAD -t - ) | Enst Dnle o1t pad Oak - = 7 Red Waples | |
L vt ‘Hall - Pine Cotiags | - \iestlea 4 .. EIsiubsta
-0 — : - - - - ABANORRYENLE e - el sttopae M
' - i Xk fe . salcombe CLOSH
' Garage 4 wentens hblE Legend o cotage |
i o D Town Centre Areas e
- - | TcB ; . .
~Shelter L Cappanwell
- ! ’ L ! S Primary Shopping Areas SO
) ERfild 17 Salcomb Y ppPINg -
GLose - - .

e
HILLSIDE ROAD

| } B R | | r
ok | 1 Cambridge Terr ?‘F’Zﬂ BN [P, Béhvecere |
- o Gable Lt saloomEE ROAD o Tefrace, | - Ll Lodae - o -
iy j-l»kuc Gbie Raduay Lodo _ EROAD | EITACE, parmingin ‘vma Com odga- !
= 1 D T i y [ 4 ; !
T e e ! i A 3 . B
. Ky el 2 Gantens, , i 0 ’ ! - Amberleigh ' ! o
g aven_ oty 2 s I - |
=) - ‘l’ldvkhr ~oilly_?_ u.u‘ ~ - furpan oD Eal_c.amhe Mcv-‘ﬁ“ ; Ll
. C:oslcr _ \Ix;«‘ ! 7 Barrington Mead ! | ~ I
O Beariiay Dene-"" it ST .

Martiets| — Chan

= J— B i Y i )
| RIS o : - = Trevalyan
. Lo ““Ghureh 57
o " } - '
|- Cedar Shadz [ Vicarage, -
‘| Green Gables| | | o
5 . 0 | Cambe
* AL SAINTS ROAD T Lol : - sakombe-
- ; | " 1L oo : - T et -
- - ‘Rose Lawn . . Honeysuckie Housever There
, Dunarg 1 Blackmore View , . tio L Y eee . '
Dunard’ <. 8eh \‘ e Ve B
- : Ny 4 b v LT yre  Egypt
R T . ) nr s g Myrtle Terf K e Favp overo
T E - i . Bl ) oghands L | ; . wertau:
25" Patan Haddon Hall : ) 5 shrands B P
y .~ Penmans. - M&¥Tgrrace Cherny Ha PR e ‘I A Myrio Ladgo . | | *LitleROAD N
i N OLMDALE I o - i 3 -
S Sidmouth Victoria e ! PR e | Pomary
: Hospital (hd . " Healtn - gt THOLMOALE. ™. o 4 P 1T Rivermeac i SEATLANDS il
R L et W, | | - Beaflands ~| 4.
. - L R ! . | Collage | |/
b A TNy A Al - - .7
o < e Shelsley. House: -
. 2 > BLAGKMORE i Lo e
i Stand i MTCERLA T = ot “ sty oot
SEELAN : LTurs . ) - iy -
FosELANDS . .y ’ bosts | ! \
e : Blackmore Field - Tennis Courts | ; S
s A .

.. Car Park

"7 Sparts Pavilion, oz
f Heydon's Lane

LT co
RIVERSIDE RoADRver Sid -

. 3 . - " :
“Hall Heydon's Lane Church Path 1 Cedil :
§ ! B Lo . Church Rati’ ' The Blackmore: Terrace RIvE15ide Holsk
B - Sports Pavilion L B i
o  ROSELANDS - [ I i
R o . Coburg I, irfieldTarn
. The QI Chancel " Flats
' ~UFs T Ground 1l i
Ny . Lot Church Lane™ - - " \ Tor Hayes .
. At T : . Church Lafe < - b T dale - -
/ 4 Bowling Graen > : . - P Garpan - -
ose’ EOBURG TERRACE - '
i sy
ey S ) o €1 8ub Sta :
< Amyatt's Legg?;‘ds Yot [ Ruan House
N T Terrace y s L
copiie b N Lakes. PALIES N
 RGAD' ; S Abiff Place -, A : A
Barton . : Lol a Tourist
S e . - - Iformation TOWN ERA
i Aurora . ; i Centre - .
P . N 0, F Lentre. i Shimadd
- North Garth T Hall N ; yoh Galg: h N A : Overthorpe
Court b ! Church EASTSTREET Swimming | FRecreation Bnrdn;e N |
Mus - ¥ e B
{ : Roal Ground ; A
; Tee . Anchor . i H
[D.a"-ﬂ; s Putting Green Inn (PHY B
DA 5 e ey A Qar Park Salcombe Hil -
2T e T o g N & ar Park_ .- * s Gl
LB T Harstan WCH STREET * F. - Sub P " shingle
- EET ‘. PCs .. Barton . ) s ﬁ . St = R TANE |
[TERRACE e ERE Y B PL ORI = = " i ol
o Co.urt; - Tudor tews * Fross NE : .“K.%.RLET " Shingld
S o A p y P '
ot <. Tudar Hof e .
. L CHAPEL ST y 4
. . gl S z LB E
e I i . DovE e e 3 Landing Stage
Sports Pavil ?:bbi\mg‘d o L Sibaans Veraidah Cntl‘ag; \ ~ Royalvork 4 i, - fhaas o W
ourt ; . :
ports Pavilion X e edfendCourVerandsh Cote 5 and * E¥eik Torrace- Sipany .
: Courls . Faulkner-Hotal
i g B Ktk Gotiage St PetBE Cout TGt ) Shingle -
T U R v Hotel S :
edord Flats -~ square T DevoranElizabet “Slipuay Shingie - :
: Kingswoad b . i
A PH . - g Hotel Lo . - !
. Sussex T HotelGHAPCL RO, o -
“Housd L jara . "
Joricket Field B :Riviera
Car Park Shingle
T . | " bt Figh Weter
;! . diin Lo 1 Kilometers
e 0 002004 0.08 0.12 0.16

Town Centre Retail Survey
- Sidmouth -

© Crown copyright and database rights 2024 Ordnance Survey 100023746

page 81



It should be noted that the proposed consultation text and maps may be subject to
minor changes prior to the consultation. These will be limited to typographical or other
corrections and improvements to the clarity of the maps/text.

Financial implications:

There are no direct financial implication resulting from the report.

Legal implications:

There are no direct legal implications resulting from the report.

page 82



East Devon Local Plan
Evaluation of Town Centre and Retail Policy Boundaries
and the threshold for the Sequential Test

September 2023

This report evaluates town centre and retail policy boundaries and the threshold at which the
sequential test should apply. It will inform the draft of the new East Devon Local Plan.

Contents
1 o (3T 1T ) o S 2
P22 =10 = I o ] (o] USSR 2
National Planning Policy and Government Strategy ..........cccceereeerieeeiieeeenieessiiee e 2
Use Classes Order ChanQES .........cocuiieeiiiuiiie ettt e st e e e aaee e e e saaee e e e naaae e e ennees 6
3 East Devon CUrrent POSITION .........coiiuiiee i eiiiiie s ssiieee e siiee e steeee e e ssssneessssseeeessnnseeeeaas 7
Issues and Options Consultation SPring 2021 .........ccueeieiiiiiiee i 8
Draft Local Plan Consultation WINter 2022.............couiuieeeiiiiieeeeeiiieeeesieeeessseeee e ssssseee s snneees 9
CoNSUltAtioN SPriNG 2024 ........oo ittt et b e e nnbe e e nnnneas 10
EVIENCE BASE ...ttt ettt e e e e e e e et e e e s et e e e e e e e nraeeeennraeeeaanns 10
Y=o (U= g 1T I = USRS 11
4 Town Centre and Primary Shopping Area ASSESSMENLS........cccuveeeeeeeeieiiiiiieeeeee e e e eeeerveeeens 12
Evaluation of BoundarieS at AXMINSTEN..........oueiiiiiee e eiee e esieee e sieee e saree e e s sneaeeeeanes 15
Evaluation of BOUNdArieS at BEET .........cccocuiiiiiiiiiiie e e e e e e eneae e e anes 19
Evaluation of Boundaries at Budleigh Salterton .............cccoceiiiieiiiiiee e 23
Evaluation of Boundaries at CranbrooK .............c.ceoiiiiiiiieiiieiesie e 27
Evaluation of Boundaries at COIVION............uuieiiiiiiiiciieeee et e e e e 28
Evaluation of Boundaries at EXMOULN.............cooiiiiiiiiic e 32
Evaluation of Boundaries at HONION .........c..ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiieee i esiiee e e nneaee e 36
Evaluation of Boundaries at Ottery St IMarY .........cooceioiiiiiniie e 40
Evaluation of Boundaries at S@atON ..........cccueeiiiiiiiiieiiiii e 44
Evaluation of Boundaries at SidmMOULN ...........cooiiiiiiiiiii e 48
(@] o 11557 0] LSRR TPPRRTTPRIN 52
APPENDIX 1- Summary of Responses to the Issues and Options Consultation................... 53
APPENDIX 2- Summary of Responses to the Draft Local Plan Consultation ........................ 57
APPENDIX 3- Methodology for Town Centre Policy Evaluation .............cccccevoiiiiieniinieenne 59
APPENDIX 4- Sequential Test Impact Assessment Threshold............c.ccccceeieiiiiieniiieenne, 64

page 83



11

1.2

1.3

1 Introduction

Town centres are literally at the heart of East Devon communities and are essential to
ensuring that resident’s everyday needs are met as locally as possible. Town centres
have always demonstrated resilience to change, overcoming challenges from increased
car ownership, out of town retail parks, the rise of supermarkets and an increase in
online banking and access to public services, but they now face unprecedented
pressure.

Retailing has for many years been the core activity in town centres but the pandemic, on
top of loss of footfall due to increasing online purchases and slow recovery from the 2008
financial crisis and recession, has led to widespread concern about the future of town
centre shops and facilities, and particularly High Streets.

This topic paper considers the current situation in East Devon and justifies the policies of
the emerging Local Plan. It provides an assessment of boundaries for town centre and
retail policies and explains why the national sequential test threshold is inappropriate and
a lower threshold is justified in East Devon.

2 National Position

2.1

2.2

National Planning Policy and Government Strategy

Relevant legislation is set out in the overarching Town and Country Planning Act 1990
and the Planning Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Local planning authorities are required to address the requirements set out in National
planning guidance in preparing their local plans, namely the National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF, December 2023) and supporting National Planning Policy Guidance
(NPPG). At the heart of the National Planning Policy Framework is a presumption in
favour of sustainable development, which should be seen as a golden thread running
through both plan-making and decision-taking. The NPPF provides that ‘planning policies
and decisions should support the role that town centres play at the heart of local
communities by taking a positive approach to their growth, management and adaptation’
(paragraph 85). Table 1 summarises the requirements of the NPPF and NPPG to achieve
this.

Table 1 Summary of National Planning Policy Requirements

National Planning Policy Framework Summary Reference
Define a network and hierarchy of town centres 90 a)
Promote their long-term vitality and viability — by allowing them to grow and 90 a)

diversify in a way that can respond to rapid changes and reflects their
distinctive characters

Allow a suitable mix of uses including housing 90 a)
Define the extent of town centres and primary shopping areas, and make 90 b)
clear the range of uses permitted in such locations, as part of a positive

strategy

Retain and enhance existing markets and, where appropriate, re-introduce 90 c)

or create new ones

page 84




Allocate a range of suitable sites in town centres to meet the scale and type 90 d)

of

development likely to be needed, looking at least ten years ahead

Apply a sequential test to planning applications for main town centre uses 90 e)

that are not proposed in an existing centre

Where town centre sites are not available, allocate well connected edge of 90 e)

centre sites and other appropriate sites for main town centre uses

Recognise that residential development often plays an important role in 90 f)

ensuring the vitality of centres and encourage housing on appropriate sites

National Planning Policy Guidance (NPPG) (as updated 18 September 2020)

Provide a positive vision or strategy for town centres 2b-002-
20190722

Strategies should be based on evidence of the current state of town centres 2b-004-

and take full account of relevant market signals and identify relevant sites, 20190722

actions and timescales. Strategies should be prepared where a town is in

decline to manage this positively to encourage economic activity and

achieve an appropriate mix of uses.

Improvements to the public realm, transport (including parking) and 2b-004-

accessibility should be provided. 20190722

The strategy should take full account of relevant market signals when 2b-004-

planning for town centres and should keep their retail land allocations under 20190722

regular review. These market signals should be identified and analysed in

terms of their impacts on town centres. This information should be used to

inform policies that are responsive to changes in the market as well as the

changing needs of business.

The health of town centres should be assessed against defined indicators?. 2b-006-
20190722

2.3

2.4

The NPPF 2018 removed the expectation for local authorities to define primary and

secondary frontages within their town centres.

The NPPF definitions will be used in this paper. These are set out in Table 2.

Table 2 Most relevant NPPF definitions

Term Definition

Edge of centre For retail purposes, a location that is well connected to, and

up to 300 metres from, the primary shopping area. For all
other main town centre uses, a location within 300 metres of
a town centre boundary. For office development, this
includes locations outside the town centre but within 500
metres of a public transport interchange. In determining
whether a site falls within the definition of edge of centre,
account should be taken of local circumstances.

1 Defined indicators refers to: proportion of vacantstreet level property; commercial yields on non-domestic
property; customers’ views and behaviour;retailer representation and intentions to change representation;
commercial rents; pedestrian flows; accessibility; perception of safety and occurrence of crime and state of
town centre environmental quality.

page 85




Main Town Centre Uses

e Retail development (including warehouse clubs and factory
outlet centres);

e Leisure;

e Entertainment and more intensive sport and recreation
uses (including cinemas, restaurants, drive-through
restaurants, bars and pubs, nightclubs, casinos, health and
fitness centres, indoor bowling centres and bingo halls);

e Offices; and

e Arts, culture and tourism development (including theatres,
museums, galleries, or a combination of the two)

Out of centre

A location whichis not in or on the edge of a centre but not
necessarily outside the urban area.

Out of town

A location out of centre that is outside the existing urban
area.

Primary shopping area

Defined area where retail development is concentrated.

Town centre

Area defined on the local authority’s policies map, including
the primary shopping area and areas predominantly occupied
by maintown centre uses within or adjacent to the primary
shopping area. References to town centres or centres apply
to city centres, town centres, district centres and local
centres but exclude small parades of shops of purely
neighbourhood significance. Unless they are identified as
centres in the development plan, existing out-of-centre
developments, comprising or including main town centre
uses, do not constitute town centres.

2.5 Withregard to their strategy, the Government position, even pre-covid, is that
‘transformation’ is necessary if town centres are to thrive, but the type of intervention
required to achieve this will vary from place to place. Without intervention there are risks:

Low incentive to invest

Empty streets

Loss of high streets’ retail offer/employment
Rundown image & decay

Vacuum, fragmentation, hollowing out
Loss of the heart of places & communities

2.6 In recent years the Government has produced or endorsed a number of proposals for
positive transformation. This started with the Portas Review of 2011, which set a vision
for the future intended to ‘breathe life back into the High Street’. In response to this, in
order to enable the High Street to quickly adapt and addressing the problem of vacancy
and stagnation, changes to the planning system were introduced in 2015 which allowed
for greater flexibility and changes between the use classes as permitted development.
This was followed by ‘Our Plan for the High Street’ as part of the Budget in 2018, which
promised Government funding through the ‘Future High Streets Fund’ in order for High
Streets to focus on users ‘experience’, making them more convenient, acting as a focus
for services and engendering a sense of community.

2.7 In 2019 the High streets and town centres in 2030 (parliament.uk) report helpfully set out

a vision for town centres which will act as:

e Activity-based community gathering places
e Retail is a smaller part of a wider mix

page 86



https://publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm201719/cmselect/cmcomloc/1010/1010.pdf

2.8

Green space, leisure, arts/culture, health & social care services, housing
Space for social & community interactions

The Build Back Better High Streets Paper is the Government's most recent strategy,
building on the 2019 vision but also considering how high streets and town centres can
adapt and thrive after the COVID-19 pandemic. The plan sets out five key priorities to
achieve the vision of having “vibrant high streets where communities are at the heart of
place-making; where a mix of commercial and residential uses complement each other;
and where businesses large and small feel welcome.” The plan does not provide any
major new policy steer or resources to support high streets.

The five priorities are:
Breathing new life into empty buildings;

o Planning flexibilities around change of use; enabling vacant commercial premises to
be demolished and a new development right to convert empty shops, restaurants and
offices into homes.

e £150m community ownership fund to enable communities to take over local
community assets such as pubs, theatres and post offices.

e Encouraging councils to use Compulsory Purchase Orders for more effective land
assembly to facilitate growth.

e Intention to reform legislative frameworkto ensure local areas have access to
delivery vehicles to support growth and regeneration.

Supporting High Street businesses;
e Commitmentin principle to make temporary pavement licence measures permanent.
e 12 month extension to temporary permissions for off-sales alcohol

o Legislation to ring-fence debt that has been accrued from March 2020 for tenants
who have been impacted by covid-19 business closure

e Working with BIDs to improve stakeholder engagement
e Hospitality-led regeneration hubs, with demonstrators
e Green guide for SME retailers

Improving the public realm;

e Focus on accessible and green infrastructure
e Manual for Streets to be published in 2022

e Government to choose 12 non-London local authorities for intensive investment in
mini-Holland cycle schemes

e Local transport authorities being asked to produce Bus Service Improvement Plans
by the end of October

Creating safe and clean spaces;

e Litter bin grant scheme

e Increased enforcementon litter, graffiti and gum.

e New delivery model for probation service focussed on visible community pay back.
Celebrating pride in local communities.

e Cultural Investment Fund
o Transforming Places Through Heritage programme

page 87


https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1003618/High_Streets_Strategy_accessible_web.pdf

29

2.10

» Office for Place to be established by MHCLG focussed on design quality within the
planning system.

e Local celebrations to be led by local authorities to engage communities and local
high streets.

Most of the resources to deliver the ‘place’ centred actions above will come from existing
announcements including Future High Streets Fund, Welcome Back Fund, Community
Ownership Fund, Town Deals and the forthcoming Levelling Up Fund and Community
Renewal Fund.

There is a suggestion that further relaxations of guidance on change of use and more
encouragement of Local Authorities to use Compulsory Purchase powers for persistently
derelict buildings or to progress stalled regeneration schemes will be

introduced. Undertaking physical regeneration and site assembly in town and city
centres has frequently been a cost prohibitive issue for many Local Authorities —
especially if the final uses of any regeneration have lower end use classes and land
values than the previous retail use.

Use Classes Order Changes

211

2.12

2.13

Complementing the Governments approach to transforming town centres, in recent years
there have been changes to the classifications of certain use categories, and the scope
for changing use, which s relevant to this report. The Town and Country Planning (Use
Classes) (Amendment) (England) Regulations 2020 (SI 2020 No.757), which were made
on 20 July 2020 and took effect on 1 September 2020, made important changes to the
already much amended 1987 Use Classes Order. In summary the Regulations introduced
three new use classes:

Class E (Commercial, business and service) — including retail, restaurant, office,
financial/professional services, indoor sports, medical and nursery uses along with “any
other services which it is appropriate to provide in a commercial, business or service
locality”;

Class F.1 (Learning and non-residential institutions) — including non-residential
educational uses, and use as a museum, art gallery, library, public hall, religious
institution or law court; and

Class F.2 (Local community) — including use as a shop of no more than 280 sgm mostly
selling essential goods, including food and at least 1km from another similar shop, and
use as a community hall, area for outdoor sport, swimming pool or skating rink.

Parts A and D of the original Schedule to the Use Classes Order have been entirely
deleted, with Use Classes Al, A2, A3, parts of D1 and D2 subsumed into new Use Class
E along with Class B1.

Changes of use within this new Class E will not constitute development and will not
require planning permission. This new flexibility is not linked to spatial considerations
and therefore will apply both to high streets and all town centre uses located outside of
centres. The government has said that the main driver of change has been the need to
enable a repurposing of buildings on high streets and town centres. The new Class E
allows for a mix of uses to reflect changing retail requirements. It will allow a building to
be used flexibly by having several uses taking place concurrently or by allowing different
uses to take place at different times of the day. The Government will also allow
commercial buildings within the Class E use to be converted into homes via prior
approval. Under the new permitted development right, local authorities will only be able
to refuse applications on limited grounds including flooding risk, noise pollution and
inadequate natural light. Homes produced will have to meet national space standards.

page 88



The right will be available on premises of less than 1,500sq m in size, and only for
premises that have been vacant for three months prior to the date of applications.
Buildings must have been in the E use class for 2 years. In addition, whilst there is
additional protection for conservation areas, the permitted development right will still
apply in these areas. There will also be additional criteria to assess the loss of health
centres and nurseries.

2.14 The new concept of 'Local Community' uses — Class F2 — has been introduced to ensure

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

important community facilities are protected through the planning system. Again, changes
of use within this class do not require planning permission. Certain uses have now
become sui generis uses, with the effect that no changes of use to or from these uses fall
within permitted development. These include pub/drinking establishment (A4), hot food
takeaway (A5), venue for live music (D2), cinema (D2(a)), concert hall (D2(b)) and bingo
hall (D2(c)).

East Devon Current Position

Based on size, population and shopping facilities, East Devon has eight towns:

* AXminster;

* Budleigh Salterton;

* Cranbrook;

* Exmouth;

* Ottery St Mary;

* Honiton;

» Seaton; and

« Sidmouth

Which are assessed in this report, along with the small town/large village of Colyton and
the village of Beer which both have an extensive range of shops for their size. The Local
Plan establishes a hierarchy of settlements based on their role and function- tiers one
and two comprise settlements with a range of shopping facilities but not all of the tier 3
and 4 villages contain a range of shops and those that don’t are not the focus of this
report.

Each of these towns supports a town centre (although at Cranbrook the planned centre
is not yet fully established). Colyton is the smallest of the East Devon towns (it could be
considered a large village) and it has the least facilities of the centres listed. The village
of Beer, although slightly smaller than Colyton, actually supports more shops, with a
number of these most likely to be viable on account of the busy tourist trade.

With the exception of Cranbrook, (and to a lesser degree Colyton and Budleigh
Salterton) the town centres of East Devon provide facilities to meet most of the everyday
needs of the resident populations of those towns and of surrounding rural hinterlands. A
range of shops are found in these centres along with supermarkets and a diverse
selection of social and community facilities. Independent shops are comparatively
common in East Devon towns. For much larger sized shops and a bigger selection, as
well as major recreational and cultural venues and such destinations as major sporting
facilities, residents of East Devon would need to leave the District (2019 Avison Young
study (Retail Assessment)). Link to the East Devon Website to be added once the
evidence is uploaded

As identified by the Government nationally, the role and function of East Devon’s town
centres is shifting away from retail uses. The last ten years has seen the decline of
traditional shops selling comparison goods as these products can often be bought more
conveniently online — bulky white goods, electronics, books and increasingly, fashion and
footwear. Nationally town centre footfall has reduced by about 30% in the past 10 years

page 89



3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

as shoppers increasingly view items in physical shops but purchase through the internet.
This can be quick and convenient, but it reduces the viability of physical shops and in
turn reduces the availability of goods and services to those without the internet, without
electronic banking or without the means to access alternative out-of-town shops.

Whilst East Devon’s High Streets are still relatively vibrant (there are fewer vacant units
and more independent shops than the national average 10.3 %- (High Streets and Town
Centres 2030 report
https://publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm201719/cmselect/cmcomloc/1010/report-
summary.html) the traditional anchor town centre uses such as banks, clothing shops
and pubs have closed many outlets. Where vacant shops have been taken over, they
are often filled by cafes and coffee shops and health and beauty businesses — nall
salons, hairdressers, tattoo parlours and barbers — all offering experiences rather than
products. Higher numbers of vacant units and new uses with ‘blank’ frontages or visits by
appointment are unattractive to shoppers and reduce the interest and bustle generated
by diverse window displays enticing passers-hy, although by-appointment businesses
can be an excellent way to bring upper floors into use.

Currently, the adopted Local Plan Policy E9 Town Centre Vitality and Shopping Areas
provides the overarching policy relating to retail provision in the current defined town
centres, Policy E10 establishes Primary Shopping Frontages (within which permission
will not normally be granted for the change of use of ground floor premises from retail to
non-retail uses unless it can be demonstrated that this would not be harmful to the
existing character or primary shopping function of the area) and Policy E11 requires a
sequential approach to be taken to ensure that town centres remain the preferred
location for new retail development. Other policies address smaller, neighbourhood
centre shops, rural retail and loss of village shops and services.

Policy in the adopted Local Plan aims to ensure that changes of use within the shopping
frontages of town centres take place without undermining their retail function. The policy
recognises that space in shopping frontages can usefully be taken up by non-retail uses.
Such uses can add to the variety, attractiveness and economic activity of the centre, but
only so long as they do not concentrate within the primary shopping area so that the
retail character of the immediate area is not undermined and does not deter the
movement of shoppers in a particular direction within the centre.

Issues and Options Consultation Spring 2021

To inform the new Local Plan, an Issues and Options consultation was undertaken in
January 2021. The Council explored through consultation « How we might promote
greater use of vacant upper storeys above ground floor shops. « Whether we should
seek to resist out-of-town retail, or other commercial activities, in the hope that we may
see more town centre shopping and investment. « Whilst it would probably be outside of
the scope of local plan policy we could look to producing masterplans for town centres to
identify key areas for improvement. « Any other comments on additional town centre
policy objectives

The responses are listed at Appendix 1, but in summary, most respondents favoured
mixed commercial uses in town centres, with over half of respondents supporting leisure
or community uses and very little opposition to these. Dominant retail use (as has
traditionally been promoted by policy) received around 30% support and a similar level of
opposition. In the written comments the use of upper floors for services, community
activities and housing were strongly supported and a range of measures suggested to
encourage this. A significant proportion of respondents (around 20%) were opposed to
change of use to housing, although this also received considerable (quantified) support.

page 90



3.10

3.11

In the written comments most concern related to the permanent loss of retail units to
housing and the consequential impact on the retail function of the town centres. Edge-of-
centre and first floor residential uses received considerable support. The need for town
centres to be vibrant social spaces was expressed by many respondents. A range of
activities, areas to sit and increased community, health and service uses were seen as a
major draw.

In addition, respondents were invited to comment on additional town centre policy
objectives. Three additional areas were suggested where policies may be appropriate,
including the use of vacant stories over shops, resisting ‘out of town’ uses to support
town centres and producing town centre masterplans to identify key areas for
improvement, and respondents were encouraged to add their own views. Two thirds of
respondents agreed with the suggested policy areas. A significant number of other
suggestions related to management and financial matters that are not within the remit of
the Local Plan.

Following this consultation, Members considered a report which set out the proposed
policy approach to be taken in the emerging Local Plan along with reasonable alternative
approaches. The draft Plan was informed by this debate. Agendaitem - Working draft of
the proposed East Devon Local Plan 2020 - 2040 - East Devon

Draft Local Plan Consultation Winter 2022

3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

A draft Local Plan was consulted on from November 2022 to January 23. This included
“Strategic Policy 56- Town Centre hierarchy, sequential approach and impact
assessment” and “Policy 57- Town Centre development”.

Policy 56 is a strategic policy because it establishes the network and hierarchy of
centres. Maintaining the vitality and viability of the town centres in East Devon is a
strategic priority in the plan. This policy is also the starting point for the suite of non-
strategic policies on town centres and primary shopping frontages, local shops and
services, and rural shops. This policy draws on the evidence in the Council’s Role and
Functions of Settlements Study produced by the Council in July 2021, which categorised
the roles of existing settlements in the District by taking into account their differing sizes,
offer, functions and accessibility by sustainable transport modes. The Role and Function
of Settlement Study was reported to Strategic Planning Committee of the Council on 5
October 2021, see item 38 - 1a. 1la. Role and Function of Settlements report v3 final
draft for SPC.pdf (eastdevon.gov.uk) In addition to the town’s identified in tier one and
tier two, the smaller settlements of Budleigh Salterton, Beer and Colyton contain a
similar range of shops and other uses typically found in the larger towns, albeit at a
smaller scale, and so Policy 56 also applies to them.

Policy 57 takes a positive approach to the growth, management and adaptation of the
town centres. As part of a positive strategy for the future of each town centre, the Local
Plan defines their extent and makes clear the range of uses that are acceptable within
them.

This consultation referred to the Town Centre area and Primary Shopping Area (which in
most cases are one and the same due to the compact nature and concentration of retail
uses) but did not show the boundaries on the Policies Map. The boundaries will be
subject to a further consultation in Spring 2024.

page 91


https://democracy.eastdevon.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=8811#mgDocuments
https://democracy.eastdevon.gov.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=8811#mgDocuments
https://democracy.eastdevon.gov.uk/documents/s13843/1a.%20Role%20and%20Function%20of%20Settlements_report_v3%20final%20draft%20for%20SPC.pdf
https://democracy.eastdevon.gov.uk/documents/s13843/1a.%20Role%20and%20Function%20of%20Settlements_report_v3%20final%20draft%20for%20SPC.pdf

3.16 It should be noted that the criteria-based policy relating to Primary Shopping Frontages
(E10) in the adopted Local Plan was reviewed and considered to be out of date given the
change of use now allowed by permitted development rights. The Council has taken on
board the consultation responses received during the consultation which stressed the
importance of keeping frontages up to date, the need for a policy approach that sought to
retain a certain proportion of retail uses in the town centres and concerns that historic
features will be lost during conversion and has addressed these matters through other
policies.

3.17 The summary of feedback received in respect of the Draft Local Plan Policies 56 and 57
is attached at Appendix 2. Briefly, most respondents were neutral or broadly supportive
of the policy approach and comments tended to focus on specific towns. There was
concern that town centre retail uses could diminish, particularly if housing is encouraged,
and that notable features (such as signage, doorsteps and shopfronts) should be
retained. Various suggestions for town centre improvements were suggested. Several
respondents were concerned about the potential impact of out of centre retail
development and/or how it could be accessed sustainably but the lower, 500m, threshold
for retail impact assessments was not challenged and neither was the default threshold,
2500m, for other types of development. Overall, no major wording changes were
necessary as a result of the feedback.

Consultation Spring 2024
3.18 To be completed after the consultation

Evidence Base

3.19 The existing and emerging retail and town centre evidence base that will support the
preparation of the East Devon Local Plan is depicted in Table 3. These studies were
commissioned by the Greater Exeter Strategic Partnership (GESP) to assistin local plan
preparation.

Table 3- Evidence Base documents (* links to be added when they are available on the EDDC
website)

Comments
These were undertaken in
house. They form part of

Evidence Date
Town Centre Assessments September 2022

this report
Greater Exeter Town Centre | December 2019 Jointly commissioned with
and Retalil Study- Part 2 Mid Devon DC,

Retail Needs Assessment
and Retail Strategy (Avison
Young) *

Teignbridge DC, Exeter
CC and Devon CC

Greater Exeter Town
Centre and Retail Study-
Part 1 (GVA) *

September 2017-
published 2018

Jointly commissioned with
Mid Devon DC,
Teignbridge DC, Exeter
CC and Devon CC

Sequential Test Impact
Assessment Threshold
Justification

December 2023

This was undertaken in
house. It forms Appendix 4
to this report

page 92




3.20

3.21

3.22

3.23

Sequential Test

In accordance with paragraph 87 of the NPPF, the Council must apply a sequential test
to planning applications for new retail and retail related development, for example drive-
through restaurants or retail warehouses. The sequential approach will be applied so that
main town centre uses are located in town centres, then in edge of centre locations; and
only if suitable sites are not available (or expected to become available within a
reasonable period) will out of centre sites be considered provided that they can be made
accessible by a choice of means of transport and will not adversely impact upon nearby
centres.

It is recognised that existing out of town stores will continue to provide a form of retailing
which both adds to local shopping choice and is popular with the public. Proposals for
the refurbishment and redevelopment with small scale extensions of out of centre stores
may be acceptable where there is insufficient net gain in retail floorspace to have an
adverse effect on other established centres. Sequential testing is not required for small
scale rural development (including office development).

The NPPF sets a default threshold of 2500m?for requiring an impact assessment unless
a proportionate, locally setfloorspace threshold is adopted. Above this threshold planning
applications for main town centre uses that are not in an existing centre and are not in
accordance with an up-to-date Local Plan should be assessed for their impact. The scope
of the Sequential Test and Impact Assessment required to be submitted in support of a
planning application should be discussed and agreed between the applicant and the
Council at an early stage in the pre-application process. It should include assessment of:

(a) the impact of the proposal on existing, committed and planned public and private
investment in a centre or centres in the catchment area of the proposal; and

(b) the impact of the proposal on town centre vitality and viability, including local
consumer choice and trade in the town centre and the wider retail catchment (as
applicable to the scale and nature of the scheme).

Where an application fails to satisfy the sequential test or is likely to have significant
adverse impact on these considerations it be refused.

The level of detail included within the assessments must be proportionate to the scale
and type of retail floorspace proposed and shall be determined on a case by case basis.
In determining the scale at which impact assessments are required the Council have
established a threshold figure of 500 square metres above which assessment will be
needed (see Appendix 3 for justification). The default threshold of 2500 square metres
will apply to other types of development.

page 93



4 Town Centre and Primary Shopping Area Assessments

4.1 In September 2022, the Council undertook a town centre and retail survey. This was an
observational survey that recorded the Use Classes within, and adjacent to, the
settlements identified in Policy 57 (Town Centre Development) of the Draft Local Plan.

Town Tier

Exmouth One- Principal Centre
Axminster Two- Main Centre
Cranbrook Two- Main Centre
Honiton Two- Main Centre
Ottery St Mary Two- Main centre
Seaton Two- Main Centre
Sidmouth Two- Main centre
Budleigh Salterton Three- Local Centre
Colyton Three- Local Centre
Beer Four- Service Village

4.2 In accordance with the methodology at Appendix 3 a visual survey was carried out on all
the ground floor units within the town centre area (as defined in the adopted Local Plan)
and any business units just outside these boundaries. We also visually surveyed any
residential property in line with the NPPF which recognises the importance of residential
space within town centre and retail areas. In addition, the locations of train stations, car
parks and bus stops have been identified, as these can contribute to the vitality and
sustainability of the town centre and retail areas.

4.3 The previous Town Centre Survey was undertaken in 2012 by the Council. The range of

uses has been expanded in the mostrecent survey. The importance of residential units
and leisure use to the high street is highlighted in the NPPF, so these (and allied) uses
are now recorded. As a result of this, direct comparisons between the 2012 and 2022
surveys cannot be made. Although the range of uses has been widened it was necessary
to group some uses (such as community uses) together where they may draw visitors to
use the town centre in a way that generates vitality even if users are not spending money.
Libraries and Dr surgeries are examples that will not generate spending in themselves but
will add to town centre vitality and viability. Visiting a library or surgery will often form part
of linked trips with visiting shops and other town centre attractions/facilities.

March 2012 survey:

. Al — shops with charity shops forming a sub-category (this included uses such as
hairdressers and opticians);

. A2 — Professional and financial services;

. A3 — Restaurants and cafes;

. A4 — Pubs;

. A5 — Takeaways

. Vacant units; and

. Other .

September 2022 survey:

. Shops with charity shops forming a sub-category

. Service uses such as hairdressers, opticians, nail bars and other ‘experiences’
. Professional and financial services

. Restaurants and cafes

. Pubs

page 94



4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

Takeaways

Residential

Leisure

Community/health/day nurseries
Vacant units; and

Other

The draft East Devon Local Plan of 2024 includes two site specific retail policies:
*56. Strategic Policy — Town centre hierarchy, sequential approach and impact
assessment and
*57. Strategic Policy - Town Centre development
Which relate to defined Town Centre Areas and Primary Shopping Areas

The first of these policies establishes the principle for accommodating retail and
commercial development in town centre areas and the second specifically seeks to
encourage uses that would improve the quality and/or broaden the range of retail and
leisure facilities, enhance the role of the town centres as sustainable shopping and leisure
destinations and strengthen their vitality and viability whilst resisting proposals which
would undermine the shopping character or visual amenity of the town centre. The
policies refer to defined areas but at the time of the draft consultation (winter 2022) the
relevant areas to which policy was proposed to apply were not defined in the plan
document and so these are subject to consultation in 2024. This paper is concerned with
policy boundaries. For the actual proposed wording of policy the draft Local Plan should
be referred to, see: Have Your Say Today - 09 Supporting jobs, the economy and vibrant
town centres - East Devon Local Plan (commonplace.is). It should be noted that policy
wording may be refined in readiness for plan submission. Any policy wording refinement
will be undertaken outside of this paper.

Defining policy and areas to promote retail activity and protect town centre areas is critical
because in the absence of such policies investment in commercial activity could be
dispersed widely inside and outside towns. Dispersed patterns of investment/activity
could undermine the key functional importance of town centres and their relationships
with the surrounding area, such as being nodal points for public transport systems, acting
as a draw for tourism and providing for linked trips to multiple outlets. Many land uses can
be more valuable to property owners than retail use. There can, therefore, be pressure to
convert retail and other commercial buildings to another non-commercial use. Whilst this
may be financially beneficial for a property owner it can erode and undermine the
commercial vitality and viability of town centre areas and as a conseguence have very
much more significant and wider adverse economic and social impacts. For this reason it
is essential that the role of town centres as sustainable shopping and leisure destinations
is strengthened and protected.

Town Centre Areas

The policy approach advocated is one of defining Town Centre Areas to encompass
broad central areas in towns where there is existing retail and commercial activity and
potential to accommodate more activity. Town Centres provide a wide range of services
and fulfil a variety of functions that need to be accessible to a large number of people
from all sectors of the community. In addition to retail shops, East Devon town centres
provide business opportunities, health services, housing, educational opportunities, public
transport, leisure and entertainment facilities, tourist attractions and a diversity of other
uses which contribute to vitality and viability. Different, but complementary uses, during
the day and in the evening, can reinforce each other making town centres more attractive
to local residents, shoppers and visitors. Uses such as leisure and entertainment
facilities, museums and libraries, hotels, street markets, restaurants, pubs and cafes all
add variety. Occupation of flats above shops and in vacant units can increase activity,
and therefore personal safety, and ensure that buildings are kept in good repair.

page 95


https://eastdevonlocalplan.commonplace.is/proposals/supporting-jobs-and-the-economy/step2
https://eastdevonlocalplan.commonplace.is/proposals/supporting-jobs-and-the-economy/step2

4.8 The approach is one of town centres being of a size that ensures that they are large
enough to provide flexibility and scope for more activity but without being so large that
they could lead to dispersal of commercial activity into separate unconnected pockets or
zones. Ease of physical movement and connectivity is seen as critical, therefore defined
shopping areas cover areas that are comfortable to walk around and across for
reasonably active people.

4.9 Primary Shopping Areas are the areas within the town centre where most retail activity is
concentrated. Ensuring that a range of shops and leisure uses are available and are in
close proximity will enable visitors to make linked trips. Other uses, including residential,
that would undermine the shopping and leisure function of the Primary Shopping Areas
will be resisted as non-active use and ‘blank’ frontages will lessen the offer and appeal to
visitors. In most cases the town centres are relatively compact and are focussed around
the concentration of retail/leisure uses. In these cases, the Town Centre Areas and
Primary Shopping Areas will be the same and the boundaries will be concurrent. In the
cases of Seaton and Exmouth the town centres extend further and uses are more
dispersed- there are concentrations of leisure/retail which are identified as Primary
Shopping Areas but other, intervening, town centre uses are excluded from these areas.
The Town Centre and Primary Shopping Areas are not concurrent and are drawn
separately in these towns.

4.9 The sections that follow show the results of the retail survey work for each town centre on
one map and then, on a second map, the proposed policy boundaries. The maps are
supported with brief associated commentary about each town.

4.10 It should be noted that it is the street frontage that was surveyed and that is the critical
component of the survey work. For ease of mapping Ordinance Survey defined building
plots/blocks have been coloured in. The colouring in of plots/blocks does not indicate that
all of the coloured in area is in a given defined use or function nor that there are active
frontages (eg shop windows) on all external sides of premises.

4.11 In addition to this survey work the Council also commissioned GVA Grimley/Avison
Young to undertake two part town centre health check and retail study. This was
completed in December 2019. The reports should be read in conjunction with this paper.
See: Need to update links to East Devon website (the reports are still available at
Sharepoint at the time of writing and the EDDC links are not yet available)

Evidence - Greater Exeter Strateqgic Plan (gesp.org.uk)

Planning websites - Town Centre and Retail Study - Part 1.pdf - All Documents
(sharepoint.com)

Planning websites - Retail Needs Assessment and Retail Strateqy.pdf - All Documents
(sharepoint.com)

page 96


https://www.gesp.org.uk/evidence/
https://devoncc.sharepoint.com/sites/PublicDocs/Planning/Planning/Forms/AllItems.aspx?id=%2Fsites%2FPublicDocs%2FPlanning%2FPlanning%2FGESP%2FEvidence%2FTown%20Centre%20and%20Retail%20Study%20%2D%20Part%201%2Epdf&parent=%2Fsites%2FPublicDocs%2FPlanning%2FPlanning%2FGESP%2FEvidence&p=true&ga=1
https://devoncc.sharepoint.com/sites/PublicDocs/Planning/Planning/Forms/AllItems.aspx?id=%2Fsites%2FPublicDocs%2FPlanning%2FPlanning%2FGESP%2FEvidence%2FTown%20Centre%20and%20Retail%20Study%20%2D%20Part%201%2Epdf&parent=%2Fsites%2FPublicDocs%2FPlanning%2FPlanning%2FGESP%2FEvidence&p=true&ga=1
https://devoncc.sharepoint.com/sites/PublicDocs/Planning/Planning/Forms/AllItems.aspx?id=%2Fsites%2FPublicDocs%2FPlanning%2FPlanning%2FGESP%2FEvidence%2FRetail%20Needs%20Assessment%20and%20Retail%20Strategy%2Epdf&parent=%2Fsites%2FPublicDocs%2FPlanning%2FPlanning%2FGESP%2FEvidence&p=true&ga=1
https://devoncc.sharepoint.com/sites/PublicDocs/Planning/Planning/Forms/AllItems.aspx?id=%2Fsites%2FPublicDocs%2FPlanning%2FPlanning%2FGESP%2FEvidence%2FRetail%20Needs%20Assessment%20and%20Retail%20Strategy%2Epdf&parent=%2Fsites%2FPublicDocs%2FPlanning%2FPlanning%2FGESP%2FEvidence&p=true&ga=1

Evaluation of Boundaries at Axminster

Axminster is East Devon’s most easterly town and the town centre forms a focal point
supporting the town’s population and a large rural catchment. Axminster is a long
established town with a historic street pattern and many older impressive buildings. The
town centre forms a north-south through route for vehicles with congestion being identified
as an issue; whilst this does put pressure on road space it does ensure passing trade. The
town is served by a number of car parks.

As a market town, the centre focuses on the market square and a very busy street market
continues to be held on Thursdays.

Axminster has a smaller population than most other East Devon towns and the shopping
centre is proportionally smaller. Since the last survey the town has lost River Cottage
Canteen, owned by a TV chef which was a major visitor draw. However, offsetting this loss,
the very prominently located Trinity House has been renovated and now houses several
independent shops at ground floor level and The Community Waffle House at first floor. The
Community Waffle House is a thriving community business which hosts over 50 local
organisations and holds regular classes, clubs and events in addition to serving food and
drink.

There are a wide range of independent retailers in the town but only a limited number of
national chain stores. There are several charity shops in the town (large numbers of charity
shops are seen as an indicator of struggling centres) and also several vacant units.
Webster’'s Garage, the most significant vacant floorspace identified in the previous survey
(vacant and derelict building) has been demolished and is now a car park which also hosts
the annual fairground. Opposite Websters Garage the George Hotel has been fully
refurbished since the last survey and is now a thriving public house again. Other vacant units
are mostly amongst the smallestin the town and have mainly not been used for retail eg.
Café, estate agency.

The former Webster’'s Garage site, along with possible future redevelopment of sites to the
east in South Street (currently owned by the Royal Mail), offer the opportunity to provide
additional shops and other ground-floor commercial uses such as cafe’s which could greatly
enhance the vitality of the town centre

Supermarket provision in the town is dominated by the Tesco supermarket that lies to the
west of the town centre and the Co-op supermarket to the south of the town centre.

The first Axminster plan (next page) shows the survey frontage results. On the basis of the

survey the second and third Axminster maps show the proposed policy boundary areas for
the town.

page 97



Axminster Survey Map

9¥.E£20001 ASAINS 82uUBUPIO FZ0Z SIUBL aseqelep pue ybuAdoo umol) ©

- J9)SUIWXY/ -
AaAINng [IB}9Yy 243Ud) UMO]

o
o)

35070 ¥mM3S
zF - =

swed 1eo oaad [ ]

v

sdoys Aemjiey m

sdojsTsng

1BUYIO
SjUM Juedep

salssinN Aeq / YieaH / Aunwiwies

u
ainsie i
SAEMESYE| e
sand ]
sanoti)
uosian

S8JED PUE SjUBINRISSY

S80IAI9S |BISUBUIH PUB [BUOISSD)O.d
S90IAIRS

sdous Aueyg

sdoys

BCORCERCR =

UOIEPOLILICOO. WYBILIBAD

Lng-air
sueg Auing'
: o

[
o
2

21JuUd) UuMOo]
puaba

\

19]SUILIXY

- e
xvmzmn_m.qw,sfm‘ﬁfm_(ci DE(.IQ. WWm n:

. e 2

B

Bauon

S04,

L He070 Ciglw

suspieg
ngwasoy

. Whowasay. -

184335

135818 How
Noojoes ML

i ..
- S 433416 K
a0y s’

pInyg
shewis:

L wmm_.mw...
JEECTEERFEL )

e sae 22 = oK
REEEENE R

ERLLTIIT-R

sBepos semo
X iatpeds
e

wenopy . ,‘mﬂhoz.mu%//\,ﬂ
asnopInusauD | epses . = S
JIENOHITMSTND - 9RSEOu aseg’ Tt
. Cesnohy ¢ <

< pad

sed 180
yunojy Jejdod

SNIOHVE TIHHIHN

. yinag samanap, -
o samalel

auoisiadng

sayoaag

asnon.
weyuaman

uoiEis
Bullig-

(s
Blg oy

o
Unog
Ldesuiy

\mmv:m. s
fouoyg esnon .

page 98



Axminster Proposed Town Centre Area and Primary Shopping Area Maps

9%/£Z0001 ASMING aoueUPIO $20Z SIuBu aseqejep pue BuAdoo umol) &

- J9)SUIXY -
AaAINg |1e}ay aJjuan umo]

st3sdiio Hatam

sauasINN ABQ / UNeaH / AJunwiwo)

’ $8JBD) PUE SlUBINEISSY

S30IAIBS |BIDUBUIY PUE [BUOISSSJ0Id

uoliepowwoase b [HIEYg)

syied 120 0003 [ ]

sdojs Aemjiey

3

sdojs"sng

13410
SHUM JUBDBA

ainsia
sAemeaye|

sqnd

EWTVET
sdoys Aweyn
sdoyg

ERCORCEECN O

@
7]
2

3Nuay uMo]
SBalY SU9D UMOL D
puaban

oo i
"B e

[ mg angi3 N

Q@
Playsquigos

SEd _mu«

Coeman

jues fudng
e

Been 110K
abi005)

ajusg
" spodg

wapeoy >m:w>.mx4 :
[

SNITUVE AUV IHayas auvis 483

s
039

©asnop nuisau

1endsoH
1BJSUILIXY -
o ELLELL LY
*ed 180
junopy Jedod

ST
SEERIEIETNGY

N L . m_m_mEo__xIHIHIHl

suapieg | PR ]
Cunpwesoy . . b e ' T r -
V.tm_uFU T !
- wnewssoy < - jgpay )

"~ asnop
4 “amol,
REaING0D, " HE,

slisen

d

f: i

L T aded . wed e

96 zio 800 400200

sayaasg

mmﬁjo ELele 0

T eeno S0
wsyuamdy -

U 4 Ry E:E._ss 2

Sl d

..um:oI
) v_ou_umw_:n_ o
~ sepegy

_._o,_Ew

(swo Buisin
UblsHaAIS

. :za “sisog sied ._mU
e Etms
v NS sew,

L e

ad

B Emm.?. How
Aioyae UL

\__

L Exy reny

EE& Ul m_m

yaunyo
sAIBR 1S

asos1edng

PIEA BOD

"1 ouspiemIT
S e

s ey Ul

'y sano
Ol s
) g

1IH spseg’
asnog

R
g H6nBaIssors

“FAUH F1lsvo-

“oBpug’
}wco—m RE:

s Lobiei useits

i g
eay Aeld
I

page 99



Or/SZ000) ABAING 83UBUPIO +Z0Z S1YB eseqelep pue yBlAdos umold @

- I9)sulwXy -
AoAing |1e)ay 91j3ud) uMmo]

38010 HO1AM

by
i

.

$iled /8D D0ad3

R

sdo)s Aemjiey

sdojs—sng

LPYO

SHUN JUBIEA

salesInN Aeq / YlleaH / AHunwwo)
ainsle

skemeaye]

sqnd

S9JBD) PUB SJUBINESaY

$3DIAISG |BIDUBUI PUE [BUDISSSJ0Id
S80lAleg

sdoyg Aieyn

sdoys

HRCOROEECN o

UOIEPOWIWOIE JUBILIBAQ
98|

ANUID UMOL
seasy Buiddoyg Alewug m
puabian

=2

anuay
spodg

| BNIGUNS AW THayoy gyvHo sea

/mgangi3

005Q Wed 180

ECIEEEE]

asnoy
[OCIEET

3NV [s0daais

TSbrl di

uoneis
Buia

aveusl sAuued

< P
suzpied |
Yinowasoy

Junowassy. .

Wy
4 TEIS quiy
fPloyBgquIBo e
E 3ied JeD L)

y 133415 HOHY e R 47 - - s s
esnoy ) A o, - | ¥ . . i
uosieN .w.zﬂwmiacu,

T e
. esnop. % s
| SqUIOGAISAY,

Lasnon o e
aquisod

5

P, i
ey L unog 2
=11 5 yeBarddy

e

erdman

iy

Y YILSNINXY

_pIEAIEOD

1 suspang
aoENyE.

st
T BSNOH g
O
s oINS

> ssnop
ssnonnuseud. | opseg -

W 3ses
o esnoy

L Twd

W JERdseH : e

12)SU|LLXY S .
; |~ abpug

i AaUo)g ssnap, -

WIEd 18D
unow Jedo,

- auivaer mang

“eiapEnay
abiian

W deums
© Tedrodudey
e -

page 100



Evaluation of Boundaries at Beer

Beer is a medium sized, thriving seaside village famous for its fishing industry and very
popular with tourists. It has an unusually large range of shops to meet visitor needs but also
the resident population. It has a historic, dendritic (with fingers like an outstretched hand),
street pattern and the High Street extends to the beach.

All of the shops and services are operated by independent retailers. Beer has a
comparatively large number of café’s and pubs, which will reflect demand from the resident
population and also from the tourism trade. There has been some pressure to change the
use of some shops to houses or holiday lets and this is a cause for concern due to the
potential impact on visitor offer and the local community.

Beer does not have a supermarket or moderately sized food shop although some shops sell
groceries in addition to other products. The nearest supermarkets are around 2km away in
Seaton.

The first Beer plan shows the survey frontage results. On the basis of the survey the second
and third Beer maps show the proposed policy boundary areas for the village.

page 101



Beer Retail Survey map

9¥/£20001 ASAINS 2ouBURIO tZ0Z SIUBU aseqelep pue JyBuAdos umold @

- 1999 -
AaAing [iejay a1uan umoj

T & - NOHVIGOT T ¢ spueoAeig T Repasamy o USven B18g " 7 PN TNV T T -
i anusg FL0 5010 200 SE0'BLL00 O - R A R y s
| abeg abELeH g 191aLUIOIY o . e ’ L= - .
| Buipue E e | sjaugt . b g | asnoy ploges FAPaety = 5 ]
IR piBlsE BLISUAH] . ;

/

ol Beg.

uar]

. esmont
~ = SN 6
syied JeD Dad3 _H_ i SEAL W s . ,
. , s s X \ E L i A ~ - ,‘ N |any
L R » oo - " L E . T e spuzpied
- el e SN oy |
sdojs™sng m } Ras it g ! v e
U i ’ : ) OV uaneq Ubp
Janayg rLs - 8| S .n_m.or s .
: ' % uop ;o SMOGYIIN MIHDIH by E 1oosieg.
18O goud. S Sl sog.  TUHIS Spuepmon il S B ST .mu“_wﬁw“
ssiuuy - PUNOIS Vo SO X < o R A
SHUN JUEdEA _H_ [elioway i  SMO0YEN 3L u,ué B 2
; sapanr | : S S e
} seussInN Aeq f YyiesH / Alunwwon = i 4 pooinizy "
— o : NILETE
shemeagl . : { b g : et
- o ‘avaHEnyT R N :m_m_ms._..ruq
sand [ | - I, e . s o
o 3 NN T F
S3JED) pUE SJUEINE)SaY D : . ; - o oo
aBepog eupejy - - L INYTEddVTO —_—
$80IAI9S [BIDUBUI] PUE [BUOISSSJ0Id l - S o i : L [
| 77 soelg) eTolue g oL oeudey
s80IMIBS . o | oelaLemlEy T )
) i ¥: R P . D
sdoysg . , uid Soelis] Lopiog : : L mm m . A B g b i o
L. wdoueug i R | ) . epenan Lo
LONEPOWILLIOIoE WBILIBAQ l R | | Mopwag HSANSIAepuener. e
| K . ayapuinn. - oo
asn : . L ! | =7 seyby . [
B S o uoefngy -
Uy uUMoL | : ]
puabon ! —— e o] TR
saod - - o 3NnEva 81 unog '
g J B uswmery " yeifuspiey AN . !
, e o5 wos sienomn 105 w3 ! : progaes | . ST gsnal
| | _— - 7 suddigr — -7 : R I
| ! / llewea . lIexp
: o : , s
, semdn ; aowues | S
! . p ] eumisspnyy
‘ L
wnop asnon syoaugeing aBepory beea ﬂ\a.:L o .
EECIEITEE stieiadi ssnol usiing - k suieg o O - [ wueg
g U etepan B aquioniowiely ! T T Ak Auues
.y s i e o Ll 7 yBerepug :
RIS TIHEEE T o ; D S e
i SO R [ spiaydayg - '
BN IS SEllA o . C R .
. b, aulEp " ; o, : g abepoo |
: D oottt E, BN e
e . WVNDS o1

- = senss| Ly,
| aies 1, - AMISAVD.
. - i |
= e
ITh
) Y. — L eubuA smsiem
e : YA SOV 90 SUISe aBEpo k !
=N spuepes - :
boenony ' - i .
ik s2ag | B T TamuequErd . o .
) - aBENED 8L meA
y T d8 C
7 Cepalgg e
al i
015 @
: Bk i - 3NV Amu3E
wnew aUL | - ) B _

page 102



Beer Proposed Town Centre Area and Primary Shopping Area Maps

9¥/£Z0001 ASAINS @2uUBUPIO $Z0Z SIYBU aseqelep pue buidod umoln @

- laag -

AaAing [1e)ay aljuan umoj

pran spu | 28

s¥ied Jed 0aa3l
sdojssng

i 13410
. SHU JUB2EA
salasinN Aeq / yjesH / AHunwwo))
shemeaye|

sqnd

$9JB0) PUB SjuBINE)SIY

S30|AI9G |BIDUBUIH PUE |BUOISSSJ0)d
ECLIINER

sdoug

uoljepowwodde Jybiueag

SBBIY BIUBD UMOL

ERCRCEER (uf

]

puaban

I PTe »

spuelieD
. i R
lsBeyon ! p : R
sy L [ : L
a1 B
v | d9
Junopy auL

qoiy .
s sy

puUNoIS)
|eUowapy

aslgnr

anuag

¥L0

NORINOD®

£0°0

SpUE|aAaI%)

S01°0

Ge0'®wLL00 0

20EII2H - S JJSLUO| ] I

lalsug

 sioyoug

unig auL

Suolliniy 3UL o
- viie|

oL —E T prByisan ewisusi

“melp Bag L - o . < esnojy

aoeuaf ¢ . - AR
o . . .

" pend

i sa6enos
Enoy

I3

132U 1 Sap

wnop
SIsRUAIN IS

e e
T yoaiisiBuy.

H

- T OHOT:
[T
2buelbiagy - -

aywequery

a1’
HoID BuYL

sabeRog uop

e

asnay,

[ECTEEEN s L

i
i

SIS - -
| 2SNoH pioyelg fa
aefis3 \ P

- IBAOPUES -

sMoovaw HanoIHRoMH

SpuemaN

Fupiseq

05y

I

L esmion
e

“sabelion asoy

- BIIA U0l

- anoy syonigeion’

. @Bepag

' engiusiing

P

S
* douskas pier -

~ANEN SIS sgaen sl

808iT3] ETOUnEl capy Eudes

L slikyegiEmuTD

noosuog

“aainyy
spuBlES

uohaq US|D

- QLEITE
E Sepuung
puaLiudy,
LAD UL
Jusdu
Fewey
peswssoin|

- R o haig
199G 7 e
Sl sbenon :
| Ksyswa) BS ans (3 iepuenet, =z
v R . awiapuAA o
vy B ~ Jaubiy
SIIzPUAM,
3 sed1s . . e o o e
e n ANngve T, 97 anog |
., Ueseiy WEIBIEpIEN .
e uospng !
u_‘_‘. T Reweg.t - — .
1B4EQ " . |
— | -
femdn | aowusy | -0
T 1 auoyseiny) 1

© ospieydsyg

Wi unop _ -
!

- eshon
| auiElg

e . ebegon s ma) |

N

HEasUi

[TRELTIN
v i - L
senon - o
i T aupeg -
dg ELLEIEINEL) : i
s C |- " uBisispuz
abapog, i 3 i | _wmbiEpied . -

uor

ElliA uor
.

o ¢ e uiauinos -
pEE o 3
aBpiy Uy . : NOLYvVE L -
- ) ANV AuyIE. : Z |

page 103



oF/£Z000 L AeAing @oueuplO ¥Z0z SIybu eseqelep pue JyBuAdos umol) @

- 199g -

Aaning [Iejay a1j3uan umoj

$)}ied 18D 0ad3

sdojssng —
qoi -
BUI0 ssiuuy - PUNOIL)
[euowap]
SHUM JUBDEA

sapgnr
sallesINN Aeq / YileaH / Aunwwo) o

shemeaye]

sqng
S3JED) PUE SJUBINEISaY

SODIAIOG |EIOUEUIY PUE [BUOISSBJOI]
S90IAI8S

sdoys

uoljepoLILIOE WBILIBAQ

ARORCEEE ey

seaJy Buiddoys Alewind m
pusaban

Joo

1K seBng
safeH lawaig i i

JBiiByS

sisod

SUONINY BuL

usney sasy

TLLER

_ soeuer

wnen

SIFRUAN IS (|

[EEE

" Snioavan N,

a1 S s
: benueies
[ ST
3t

. CI T
TUH ONOT: abewon i
A Vea!r

6epers Uiginen

- . s -
o UL ; I

F asnop 2H00.95i0D

swsstiey ook wsing
Ll aenos Baudg satoossL1al
“asnop Wang :

R obiepes,
L spieydang

TATNDE > =

; ampy
e_. : — N spuejieq
e | _ P et -
Janopueg . - . LoavIhEnyT et i
A 3 Sovoy. . . .
SMOTY3N YaHOIHHOMH S - T s - waumed.
K b Bopy en i spumapes)
SpUBIMEN NEN S I <. Hossugd
2 T [ o : -
sMoavIWIHLT Mo R S )
X " ol Ao s puFEned X "
R B0y S T aseia) pragyBiy .
. uobliog . e » TN
. SRS - T e
QyaHINYT o I i
" ¢ RO Y . RO, "
- . N Hemes
TR 7 Beeo e
INVISEAYID e ol
A o prawssaIg
D N T et 5 hsung :
! muml:mh BIOULERY . T ey oteyden
R S S e}
oag 7 e
e sfiepogy "
, Aejewey IS ans |3 - spushal o g
", auapusfn e
seuBly o
B g uomeiny ' -
; aRUAM enny;
seBeoguopos L . - o
L Wi seberiog ascy N sued 15 h S T
5 S S R (TIREO:- !
= A YENENY yeibuspiey .
] L - 8 . i .
3U0Id " L1 saN —— " igrsung -
sabenon’ - i T fmpege - - .
Ieyeg ! I |
Lo = 1
i fendn 3 aowuag

afenogy’
aupeg -

) . ! ofiuaibiogy - 5 o 1.
: h — | -, oD ._wmmmwznu L )
b6p3 g ; spuepes | - 7 RS :
ER ‘, - . a_ N : | I
3 . N : R L i | vilga T
N ~i ; st Sne;
. i, y . ~ ayuequen L T . I L
m afEnes aal] mag ¢ I R -
- / . ; SN ey, TR
: e
T : e T @ h " rewiianog -
‘d9 . : gvouman e pea J o =
; yora L ! Tl L | [ o RN PEYE L . Z o
wnw AUl . . . | - S T oostipg |
san) i — R o

I

_RWMISAVS

m_Emh_?Lu,mEs,

— < B S S unossuais
= anueg L0 S0L'0 200 Se0'eLI00 0 I o
4 . H .~ —a— mm mm T o, =7 ]
bioH s Bury a6eis SOEk2H- §19}3WIO : L uasan . > _
SO | Bupue - | Jayaug i, SN s plojels N - _ ~
i _ 1 moln Bas ) ; .
/ Jebsg [

+ ebenon
vor |

page 104



Evaluation of Boundaries at Budleigh Salterton

Budleigh Salterton is the smallest of the East Devon towns (if Colyton is classed as a large
village) and correspondingly has the smallest town centre. The main shopping street is set
back from and runs parallel with the seafront beach.

There are a wide range of independent retailers in the town but only a few national chain
stores and, although there is a comparatively small number of shops, activity levels in the
town are high. There are few vacant units, although the number of charity shops has
increased slightly since the last survey, the town retains an air of commercial vitality.

Budleigh Salterton has a comparatively large number of café’s, which will reflect demand
from the resident population and also from the tourism trade.

Budleigh has moderately sized food stores but no supermarket. The nearest supermarket is
located about 3 kilometres away on the Budleigh Salterton side of Exmouth. Exmouth itself
offers a far more substantial range of shops than Budleigh Salterton and as such it serves
residents of the town.

The first Budleigh Salterton plan shows the survey frontage results. On the basis of the
survey the second and third maps show the proposed policy boundary areas for the town.

page 105



Budleigh Salterton Retail Survey Map

9%7/£20001 AsAINS 82uUBUPIO 202 Siybu aseqejep pue JybuAdoo umoln @

- uoua)jes ybia|png -
AaAiIng [1e)ay a1jud) umoj

isuiys e abuiyg

[l 5

N} [TNE - T VT

syied 125 0aa3 [ ]

sdojs~sng m

seuo [

S)IUMN JUEDEA _H_
renuepisay [
shemesyeL .

sgng .

sajeD pue sjuemnejsey ||
ssolneg [eueuly pue euoisssjord [
$80IAES _H_

sdoys Apeud [

sdoys .

asn

2JJU3) UMOL
puaban

oY ¥y 1d0d !

au=] 21993
i

ERISEINE-E

3

puEBwWRg

; X (o)
6umog

~ 5o sjuusl |

Sy’ ¢

¥1°0 5010 100 Se0'®II00 0 o
SISIOWO|Y I

“eg

lned mo ’ !
“u |
I

! |

oAl 3410

_ T
- 90 AUl gy 6y 31100

LT !

sdouspo
-~ uouBlEs
ot os

2SN Ty

e 4 o
TUH 3w HO

3noH 81 BL

I0WHNILISIM
S ¥3ddn

zﬁ.n. .

P REOPe
siaddoysseiyy - s

Hnoo

kY . . manoy nE e 1ed JE
- episelbul < L esnon pieaiy - Wed 20
usai9 e . B ganoH

Plapsap,

Gunmog

[ed

apisumeT

puelg

page 106



Area Maps

Budleigh Salterton Proposed Town Centre Area and Primary Shopping

9%2€£Z000 1 Aemng asuBupIQ #20g SIUBU aseqgelep pue JyBuidos umoin @

- uouayjes ybis|png -
AaAINg |Ie}ay 3JJud) UMo]

BiBuuS

a|Bulys

lleang,

- sisog e

o 0w B¥idog®

s}led Jej Daa3
sdoys~sng

180

SHUN JUBDEBA

lenuspisey

sAemeaye|

sand

$8JE0 PUB SJUBINEISSY

S80IAIBS [EIOUBUIH PUE |EUOISSB)0.d
Sa0lAlag

sdoys fueyn

sdoys

HOCORCEEN e

as

anua) UMoL
SESIY 81U UMo| D
puabon

=2

VRV ainugy

Epuepawing .

; BSNOH"_
g g

apISUME]

; T Sundo swusL

puelg

ADPHYILLSYI 7

i . - as0|y”
unjwoy )

CICIEIeY —— mm

=L ENYEIREYE

e

TiH v

asnoy e1g auL

usaIg
Buimog
iied

10 S0l

0 100 SeomLLo

LRl e | e i

|
10% BUL e 31700

Hnog

apiselbul

wedua

moj 4.5

FovHEIL LS

[ - i
SOWHNEL 4410
- - — =77 "0

“smapiyodig

[LAIETEC

yainyo

HEER B

asfoH
PIBUYUON,

sJoled 1S/

mnadieav

syur

00

“sraugy
L7 uBig

3

sdoysop -
- [Luosleg
i o e

" unog

yied 18D

ssnoy
(RIS

page 107



9%.£Z0001 A8ANg aoueuplQ Z0z siubu aseqelep pue JyBuidos umosD @

- uoudyjes ybidjpng -
AaAINng [Ie)aYy 913Ud) UMO|

ey

bibuus

sifuys

eang.

swied 20 0aa3 [ 7]
sdojsTsng E

sewo [

SHUM JUBDEA _H_
renuopisey [
SABMEIEL .

sqng .

ssjep pue sueinejsay ||
ssojueg [epueuly pue leuoissejoid [
sanlAleg _H_

sdous Aeuo | |

sdoyg .

asn

3NUS) UMOL
sealy buiddoys Alewg m
puaban

oY B0

squr

¥L0 S0LO 100 SE0'GBLLO0 O |
Slouo I O

e N ‘
2 BUL qy e 3108 T

2l sjqged

Cyonugy
RERE s

FowuEElasYs . i

v '
o frel i Cvan
Ty § asolh “gsnoy yooug .
uojey] > Kinfung | =
b

yanug
sdelad 1S

Fpuspauing /L T o] - i . |
; - / ; : ;i - ; SAOUSMIOM, e T - - S T
opaies _7 i

SN EHL

J 3ovHyal s

.
o : RLCREERT

@snoH jeid UL

A

P e e i unos
Hunoy D T . apisalbu]
usples / : : e,

\ﬂmb:w\ 13 Hed JBD

S
noH piagaH

asnoy
PISISap,

JIELTE)
Bugmog

il .

g e asriop
i ‘ PIBION,

i Canaiisa
SpisumEl i LA e e

[ L SHROD SIUUSL |

puelg’

page 108



Evaluation of Boundaries at Cranbrook

Cranbrook is East Devon’s newest town and is also the town located closest to Exeter.
Cranbrook has not been surveyed as the town centre is still under construction. In any case,
a separate adopted Cranbrook Plan sets out the Policies which will apply in the town.

The town centre is in its infancy but it is intended that it will include retail units and
apartments along the southern side of the High Street, a market square for social gathering
and town events, a supermarket offering a full weekly shop and a childcare day nursery.

Outside the centre, the town already has a school, community centre with health facilities
and a parade of shops, including a charity shop and small supermarket.

The population of Cranbrook is growing rapidly and, whilst it is one of the District’s smaller
towns at the moment it will ultimately be a medium-large town.

page 109



Evaluation of Boundaries at Colyton

Colyton is the smallest town/largest village in East Devon and has a correspondingly small
town centre. It is a long-established settlement with a medieval street pattern centring on a
market place, which creates a ‘hub’ around which the majority of the retail offer lies. There
are also a number of other shops and services in dispersed locations and smaller clusters in
the surrounding streets.

Colyton’s shopping centre is proportionate to the local population and does not serve a wide
hinterland. It is served by one main car park, with free on-street parking around the market

place.

Although the number of shops and businesses is relatively small, most are independent.
Overall, all of the buildings are in a good state of repair and the centre appears to be
thriving, with only one charity shop (also independent) and one vacant unit at the time of
surveying.

The first Colyton plan shows the survey frontage results. On the basis of the survey the
second and third Colyton maps show the proposed policy boundary areas for the town.

page 110



Colyton Retail survey map

9v/£2000) A3MNG aoUBUpIO Y20z SIYBU aseqelep pue JubBLAdos umoiD @

>w>._=m [1e}ay a4jua) umo]

- uojfjo) -

$}ied Jed 5ada3l
sdojs sng

18410

sjun JUBSBA

salssINN Aeq / YieaH / Auunwiwon
ainsia

[enuspIsay

sfemeaye]

sand

s8je]) PUE SJUBINE}SaY

S80|AI8S |BIDUBUIY PUB |BUOISSS)0.]
Sa0IMBS

sdoyg Aueuy

sdoug

UOIEPOWILLOIZE WyBIuIBAD

ERCCRC RN (o

asn

aNuUa) UMOL
puaba

.‘..Em.u_ T i Wk
su8pp

NI |LvLE

Lo ,mmv_hw
suloguin

< wesng My

ssitoyuie,

e

e ‘so.uqus mmwaum
; sz

RN sfienan
e
auL

abepon
PIENIG, .

senss]

. goRMBL-

“zauo

pasiituung -

ssysESY"

= 133418 HLNOS

L0
SI91aWO|IY

- sliewn fam

5010 200 802100 0o ar00ie,
- N L EeEe MSBEROD Uy, N
U puejswoy
< Cenmsow o ;
p 1B07 s
\ B L
. Bay . .

¥no) sjing

Jawpuz

fugdanu)
: PRILOD o).
Er

AREnnn ania

ssn0H 1e2IY

abegog ind

PIO

_suosi|

soms

1 aamls

papo0g

asnoy

N siRquiE,

- damopeg .smméuzz
; _Ew_z j;
B I

esnoy |
oedny -

eanald

oo | uneades

sbeiealp

9$NoH Jaed sliobery

@._.>|_OO | g ;-

:o_»_ou ‘

13

._Mo:um Emkc‘.___n_

L - (paljaroa)
|s7ep#BEU0D
Bsnoy e

susuoal,

BISSEEENT]
sBepod;
wonog
3UvNos

SNIIND = x3 L.

S -apigkuung
spusg
1 sBepon Eusiony

wpoa 7 .
Ashsepy ageuay

i suspIes

spaen o ‘ PUOWLDIY

5

Jood BuluwIMG

BumaL, 5 - : - -
o ’ {
‘ , ‘7 ebewon £ s Y BsnoH L3IHIS SN - -
a g L freg pio O
i . P 5 poomaisig : -
; o T . g
S fo yainyg, el . eay
\ , soi = asnop uowion L -
. QHYHIHO sanoH s
I T fuag - - 13316 IDVHVIIA uazjagebeno sisqeny
w.surtw; s 1 [ TN I iy
TS : - BMBYHONY sbEpoD - - PIRIO PO a%kld, - e ebenag
; mmu@.au mncgmmcm . A o ABPUNOIIUVNDS. ’ K Anueyn auL I
SHIOA. ssnop) . IR CSAMFHONYLS T b w b, i ) .
N uiewisiy - SRR Cul ¥ | sum_w. | 5 A b ; — -
. N g ! ! i SNV ABVINISON PouoIseYy e pJeLRI P
) - : [ ' i- ey - Kueyo !
L i 5 - BSNOH | L - e Blg ANz -
== spumiasoy . obepon L Tlh_au ' 2 sgeg il
mmmzou fiewosoy ¢ FSOM | L | !
| - HERTEY Ryueyz sy e
- - - — - L usqgA|o
L — awy | BaD | I
R - - EELLITY T B b ' e | [
| OH BULEN aoelal ! sBiog syl - o
- . - i e - [ “smeiply g - L o ; »
e . +
— - R 100 1871y - - - —eo
1 efipug Ajuey)
! 1
h |
wii ! |

S e

“sipaveauin

yolausaig

R L

pUOLLIYIY

page 111



Area Maps

ing

Colyton Proposed Town Centre Area and Primary Shopp

9%/£20001 Aemng 82ueupIO FZ0Z SUBU aseqelep pue WBUAdOD umMoID) B

- Uo0jA|09 -
AdAIng |Ie)ay aayuan umo|

Syied Jed 9add
sdojs”sng

1BY0

SNUN JUBDEBA

sauasInNN Aeq f UleaH / AHunwiwon
auns|e

|EnuspIsay

sfkemesye|

sqnd

$8J80 PUE SjUBINEISOY

S0JAI8S |EIOUBLI PUE [BUOISS)0ld
s89IMIBS

sdoyg AeyD

sdoysg

UollepOLILWOD3E JYBILIBAQ

ERCTRCENRON Oz 8

||

=

3NU8) UMOL

SEBlY 8JJUSD UMOL D

puaban

A

ey,
suappI

< sBpug
auloqun

asnoyuine]

WeBNS Wi

B L0

afenan iishia

Geo” mh\-ro 0 Omaom,uxoolm_: .

e 1339518 HENOS

uohjon pﬁ_%

00

CLLTTCTH
L s preuoeTg:

£
He
o s|jen, Aasgy “ o 17 . o |
 Feslliuung:” - spus 197014202000 “-jood m:_EE,Em S——— '
- 2l uoyy. N Wy Yosousaig .
m_ ! 1 .y
X - PlaooIa  asnoy - wicape
o L ESNOH youdny - gy -
g Lo ST
o 3NV TIQEHOS <
r g%.zﬁef.séé
s8N0 1EBID -
g apisfuung
aalUangN) BT s 1
Wnog sing " e iy et =L
5 .
3uvNos, -
s zuu:@. ¢ ’ x3 1ol
v K <
- - Z
1331 S HONNHD : :
b aeHC aingy aouint
2 T, u9,
. SSNOHMNOY PIO 4 i
¢ siaing By . . S .
N spskuung
. . abegog B : - i
e BRI < siopalddy’ - ~-BpuIeg
El ) fusved e [
¥, L wmmcnu oA
T o9, .
" N Euaz ., ek’ o el7 eoewal
seenod oz a ; S puoumpry o T LS
/ soeLa] . - A : - s i e T -
> L Sl paeduowaiEy ,Ews :
~anoigy WS, 5i “ S FLIne ELEICRTY _mz - T
Phek A sobly aioas ; S suspieg .
: ; . : w%ozaﬁm gsems_ ; ) i
: , IO BUL atiuo: . pUGWLRL . d
; 13341S NiHdToa K ’ . ARG - ; ; . L=l t
wBumEeuy, Loy E R ,
> ¢ L= - -
i ‘_.om p AN “_ rasnoy @8N0 LATLS DNiA.. - - 1 )
(| Fuied poanag - dasa b : :
My i . : (Ao . it
ﬂ.m?ww Buidg 1.1 < - @ R 5 .
. ? v o S R

oy, | 910K UOIAIO0

- zmls FOVENOI usajag?BenoD sieaer

b AWMH IAAIS 3 . 1
\ N el L. seeg - Y- “egeld, - ‘sbapag -
sebEn0D spuelesey . Y Arpinos3uwos L Agueyd, L ayL | i
Sh Lt ssnoj, - % wiwuazf.m. B e . c -
ewpiy ¥ ; [T
1 T z,a«;u;smwm sbenoy MRUDIQ .- [ -
) s ) w“ﬁ.._»&‘q:wmca ! niey . : n?.”_c,mmo
L = ! =i _— — | .
) spubjosoy | @benog foo ' f BT L S I N S U B NN Aislive]
abenog fizwesoy C, L esoy, L . . . ; .. -, - - e = =
| - - : , 3 fnueus syl . E R o [ I
- - o A | . s - -
= = o ,_rmn_ 100 " ) | ; N TR - ]
- — - - SSNCH JIN i B ¢ -
BEL g L oHuMep ao8ie] ) | 1 abrog sul o - o R
o . L - — — E. Tsmepivis . — ' —
. - Aien 15415 - - S
abpug Ayueyn
i i
e i ! Z

page 112



9t/£20001 Aanng aoueupIO) +Z0Z siubu aseqelep pue JubuAdos umoin @

- UojAj09) -
AaAIng [Ie}ay 8Jjud) UMo|

swed 0 0aa3 [ ]

sdojs_sng m

eyo [ ]

S)un JUBdBA _H_ .

solesINN ABQ / YIESH / Alunwiwon _H_ i
ainsia _H_

renuepisoy [

sAemeaye| .

sqnd .

S3jED) PUE SJUBINEISOY _H_

S90IAISG [BIOUBUI] PUB [BUOISSS40.d l
Sa0IMBS j

sdoys Awey [ ]

N sdoyg .

UOIEPOLILLIODOE JYBILISAQ .

as

31jua) umoL
sealy Buiddoys Alewiiq "
puabaT

E_mm
mtwuuj

mm.wr.m
auloquin -

weans 1y

asnoyuay

SHIG

A ) A T . : * apishuung
i . o A L ;
. 2 [ umﬂ.ou pneg ‘a10paiddy - " pIO ¥ e
" « o : . Ee i L aBenon Buoll
ORI " i “uBpmg oo oD BucIA
: . PN y Jeo
sbegon - senssi ST sdosky Jamoyag Emm_.:_uz . Kenel oy sean
000 sanss P o
PR . FsMOH pPUMIYDIY | ]
L goeuEl L Ameaeaup ,EQE Sl . -
BAD) pRINGSUowE) L ) :
“8holg) w3, eobriy " Bl . s FT S ELEIELITY :mz . . o
, e i e g asnoH Jeyeq sucliel ; SUBPIBS), . ,
’ : PosL AT e puoLIyaR] > =
A" e f ‘ . o . ) :
) ' . S asnop B asney ZmEm ani - L Gy - -
ST 7 aua . SAegpo U iy (R R
~ausyg. - poommaig Y § ) L
- >m§:8< - : N - ) drouord : . |
i stiepiedy BUndg ! > " - PR T o . .
; ; L= .. 7N T © o yanug ) E .
manngrg e -y o
- ; _ , asnoy uskos .
] . N aH¥HIYO , o \
i , ) | Ausg - HmmE.m Sovuvoin " ussjedabEmns siaqsw
- m&arw_mém ) s . :

wnmsso wn:w_m

wag

5 gpudjesoy
abenag Aibwasoy

el

- e
- MDOY3N SY3A0T
o o

o QEUNOITUVADS L haleud, L e | |
iy : 7 shiauanvis i P L -
ueusi] A S pelsin - :
- - o smeoa i preysip :
e ey L e ! :
- ! - _\:o BIS ang3 - i
. : ,. L en i - kiauuef
-~ , LA .
— L ey o [ 1
o , ] 1 umation L weg euL | '
) ; . ? %J C i I T !
SSPOH NN =g | oH Bue S0IKIL . | abiod aul .
S [ S ] Cememivis ' - oo o - o e
. - T - = - i

> uoKiiey

T guls HINoS .
“saiu0 10 SOL0 200
[N

aRemnn niania

GEO'(BLL0°0 O¥a ﬂ.mzw,,.o.o%.:,‘

" [ooyas EmE:n_

8 T -
wnuzoufuq S e v R

u;ﬂwsux A el Da ~(pajehod) - - R i K

lood m:_EEAE.w

“oRL BlEsoy

| pesitifuuns.” p sy

yosuaaig .
a1 .

. siegies
Loy, . Ay

; {paposs  asnoy | -
¥ - 88N0H soedny

W .
% ey ANV TOQHOS -
S i w92

nossio |

! 1¥noD sNIING’

Hnop siing

Meq e,

T3guletounHs . -
T 4EHs gancy

7 fesnopunon BIg aA

sisine

mSEm...,m_Efm

R - T o reeog /R

W abpug Ajueyn

i iy

page 113



Evaluation of Boundaries at Exmouth
Exmouth is the largest town in East Devon and has the largest of the town centres.

The town centre is located in the south western part of the town with residential parts of
Exmouth lying up to 4 kilometres away from it. No other East Devon town centre has
residential areas that lie this far from the commercial core. There is a substantial
pedestrianised hub to the town, a shopping centre dating back 30 years or so (the Magnolia
Centre) and a number of shopping/commercial streets. The Council owned ‘Strand’ is a
focus for cafes and community activity and regular markets and events are held here.

There are a wide range of independent retailers in Exmouth as well as a strong presence of
national chain stores, although all at smaller store format. The quality and vibrancy of the
town centre varies with some parts very active and others clearly far more peripheral and
struggling. There are a number of vacant units and charity shops and a high presence of
cafes and take away establishments. The latter, and a number of other shops, benefit from
and are tailored at serving the holiday trade.

The town centre has a medium sized supermarket, Marks and Spencer, to the south west
and this has been built since the last survey. The largest supermarket serving the town, a
Tesco, lies around 3 kilometres to the east of the town centre. Also on this eastern edge of
the town are a number of shops and trade outlets in a business/retail park (the largest being
The Range) and, close by, a Lidl store.

The first Exmouth plan shows the survey frontage results. On the basis of the survey the
second and third Exmouth maps show the proposed policy boundary areas for the town.

page 114



il Survey

Exmouth Reta

977/£20001 A8AINg 82uBUPIO 20z Siybu aseqejep pue JybLAdod umoln @

- yynowxy -
Aaaing [1e)ay a1juan umo]

! zo | §s1to Lo
. SIojRWIOIY

sired 9 9aa3 [

sdojs Aem|iey @
B sdojs—sng m
§ seyo [
| sHun Wedep _H_
| seussinN K@ / ulesH / AHUNWWOD .
., ainsia _H_
renuapisey [
skemeaye| .
sand [
S9JBD PUB SIUBINEISSY D
S90IAJSS [EIOUBUIL PUE |BUOISS}0.d .

EETIINEDRY E
sdoyg Aeyn ||
sdoyg l

asn
BIjUsH UMOL

puaban

P, pounag

siusg suods

Lol

T

La

PUES 3P20D

v TS

pues pue pryy

page 115



imary Shopping Area Maps

Exmouth Proposed Town Centre Area and Pr

9fLE£Z0001 AanINg aouUBUPIO FZ0Z Subl aseqeiep pue WBLAdeD uMmolD @

- ynowxy -

swed 129 0003 [

sdojs Aemjiey —E

sdoys”sng m

suo []

SHUM JUBOEA H_

seussInN Ae / unesH / Ayunwwon [T
ainsia D

renuepisay [

skemeaye] .

sand [

soje0 pue sjeinzisey | |

ssoiag [etoueuld pue jeuoissajosd [

s301098 |_
sdoys Aey H_
sdoyg .

asn
anus) UMOL

SEaly 2JU9D umol D

puaba

I it

pUEg BP0

PUBS pue P

Aaning |Iejay a1j3ua) umoj

N

page 116



9b/£20001 Aening aoueupQ $Z0Z Siubl aseqelep pue JyBuAdod umold @

Aaning

- ynowixy -

swied 129 0aa3 [ ]

sdojs Aemjiey m

sdojs~sng m

=wo []

SHUM JUBOBA H_

sauasinN AeQ / yyeaH / Aunwwon .
aInsie] _H_

renuepisey [

sAemeaye] .

sqnd .

$9Jen) PUE SIUBINEISOY H_

$92IAI8G [BIDUEUI] PUE [BUOISSS}0Id .

$90IAI9G _H_
sdoys Aeyd ||
sdoyg .

asM

aljuad) umoL
seasy Buiddoyg Liewny m
puabar

.”‘..; ,Hf b
T

aaus suads

T

[le}ay 9J3ud9 UMO]

pueg 8000

pues pue pmy

ae 1unesy

page 117



Evaluation of Boundaries at Honiton

Honiton is centrally located in East Devon. The commercial core of the town is dominated by
the north-east / south-west aligned High Street (former Roman road) that bisects Honiton.
The town centre is second only in size in East Devon rankings to Exmouth and it has
become a renowned centre for antique traders and is historically rooted in the lace trade.
Twice weekly street markets have been held since medieval times and the very wide High
Street makes it possible for stalls to set up along both sides of the road for around 150m.
Since the last survey, the cattlemarket (to the north and behind the High Street) has closed
and is being redeveloped.

Most of the shops and commercial premises front on to the wide boulevard style High Street
with a main shopping street south, towards the train station, from the middle of this street.
There are several much smaller shopping streets running north/south from the High Street.

There are a wide range of independent retailers in the town (many specialising in antiques)
as well as several national chain stores. There are a number of vacant units and charity
shops in the town and a high presence of other businesses.

The town centre has a major supermarket in the form of a Co-op and also other larger food
stores. The largest supermarket in Honiton, a Tesco store, lies on the southern edge of the
town around 1.5 kilometres form the town centre. On the western edge of Honiton, 1.5
kilometres from the centre is the Heathpark business/retail park. There are a number of retail
premises at Heathpark including a large Homebase and Lidl supermarket.

The first Honiton plan shows the survey frontage results. On the basis of the survey the
second and third Honiton maps show the proposed policy boundary areas for the town.

page 118



il Survey

Honiton Reta

Ov2£20001 Aeming asueupi( +202 Siubu eseqelep pue Jybuidos umoid &

- UOMUOH -
KaAing |Ie}ay aJjuan umoj

EECETT

syied 1200003 [ ]

ssnaH
iRty

sdoys Aem|iey

" Thunoo
AHO=SNYH, |

ssnay "
sdojsTsng
18Yl0

oy SHUM JUBDEA

salssInN Aeq / YIBaH / Apunuiwion omsblnss

soENEL
SMIOSUBS.

ainsia
[enuapIssy

shemeaye]

sgnd

$8Je7) PUE SJUBINE)SSY

‘| $801AI9S |EIOUEUIY PUE [EUOISS3)0Id

seoneg

sdoys Ajueyd
sdoyg

IOCECRERCR @

UONEROLUIWIOIIE JYBILIBAQ

uswﬂg

umcwm.é_m A
™ L ,mﬁcA.
Em ang. =R

Pl - P .

-

Jaeus -

HEJIED

B n:mm 12

250 IDRHBrIS

page 119



ing Area Maps

imary Shopp

Honiton Proposed Town Centre Area and Pr

ov/€Z000] ASAING 8oUBUPIO +Z0Z SIYBU aseqgelep pue JybLAdoD umolD) o

- UOJIUOH -
AaAIng |1}y aa3udn umol

REGEED = - f‘.,,»,\_,
. - & : 00 200 0 =
: ‘_ﬂm.mm.:wu_ww o
P s :
| ¥
Siled JeD Dadad3 o i
&
N : ' eaniy : Ll
BoAsa : 5 4 T
o femied m el 7 fhinoa or, s18PING.
TUGASNYH: 5 Bhy -
2 - OISR, osnon
) EENcHUENE S eBaug B z
sdojs"sng punosbield: . ; o )
' By
I SJiUN UBJEA

sauasinN Aeq / UylleaH / Aunwiwon
i aInsia

|enuapissy

shemeone|
sqnd
$9J8)) PUE SJUBINE)SSY

2 ol
’_Kncmu:n_

$80IAJSS [BIOUBUI4 PUB [BUOISSS)0Id

- f | 3s012
S$30IAIDG A HN0D NOM %OvTE | < AETIVE
- -- - - I s -
. mn_or_m B_._N_._O 39019 SIIMONA Bidscs it
ol =qoe
sdoys O

BN ENRON ] e

ark k fioBing -
=0
* QA Ny 504
, 1d TWHLNED n
£
'\ ¥
a0
bt

LOI}EPOLLWLO22E JYBILLIBAQ

!
[OBUIN IS -

85 y n.r
3IU87) UMOL
Sealy 8]jUsn) UMOL _H_

. puaban

=2

" shemespi
< euL
iy

AU
A

E)

uolpEd. 1

unod ueuEay Y

h A 4 - it R N F9vssvd 3NN
\ S R X SN . S . 7 disod
e | _ AR

. MO s N oY -

| isyeug
e N

;. Aualiod
4".“.

e
3109HIEON

e,

Sy -

EE Y i

page 120



9%/£2000| A8AINS 32uBURIO Z0g Subl sseqelep pue JybuAdoo umolD @

- UOJIUOH -

AaAIng |le)oy a13Ud) UMO]

TGl el

.mw. .
. 910
~slalswioly

swied e 0aa3 [ ]

sdoys Aem|iey m

sdojs~sng

BYo

SHUM JUEDEA

sauasinN Aeq / yileaH / Alunwwon
ainsia

lejusplssy

shemeaye|

sqnd

$3JED) PUB SJUBINEISDY

S3DIAI9G [BIDUBUIH PUE |BUOISSB)01d
[ IIVET

sdoyg Aueyn

sdoys

BOCECNERCN (e !

uolepoWWoIde JyBiuianp

s

21jU@D UMO]
sealy Buiddoys Aewiiq m
puaban

=]

e
[

3l
* neols

{5100 NG HoviE
|

o s g
e

| shemeaniy
L

A

ey
el ueeg d

ST oterls

"¥00 200 0.

T —TT

Tianen
QHOAENYH.

38073 -

AM3ve

g,h,_.ou_ uidan.
FOYSSWd 3N, S

N N .@} sisag
E1S ang |3 AN

PR

page 121



Evaluation of Boundaries at Ottery St Mary

Ottery St Mary is a small East Devon town located within easy commuting distance of Exeter. The
town focuses on a medieval market place, now the junction of several roads. The small historic core
of the town forms the focal point of commercial activity and the town supports a medium range of
mostly independent traders. There are a comparatively small number of food/drink and other non-
retail commercial premises in the town and some vacant units and charity shops.

Congestion is an issue in parts of the town as the medieval layout has created sewveral ‘pinchpoints’
and a lack of offstreet parking has exacerbated the situation. Shortly before the last survey an edge of
centre larger supermarket, a Sainsbury store opened, and this has provided some short term car
parking and pedestrian links to the town centre. As well as Sainsbury, there are a range of smaller
food stores in the town. Since the last survey the number of vacant units has increased slightly.

On the northern side of the town, and divorced from it, lies Otter Nurseries a garden centre offering a
wide range of retail goods and a substantial cafe. Adjoining it lie several other large cafe/retail outlets.

The first Ottery St Mary plan shows the surwey frontage results. On the basis of the suney the second
and third Ottery St Mary maps show the proposed policy boundary areas for the town.

page 122



Ottery St Mary Retail Survey Map

9%/€Z000| AaAing aaueuplQ +Z0oz siubl aseqelep pue ybuidoos umol) @

- Me 1S Aleno -
AaAINg JIe}ay a1juan umo|

380710 SYAHLYAS. -

UomeR smdos e

sainjsed usale

EGRE - B R - =
. ! . . e 39070 1u3FTY
e 910 210 800 P00 200 (IONVIHOMH o, bayey
Lo ot L, i slejewoly S T Lo
i el v g . - - - i 515 B i
., \ aidsaws - muuzsnen . aibjer g._»ﬁ_:;n,.wfﬁ ubiEpRIaaY Ir:ozmc,m.g:mg . AN A 3 ) g S
k K y eivsl ,, LT .mm.umwuw ajeBajddy oy bliorg
s)ied Jep 9aa3s L : : : ¥

sdojs~sng

1BUI0

SHUM JUBOBA

sauasInN Aeq / YieaH / Ayunwwo)
[enuapisay

shemeaye|

sqnd

$8jeD) pUE SjuRINEISeY

$9DINISS [BIOUBUIL PUB [BUOISSS)0.d
S90IAIBG

sdoys Aleyo

sdoys

AEECNEERdu

o
Upon,

S
- INY TS HILINIA
el

pre VIHHIL

ug - -
13318340088 )

wouLez

pisyoviaHd
S ANYR

6

T o
‘133u15 BAONGK,
s

PUGA ,wm__S,
- pueoorg

LANYTIAAYHD L o b
fuvHoNd

epotIa
JauBiy

a 3 .
- eyaig o 3
R muh_wo..w THHANNNS INFTMINAaA]
i € > .

L yeoiamed
SBIaH

suewog -

L SONYTIoOHS

founrs

SLlvg

1 ooy | abemeoiy Y
© jooyas s Gulby | ssnoH VA
o R

 piod-

(6 A3THLS TUHGNYS

a0 yanug
LS KRS |

“HWNDS TENOH THOIXF
I TR o e o
—E -

SR el
Ia .

B3 dontE v
rar

S e e
| | 7 SJBIURND.
i \ .

~gyon sinowwa 1s

+.nog asey
]

et i i v AN
sowoyuLeg
opaswny UL |

ot B o

HNOS J
["Bugean

asnoy T

UBIEHRNLHAIOD

e | o e
B0Ip3) i
OIS iy R

page 123



Ottery St Mary Proposed Town Centre Area and Primary Shopping Area Maps

9t/£2000) A2AINS 82UBUPIO tZ0Z SIYBL aseqelep pue JyBuAdoa umold o

- Mey 1 AianQ -
AaAing |1e)ay aajua) umo|

syied Jed 0dad3s
sdojs~sng
1BUI0

< sjun jueoep
sapasinN Aeq 7 yjesH / Ayunwwo)

[enuapisay

sAEMESNE|

sqnd

sajeD pue sjueinelsay
{ seolAeg |eldUBUI4 PUE [BUOISSS)0Id

IV

SN || [WE]EN

sdoyg Aeyo
sdoys

as

. 31jU39 UMOL
& SEaly alua) umo| D
puaba

=1

133915 9a0N0A -

ity
it

18UBIk

apisauey

Twasiooua - 1

Jelg msm 13,

“ by
fpeyg

HANNAS INYT BTN i
. Jolrey
seinseg Usaly - ! :
HooITRNEH
siuBIEf
Asuois

suewag -

. . 1= - edEvei
ueusH ST e )
ARy B, o (ANVIIEAVHD
-380710 SuaH VI 5 LY HOND SRR
2507 e oo 5 BANYIHOONE. - e

i LAFHLE TIHANYS

R e

LAyl

I
Ssmnamano UL

e

wnos

2eea ™ iasan”

- SNFauvD

= finog”
uawy
883

P " asnoy
| k)

0D ALY

PUI uBlAPEAY HLNOWAIS

asnoiy smsyodigHd.

X B . EIREE > o R I LISIMOTUML = bl | 3507 tugE
e 91’0 ZL'o 200 $0'0 200 (PANVIHOM -, AT N L
" sIajRWoly ; .
& < B = ! 8 ;
suspwisp. T - k i T e -
[ - mua.wmm meeddy
y - K I o
B e o
. . UOR,
", esdog amy -
- wn. i
e A 3
- 35073 YITANTYS

piep”

TUHAIL .
+isiBping .

13341500
ELVaS

Auo -,

L yunyg |
SARWIE |

ssnoy

samEdD;

Y SHILNIN

e

" pog ase

BTN

somid
ueuy.

lunag F,s.
Buyquiny.

ssnod T
SEULEN0D WIS —
e L .

S4BT WIEeH
| Banyheld;

AR

anuay’
|EJIP3IA

- ejon e
S Bulgwing

page 124



9/€2000} A3AING 90UBUPIQ +Z0Z SIYBU aseqelep pue 1ybuidoo umoln @
- Kepy 3s Aiano -
ABAINgG |1}y d4}UdD UMO]

wen T gig g 800 b0D 200 QONHOK y . £ 3900 Le3gTy /
S sy - Lt )

; i indisi Lnomare
dsan wworen e ey ) PVE PG HinoaS

S hog

SeBaiddy -

s
. asd
siled Jed naa3l P
s " 4HaN,
sdojs~sng s esdog s
18Ul0 3 ﬁ.@ﬁizéu b e

e L YoinyQ:

SjIUMN JUBSEA

o \| seuesINN ABQ / YiESH / AJUNWWo)

[enuapisay

sAEmERNEL
sqnd
$9Je) pue SjuBINEISSY

o3 sy

o mag

s08]y"
UMD«

SOOIAISS [BIOUBUIH PUE [BUOISS40Id

sauwowuuod
sinswoH  BUL

SOOIAIRS

JENCNENR 1=

sdoyg Aeyn
sdoysg

as

JUID UMOL
sealy Buiddoyg Aewd m

=}

4 .
ENTans

. @snay] apisHosigH
A . Eﬁ:m‘u‘?‘.__,mo.,,:__mm:
eoipal ?

1E2p _>_., ! ealy feld

“J810H 11|
+ Buyguing

ueeuesd Jo puet.

-
Goays) []

| 10040 5,Bury

| asnoH

%

S —E L
Spoig
U2 JEAR -

wﬁm..mu_k

I RERTLL

& “QaYHIHO -
SONYDIOONE- L e ;
e e LITHIS TIHONYS

" spuEmcalg
L s uB

Hnog,
- Hemabpry,

SRRY e . :
o L= T . T as “ /
e b TeY R . <
S e T s © 7 esnop
_BNIqUYD N A T 7 suaueyg
ussag ssddon sy §i e | ! . ; 7
B 7 G ssnoy o neg ' p
pieyaIG - g uawy, | J
. fpeus iy ses) - N
G BAOD Uy, . - _—— _ o
L quoiney Lo N - - - _ -
saImsed uasio. . L g 5 | L
Fala? L k | jooigaREy ! ' —-- . > 7|
. To , P : N
- " i - | ' N -
soounon - faums . S i . . _ ,

page 125



Evaluation of Boundaries at Seaton
Seaton town centre is located in the southern part of the town, set back from the seafront.

The town has several shopping streets, though shops are not as tightly grouped together as
in other East Devon towns. The town centre has a central pedestrianised area and is served
by a number of car parks. There are a wide range of independent retailers in the town but
only a limited number of national chain stores.

Although not as vibrant as other East Devon towns Seaton does benefit from a resident
population trade and seasonal tourism trade. Several of the shops, especially closer to the
seafront area, are targeted at a summer trade holiday market.

Seaton has a comparatively large number of café’s and bars, again tailored to a seasonal
holiday market.

The town does have a comparatively high number of vacant units (compared to other East
Devon towns) although this is still considerably below the national average.

At the outer edges of the town centre the retail pattern/presence of shops tends to merge
with increasing residential properties rather than coming to an abrupt end. There are several
charity shops in the town (large numbers of charity shops are seen as an indicator of
struggling centres) but this has not increased significantly since the last survey.

Supermarket provision in the town is dominated by the large Tesco supermarket that opened
in late 2011 and lies to the east of the town centre. Closer to the town centre, and also on its
eastern side, is a much smaller supermarket building previously occupied by Co-Op but now
home to Aldi opened in 2023.

The first Seaton plan shows the survey frontage results. On the basis of the survey the
second and third Seaton maps show the proposed policy boundary areas for the town.

page 126



Seaton Retail Survey Map

9¥/EZ000L ABAINS 8OUBUPIQ +Z0Z SiYbl aseqejep pue WbuAdod umold @

- uojeag -
KaAIng |1e}ay a4juan umoj

o . e MO UER
) S 20 SL'0 10 G0'0 G200 O o
- T T T - SIsjewWo|n I N . T

N f -

- B 8/0uys

sibug

yoeaq uojess

eyo []

“uaspueg

asnop |
- 6 S p ~
SHUN JUEIEN 7 7 e, mi,m;m ! :_Euz__nrixﬂt_m._m ommy
saLasinN AeQ / YleaH / Mlunwwio) ol 1 4 /mﬁé :_Eswmm N x%wm N senoy
Hna i . “ L puerstuny S rmamgaaw_m
ainsis ) Sl Ny

" spueipay

E1s o mtn.n& )
- |enuspissy vomig Lt S
3 i oienks .S,mn_ Bupmog ' 4 E
00 e st R S
T shemeaye] e aRUA - - : i ] suncioieiy i 3

1B3EpHM “ilizpres

r_um;or _moI Ezw,nm. en) 59 ucq Emummm

[una: anoqiey

sqnd
S8jeD pUE SiUBINE)SEY

S80IAIDS |BIOUBUIS PUR [BUOISSSJ0Id

IDDIDIIIDI

S90IMBS
sdoyg Alueyn ,ﬁam_.&.n ¢
v JEE«& I
sdoys N

UONEPOWLIOITE JYBILIBAQ wll Soke

|

- sou I;
-

¥ _.3@%?

E

—

o8

3nua) UMOL

=

{anuey;
‘uoneLolul

Nied Jep

anupudy, -
EIIA asoweg
°H, B i

“asnoy Sdoqumyg
- Aquapioy " Y
asnoy_ tigd | esog
Kelusy {0 hagioue

:.H,,{mqg.mv_w i

WE:.., Bulf LA i
. plel4 bulie|d moLi}m_n_ i

; Emmi:u

4 BlipatD -
s ,_éﬁ(
- atenen. :

[LIES

883
. I

e OO mOQYE

weig".

page 127



ing Area Boundaries

imary Shopp

Seaton Proposed Town Centre and Pr

9v/EZ000] ASAING 8oUBUPIO $Z07Z SIYBL aseqelep pue 1yBLAded umolD @

- uojeag -
KaAing [Ie}ay a4juad UMo]

i u;._n_ﬁ_é
|
“augious pul-
| QYOUNVAISATY

=

krjo o] >>nT 44\5 %

|
—

s$)ied Jed Daa3l
sdojsTsng

B0
SHUN JUedBA

sapesinN Aeq / YieeH / Alunwwo)
alnsia

[efuBpISaY

skemeaye|

sqnd

S9JeD) PUE SJUBINEISBY

$80IAI8S |EIOUBUI PUE [BUDISS8J0.d
S30IAIBS

sdoyg Aeyo

sdoyg

BIECCECEENN (=

uoliepowwodoe YBiuaag

]
]
=]

aljuad umo|
SEaly a4uUs) UMoL _H_
puaba

J

L m\ - T — — — — — = = - A TS
I - -
Ibuyg yseag uojeas )
. 83
sy | - .5.2&.
\ﬂm:wnw S_ms;mﬂs -,
T “!Ea : gxé,
: = BENCH
u s | - f ' |
J L BlS Ang N EELE:

z0 S10 1’0 SO0 G200 0
SISlBWo/ I T . B .

9B 2707 i

- S - . aibuys

sjsu W Vs

spusipsy]

LY

ssnoy |28t
unfa noqueyy
|

Aemuiel] UCIES!

%_m»._mbsa:

ied 1&g

Aou

~gity | ssonn
Jouep,

“asnoy.
~halysy-,

..,.v__mnm_mxm

sl

sIMLTY
piid Buifely

mmsq .am_a

asnoH
Ky

1¥6N00 3574

Aadsig,
. Eosguu:u
IS ey

page 128



97/£20001 AamIng asueupIO 20z siyblL eseqgejep pue ybuAdos umelD @

- uojeag -
AaAINg |1e}ay aJjuan umo]

wo e z0 510 ) S0°0 5200 O o o .
3 e L si3jaWo|y e T
T - o o e - ° T - mﬁmmEm B .‘.Lp_._\s__,@.x‘ﬁus_ aemmm T
- T == — — _— - - - — = - =TT HEAA 1557
3lbulys yoeeg ucjeas - ) o

— - -1 _ -

e - E ; - = o T . - S4- -
- . Mn_(z(inu . i - [ ) = T
_ . sni - uospuBy,.
i ﬁ = _a_?_;mmg .

?9 ey . A, - - 2 “onu_mxus_m is. e Eﬁ{
Sujpioys ot - . : . ¥ 4 aBej ﬁm«.u siBaucis
g(bng.mﬁmm ) - siise  oenon
- S ﬂcn,mm;z : wareid
W3S, 5 ,«\‘\\\1 | ueips
= - TlolIAEd Suod: pueed

ussID
Bugmog

P T

5] P
1 ©-avod d1314v3as

Hiled 1e) Dad3

sdojs~sng [ sebenag;

AY v siausdies |

1Pu10

S)HUM JUBDEA

saasinN Aeq / yiesH 7 Anunwiwon
ains|a’

[efuapisay

shemeaye] | soveua sorvii

sqng
S840 pUE SJUBINRISaY

S20IAl9gG [BIOUBUIY PUB |EUQISSD)OIH . y

esnop sdowuns s nmu_u:i.w.
< kquspien . . i
ssnoy
Aslusy,

S20INDG

sdoys Aeud
sdoys

gga | sson,
s

Tiyledaeyg

wf

svdis,

HECRCEERCN Ju

Bl {
: pial4 Buikeld

UOIEPOLILLOo9E JYBILIBAQ valy Aeig

asnon

1¥n00iFad
I dayfn

as|
3IU8) UMOL , : -

3 sealy Buiddoys Alewd m
pusba

2

g Eﬂ.ﬁ )
LoyBuipato-—
i :EEU REgou

iavOs Modyan,
BRI Sy

/

page 129



Evaluation of Boundaries at Sidmouth

Sidmouth town centre is located in the southern part of the town set back from the seafront.
Sidmouth is a commercially successful town centre with a vibrant long main shopping street
(and subsidiary streets) and very few vacant units. The town centre is part pedestrianised
and served by a number of car parks. The town has a good selection of independent
retailers as well as a number of national chain stores.

East Devon District Council, the town’s major employer with around 500 staff, relocated to
Honiton since the last survey but this does not appear to have had a lasting major impact on
the town centre.

The town benefits from not just a resident population of shoppers but also from a vibrant
tourism trade. There are no major supermarkets in the town centre although Co-op and
Tesco have smaller format shops in the centre. Larger supermarkets are found away from
the town centre in the form of a Lidl's store, roughly in the geographic centre of the town,
and a Waitrose store on the northern edge of Sidmouth.

The first Sidmouth plan shows the survey frontage results. There is a comparatively low
presence of charity shops in the town (large numbers of charity shops are seen as an
indicator of struggling centres) and there are a wide selection of bars, cafés and restaurants.
It is noticeable that several properties have changed use to housing since the last survey but
these were mainly non-retail uses such as bank premises.

On the basis of the survey the second and third Sidmouth maps show the proposed policy
boundary areas for the town.

page 130



Sidmouth Retail Survey Map

| T gyesThe Lawn
The Byes
[

Giangé’;rg

Ravensérag

LB

Sunni
Enstone

{ wc_A’RA‘GE-F‘{oAD-‘ o Legend i= ‘
"Hallf . Coftage ‘AVENUiE ; -
ERNNDX i “/| Town Centre
T PN o O EE—
S v X

g AT
g e e L
T Mentone

c

se

Qvernight accommodation

“Radwal || | sh
: Radway | | ops -
I DI i \
[CONNAUGHT CLOSE . Charity Shops
- Powys! Lo

(Cottage’, 4| v

Services

-5
“Telephone
| Exchange
‘ol

Professional and Financial Services

u

Restaurants and Cafes
Pubs

Takeaways

Residential -
Leisure

Community / Health / Day Nurseries
Vacant Units

Other

Bus_stops oun

' Patan - Haddon Hall
Penmans

Sidmouth Victoria
Hospital

~ SIDMOUTH

EDDC Car Parks

“Fairmead

o ) e ]

Totiage T

Stand e
 LTwrs

. Blackmore Field Jennis Courts

‘Sports Bavilion,

Heydon's Lap 'l R A

L ADRiver Sid sty
Heydon's, Casil . i
TeraeeRiverside Ho

s I
Chuich Rath
Church Patr
[

X '/ The Blackmore
Pavilion I

Gardens

Coburg

A
; .Grnun_d—' |

Tor Hayes

Bowling Green

OBURG TERRAGE
v v .

Lennards "
Gourt

Amyat's [ Ruan House

Terrace | ;

Laki
Abiff Place .

Ii Shimodd
1" erthorpe

. aima
Recreation Bridge

Ground ‘ "

“Anchor

Caf Park Salcgrﬁbe Hilk
 Shingle C“ﬂ'

[rERRAGE Shing!

*shingle

Landing Stage

| SPIGR " gean Low Water

 BedfordCourfVeranidan Gattag
e Tig-18,

Sbéns Pavilion

Kitinake CottageSt Pt

T shingle - ;s
(BEDFORD. 7 otel. | \atn © e PR
SQUARE beth \-Lo_ T “Siipway e Shingle, .
1 THE'ESPLANADE - Vo L '
Vot e B
[Cricket Field §‘[ip,way i
- . - |
Car Park Shingle .o 4
" ptesiviion water i
: e Mg Lown Kilometers
A e 0 0.02 0.04 0.08 0.12 0.16

-Town Centre Retail Survey
- Sidmouth -

© Crown copyright and database rights 2024 Ordnance Survey 100023746

page 131



Sidmouth Proposed Town Centre and Primary Shopping Area boundaries

Cot[agL -

House |

Cedar Shade

Patan ;.

~'Fairmead

Sl

RD_S.ELANDS y

.80

- North Garth
- Court

s
[[ERRACE

Sports Pavilion

[Cricket Field

|CONNAUGMT€LDSE* o
CPowys, | 1w "
The

L
= e
i TThe “Gargens:

Bramleygsne =
MarllaL?

Miaddon Hall
Penmans

Stand

Sports Pavilion
5

. Yo . i  Shingle

THE ESPLANADE - S"pw?y - e
h Slipway |
- e B [
A Car Park Shingle ..

Meei High Water
- Méan Low W Kilometers
0 0.02 0.04 0.08 0.12 0.16

! the Byes The Lawn

) ! ! Thy Byes

IR | I

+ Ravenscrag ‘Sidmouth N A i i
P coe | b \ C s

rimary School : Sa\ccmbeLawn ' ; iy

Glangarry

’Gulver House_

she
Culver Gardens

Legend
Sunnihgl
Enstorie D Town Centre Areas
Town Centre o

[=
I
o

Overnight accommodation

Shops

Charity Shops

Services

Professional and Financial Services

Restaurants and Cafes
Pubs

i ngxen\ ol F e

o e

FS
Sidlands ’k"sw
canLouge

"ruunr House

Takeaways

e EHn

- -
\ | .
\ncaragm
\

Green Gables \

fan’

Residential

Leisure
Community / Health / Day Nurseries
Vacant Units

Other

Bus_stops toun

NE HOENRCORCCn

Sidmouth Victoria
Hospital

DIVlOUTH

- . EDDC Car Parks
NG

AZMILL

- lodge
“Shelsley Holse —

L Twrs

I
\
.

. Tennis Courts 11

" Blackmore Field

Heydon's Lap

iy :
Chureh Path
Church Path.

Pavilion

Coburg Gardens

. Ground Tl O

R b Tor Hayes,_ ©

. Bowling Green :

/CDBURG TERR CE .
The Days

Amyatts < Lennards ‘Ruan Housa

Court 3 .

T Terrace

i Shimodd
“Overthorpe

Hall -

Caf Park Salcombe Hill

" shingle

Cliff

Shingid

" shingle. -
" Shingla

“Landing Stage
* llean Low Water

geubmmun\leranqan leag

mm aKe Conages‘ Pelef

Shingle

Town Centre Retail Survey

- Sidmouth -

© Crown copyright and database rights 2024 Ordnance Survey 100023746

page 132



Ichester |
1 House

L

2atan

.+ Fairmead

L Sta

- Gourt |

Cricket Field

1o YooTE

: 'CO@NAUGMTQ%‘E— |

IC e

CPowys .l T

Cottage " — 1 Loy

| T
I’J Vo=

o
= ‘l I‘“

! R
P | L

(smley@gne‘

Wartlats' | —|—
= e Eime

|
A= | i
T L L i
| Mcarage'“

.- "Tiaddon Hall
~" Penmans

| SIDMOUTH

Sports Pavilion

I thu‘ByesThe Lawn
} ! The Byes

| L
| "3.: / PRCTI

7
~1"lguver House |

Py

. Rdvenscrag

./ SalcombeLawn

Legend

E Primary Shopping Areas
Town Centre

Use

- Overnight accommodation
- Shops

|:| Charity Shops

|:| Services

l
~ Telaphone |
'EKcnarI'nge‘

s

- i
he Gardens _
Haven '&‘U\W\ 2 Hgvlbwmr"—
. al

|:| Restaurants and Cafes

P Pubs
- Takeaways
Il Resicential
|:| Leisure

o

|
"Fud‘ur House
i
i

Green Gables |

D Vacant Units
I:I Other

J E Bus_stops

[7] EDDC Car Parks

Sidmouth Victoria
Hospital

- Professional and Financial Services

[T community / Health / Day Nurseries

El=

, “Shelsley, House |
L |1

nd

nge B T Litte Mead —

L Twrs.

Blackmore Field

|

I £
_Church'Path

Church ‘P‘alh !
[

| Ceeil
. TerraceRIverside Hoy
geté Pavilion i .

Amyatts ' Lennards
Terrace Court

Abiff Place.

. Anchor
nn (PH),

Car Park

" Shingie - -~

’Shpway
shingle ..o~

. Slipway e Shingle. ..

Car Park smnge .

_ esi High Water

N st Lo 1 Kilometers
e - 0 0.02 0.04 0.08 0.12 0.16

st Wyride
]

Salcombe Hil -
" shingle

Landing Stage
"~ Miean Low water

T
Vo .
Hatley Cottage

Shimodd
' Overthorpe -

Cliff

Shingk

Town

Centre Retail Survey
- Sidmouth -

© Crown copyright and database rights 2024 Ordnance Survey 100023746

page 133



Conclusions

The town centres of East Devon all offer a reasonable range of stores and all can meet day
to day shopping needs, the possible exceptions being Budleigh Salterton and Cranbrook
(currently) which lack a larger supermarket. Beer and Colyton offer smaller foodshops which
can still meet most residents everday needs and are within relatively short distances of the
large supermarket at Seaton.

With the exception of Cranbrook, the inland town centres all focussed on, and grew up
around, their medieval street markets and these have been a key reason for the road layouts
today. These markets have only been retained on a weekly basis in Axminster and Honiton,
although all of the towns have less regular ‘special’ events. The potential to increase the
number of street markets, as encouraged by the NPPF, is constrained by the lack of town
centre space available on a very regular basis and the need to temporarily close roads or car
parks for such activity.

Whilst there are varying degrees of commercial activity in all of the towns and some, notably
Sidmouth, are more vibrant than others none of the towns are dominated by vacant stores
and/or charity shops.

On this basis the town centres of East Devon can be seen to be performing well compared
to many other town centres and High Streets in Britain.

On the basis of the survey work undertaken it is credible and desirable to define town centre
areas and primary shopping areas for the towns of East Devon. Proposed areas are defined
on the maps in this report. Views are welcomed on this report which will be subject to
refinement and will be used to justify policy in the East Devon Local Plan through to
submission and examination.

page 134



GeT abed

APPENDIX 1- Summary of Responses to the Issues and Options Consultation

Chapter / Topic /Qu

Summary of main issues

Officer response

Town Centres /15 /
Summary

Most respondents favoured mixed commercial uses intown centres, with over half of
respondents supporting leisure or community uses and very little opposition to these.
Dominant retail use(as has traditionally been promoted by policy) received around
30% supportand a similar level of opposition.Inthe written comments the use of
upper floors for services, community activities and housing was strongly supported
and a range of measures suggested to encourage this.

A significantproportion of respondents (around 20%) were opposed to change of use
to housing, although this also received considerable (quantified) support. In the
written comments most concern related to the permanent loss of retail units to
housingand the consequent impacton the retail function of the town centres. Edge-
of-centre and firstfloor residential usereceived considerablesupport.

The need for town centres to be vibrantsocial spaces was expressed by many
respondents. A range of activities, areas to sitand increased community, health and
serviceuses were seen as a majordraw.

The responses are noted and will inform Town Centre policy.

Town Centres /15 /
General

The objective should be to build selfsustaining communities for a diverserange of
people/ retaining community cohesion and high footfall

This will bea key policyaim

Town Centres /15 /
General

Service industries and cafes should beencouraged to improve vitality. Ifthese can be
established aboveshops that would double the footfall

These are uses which are encouraged intown centre policy.

Town Centres / 15/
General

A strongfocus on heritage, cultureand the arts to make each town centre special

This is an objective of the town centre and builtheritage policies.

Town Centres / 15/
General

Planforsocial spaces (café’s, gardens, stalls, pop-up shops) to encourage use of
outsideareas. Encourage street markets, music,food events to create vitality

Noted. Policy encourages such uses but the temporary nature
and ‘on street’ location means that the actual events are beyond
the scope of the local plan.




9¢T abed

Chapter / Topic /Qu

Summary of main issues

Officer response

Town Centres / 15/
General

Uses at firstfloor and above should be strongly encouraged- Gyms andleisureuses,
housingand community use

This will bea key policyaim

Town Centres / 15/
General

Housing should not dominate but should be integrated to maintaina mix of uses and
reduce vehicle movements/Allow housingonthe edge of centres but retain centre for
shopping/services.Onlyallow housing whereadequate facilities (including parking
andoutside space) can be provided for the residents.

This will bea key policyaim

Town Centres / 15/
General

A splitof opinion between itbeing better to have housingthan empty shops and
concern that, once a shopis changed to housing,itis permanently lost.

Noted

Town Centres /15 /
General

Retail uses should be promoted intown centres and footfall is still encouraged despite
on-lineshopping. This could includetown centre showrooms with goods availableto
see/try on before collection/delivery fromwarehouses, speciality retailersand goods
collection points e.g. for those who aren’t at home to collectpackages.

Noted. The town centre and primary shoppingfrontage policies
aimto encourage andretain retail uses.

Town Centres / 15/
General

Greater pedestrianisation (day-timecar free streets) and more convenient public
transport

Traffic management is a County Highways matter but policycan
supportgreater pedestrianisationandimproved access to public
transportthrough the strategicand design policies of the plan,
by directing development to those settlements best served by
publictransportand by making layouts accessible and
convenient to walkers.

Town Centres / 15/
General

Cheaper business rates, car parkingand affordable space for community groups and
arts

This is beyond the scope of the local plan

Town Centres / 15/
General

Promote shared community use- for sports/gyms but also education/culture/spiritual
uses

Policy will requirethis




) €T abed

Chapter / Topic /Qu

Summary of main issues

Officer response

Town Centres / 15/
General

Potential for seasidetowns to be redeveloped, prioritise removing existing eyesores
andestablish a coherent character for new development

This will beaddressed through the local plan town-specific
chapters and design policies

Town Centres / 15/
General

Rural settlements should not lose existing retail and community facilities.

Policy will resistthe loss of existing facilities in these settlements
and encourage provision of new/additional facilities.

Town Centres / 15/
General

Need to accept that privatecars areinevitableinrural areas

Noted. Policyintentis to reduce the need to travel and the
impactof private vehicles through a combination of settlement
self-containment, directing new development to the most
sustainablelocations, encouraging waling, cyclingand public
transportand requiring provision for electric vehicles.

Town Centres / 15/
General

Policy should beflexiblesothat itcan quickly respondto changing circumstances

Policyisintended to be flexibleand responsive.

Additional town centre
policy objectives /16 /
Summary

Paragraph 7.6 of the Issues and Options report identified three additional areas where
policies may be appropriateincludingtheuse of vacantstories over shops, resisting
‘out of town’ uses to supporttown centres and producingtown centre masterplans to
identify key areas forimprovement. Views were sought on whether these were
appropriate.

Although most respondents (67%) ticked the yes box, a number did suggest other
objectives or qualify their choice.

Support for the suggested additional policy areas is welcomed.

Additional town centre
policy objectives /16 /
General

Different responses are needed for eachtown centre. These should be produced in
consultation with the local community and neighbourhood plans.

Itis envisaged that the Planwill includetown-specific chapters,
with policies informed by consultationand NP’s (as well as other
evidence)

Additional town centre
policy objectives /16 /
General

Out of town retailingshould beresisted and, where itis allowed, should havesimilar
conditions to town centres e.g. parkingcharges and be accessibleto pedestrians and
cyclists

Itis envisagedthat a sequential approach willbetaken, with
town centre locations being preferred to out of town locations.
Parking charges are not within the control of the local plan




geT abed

Chapter / Topic /Qu

Summary of main issues

Officer response

Additional town centre
policy objectives /16 /
General

Make centres pedestrianand publictransportfriendly. Make car parkingcheap or
free.

The local plan will promote sustainable methods of transportand
design/layouts which facilitate public transport, cyclingand
walking. Parking charges are not within the control of the local
plan

Additional town centre
policy objectives /16 /
General

Offer a town wide onlinepresence sosmall retailers can offer goods onlineand share
costs

This is a town management matter andis outsidethe scope of
the local plan

Additional town centre
policy objectives /16 /
General

Need to promote local foods and goods, encourage farm shops but not as
competition to the High Street shops (or there could be a co-op shop for local farmers
to sell through)

This is a town management matter andis outsidethe scopeof
the local plan

Additional town centre
policy objectives /16 /
General

Redevelop out of town shoppingareas as housing (especially sheltered housing)

Itisintended thatretail uses on employment sites would revert
to employment uses ifretail is nolonger viable. Permitted
development rights (depending on sizeandlocation) may allow
retail units to be converted into houses without permissionin
some cases.

Additional town centre
policy objectives /16 /
General

Accept out of town retailingandimproveaccess toit and the shopper experience.
Encourage linked trips to town centres.

A sequential approach will betaken, with town centre locations
being preferred to out of town locations.

Additional town centre
policy objectives /16 /
General

Make town centres social spacesand focus on the shopper experience

Itis envisaged that this will bea key aim of town centre policy




APPENDIX 2- Summary of Responses to the Draft Local Plan
Consultation

Policy 56 - Town centre hierarchy, sequential approach and impact assessment

e Unsure how this will regenerate town centres.

e Supportthat out-of-centresites should be accessible by bicycleand well connected to the centre.
¢ ‘Edge of (town) centre’ developments should only be allowed where itis shown there will be no
adverse impactonthe vitality and economicvibrancy of its nearby town centre.

e Prefercurrentpolicy.

e This hierarchy seems wrong. Tier 3 centres vary considerably. Budleighis fairly large. Lympstone
has a train line. The otherthree settlements should be tier 4.

e The accessibility of edge-of-centre and out-of-centre sites on foot and bike needs to be such that
anyone can use the provision ratherthan only being possible forthose who are fitand able or
confidentenough.

e Exmouthtown should be redeveloped asit haslost it’s historiccharacterand is bland and run
down. This could extend to celebrating maritime heritage on the seafront, restoring the arcade
building and building a new swimming pool with hot tubs

e Independent businesses with afocus on sustainability need encouraging. Farm shops could be
locatedintowns.

¢ Focus housinginthe town centres (especially Exmouth) as an alternative to building on the
AONB's/countryside

e Shop frontage and signs must also be keptin keeping with the heritage of the area as thistoo can
have a negative impactonthe area.

e Artisan markets and craft markets and farmers markets should be encouraged

¢ Out of centre sites should be actively discouraged and policy should reflect this. A'sequential test'
isvery unlikely to be robust enough to protect our town centres.

¢ The policy does notrecognize the problemsthat ourtown centresface, the issue of adeq uate and
cheap parking, and does not offerany hope for improvement

¢ Sidmouth Cycling Campaign support the policy that out of centre sites should be accessible by
bicycle and well connected to the centre.

¢ Exeter Cycling Campaign would like ‘by these modes’ to be added after ‘centre’. Currently this
doesn’tactually say thatthey should be well-connected to the centre by publictransport, bicycle
and foot. They can be accessible from some other point by all those things, but not necessarily the
centre, so thisshould be explicitly stated.

Policy 57 - Town Centre development

e Devon County Council welcomethis policy but suggestitis strengthened to ensure thereisno
overall erosion of critical mass of activity within its retail core.

e Devon Wildlife Trust advised the requirement forenhancement of the natural environment should
be included within this policy. The provision of well designed, connected, diverse natural corridors
through town centres can act as important flagship projects showcasing th e benefits of the natural
environment.

e Cranbrook town centre is poorly designed and doesn’treally exist. Itisn’t clear where the shops
are/will be and they aren’t close to the station.

e Supportthe reference to shop frontagesasit is consistent with the current SPD relating to
Exmouth’s shop front policy.

page 139



¢ Objectto loss of retail premises to housing.

e The statement that change of use to residential willonly be permitted if 'there isno demand for
town centre use'should be strengthened. With anincreasing number of businesses closing it would
be good to see more positive proposals forinvigorating town centres.

e Should Beerreally be inthis group?

e Exmouth Town centre lacks visual appeal. There needs to more characterand are good examples
of this are Sidmouth, and cities such as Bath.

e Rejuvenation (of Exmouth)isamust and to encourage independent, sustainable businesses rather
then more hairdressers, charity shops and fast food outlets.

¢ Thisis a standard version of a long-established policy. The use of upstairs accommodation for
residential purposesis greatly discouraged because many of our town centre buildings are listed or
are situatedina Conservation Area, so alterations to allow occupation are very expensiveand are
oftenrejected.

e Exeter Cycling Campaign would like to explicity mention the need to enable cycling as a means of
transport, with prominence given to properly-designed and located cycle parking. Towns like
Honiton and Axminster currently have very fewSheffield cycle parking stands and these are often
inconveniently located.

e Churchill Retirement Living supports the proposed Exmouth Town Centre boundary.

page 140



APPENDIX 3- Methodology for Town Centre Policy Evaluation

Note- this was produced as an internal document to guide Officersin undertaking the work and
therefore constitutes a background documentonly.

Town Tier
Exmouth One- Principal Centre
Axminster Two- Main Centre

Cranbrook-addressedinthe Two- Main Centre
Cranbrook Plan

Honiton Two- Main Centre
Ottery St Mary Two- Main centre
Seaton Two- Main Centre
Sidmouth Two- Main centre
Budleigh Salterton Three- Local Centre
Colyton Three- Local Centre
Beer Four-Service Village

Summary- Two plans to be produced for each town:

the first will identify the main ground floor uses (this work should be undertakenin the
nextfew weeks)

the second will identify the town centre area and the primary shopping area based on
these uses (following a team discussion to ensure a consistentapproach)

The plans should also identify any possible areas for regeneration/redevelopment within, or close
to, the town centre and areas within the town centre which could be used for temporary or
community events, including pop-ups and markets.

This will be accompanied by a short text identifying the special characteristics of the town centre,

discussing the current uses and town centre ‘health’ (at a high level) and considering the possible
future availability of vacant/underused/regeneration sitesin and around the town centre.

The NPPF requirements and definition of termsis setout in the report.

Introduction

1.1 The NPPFrequiresthe Local Planto ‘define anetwork and hie rarchy of town centres’ (see
appendix 2) and this corresponds to the table above. Budleigh, Colyton and Beer are included onthe
list because they all have recognisable main shopping streetsand we wish to see theirretail function
protected. Cranbrook town centre is notyet established but for future reference the survey will
record whatisthere.

1.2 The NPPFthenrequires policy to ‘define the extent of town centres and primary shopping
areas, and make clearthe range of uses permitted in such locations, as part of a positive strategy for

the future of each centre’. The starting pointforthis work will be an evaluation of existing retail
activity inthe town centres and indications of town centre health.

page 141



Survey methodology

2.1 In March 2012 surveys were carried outinthe seven main towns of East Devon. These will be the
starting point forthe currentassessments. The March 2012 surveys assessed the principle use of the
frontages of buildings in the town centre areas at ground floor level only. The fron tages of buildings
were classified on the basis of the following (Use Class) categories:

March 2012 survey:

e Al-shops(showninredon plans) with charity shops formingasub-category (thisincluded uses
such as hairdressers and opticians);

¢ A2 —Professional and financial services (blue);

e A3 —Restaurants and cafes (orange);

e A4 —Pubs (purple);

e A5-—Takeaways(green)

e Vacant units (yellow); and

¢ Other(no colour/grey on maps).

2.2 Since the previous survey the Use Classes Order has undergone asignificant revision and so
this study will be looking at a widerrange of uses than the 2012 study. Many of the Class A uses have
beenincorporatedintothe new Commercial, Business and Service use Class Eand this isidentified in
the NPPGas ‘a broad and diverse range of uses which principally serve the needs of visiting
members of the publicand/orare suitable fora town centre area’. Class E allows fora mix of uses
whichrecognises thatabuilding may be in several different uses concurrently or be usedfor
different uses atdifferent times of the day. The classincorporates the whole of the previous shops
(A1) (apart fromthose that now fall within scope of the F2 Local Community use class), financialand
professionalservices (A2), restaurantand cafes (A3) and business (Blincluding offices) use classes,
and usessuch as nurseries, health centres and gyms ( previously in classes D1 non-residential
institutions, and D2 assembly and leisure) and it seeks to provide for new uses which may emerge
and are suitable foratown centre area. Not all uses of land or buildings fit within the use classes
orderand this ‘sui generis’ category (which can’t change use as PD) includes theatres, publichouses,
hot food takeaways, petrol stations, taxi businesses, and casinos (these examples are not
exhaustive).

2.3 In the firstinstance the study requires Officers to:

e surveythetown centre, identifying the predominant ground floor uses as perthe box below,
takingthe 2012 survey as a starting point to identify the extent of the town centre but being
mindful of the new use classes.

e |dentify anyaccessible openspacesinthe town centre or edge of centre which could be
used fortemporary or community events, including pop-ups and markets asthe NPPF
encouragesthese.

e make notes of any areas within orclose to the town centre, which could potentially be
suitable forredevelopment, regeneration or foruses which can’t find suitable town centre
sites (egsupermarkets).

2.4 It should be noted thatit isthe streetfrontage that will be surveyed and the frontage thatis
the critical component of the survey work. It will be difficult to accurately assess the floorspace for
any use and soit will be assumed thatthe whole ground floorisinthe use recorded unlessitis
indicated otherwise (forexample by stating that the use does not occupy the whole ‘depth’ of the
building, orthatthe internal space is clearly divided between several uses and estimate what that

page 142




splitshould be). Toincrease accuracy, business rate records and planning permissions can be used as
necessary but may not be available in all cases. In the absence of this more detailed information, for
ease of mapping Ordinance Survey defined building plots/blocks will be colouredin. A health
warning will explain thatthe colouringin of plots/blocks will notindicatethatall of the colouredin
areaisin a given defined use orfunction northatthere are active frontages (eg shop windows) on all
external sides of premises.

2.5 Ideally, this survey would extend to upperfloors butin practice thisis difficult to undertake
without entering the buildingand discussing the use with the occupiers. From outsideitis noteasy
to differentiate between many uses, particularly residential, storage, vacant units and office space
unlessthereis externalsignage, labelled door bells or similar. Given the resource constraintsitis not
proposedthatthe survey extend to upperfloors.

. Shops (red) with charity shops forming a sub-category

. Service usessuch as hairdressers, opticians, nail bars and other ‘experiences’ (light blue)
J Professionaland financial services (dark blue)

. Restaurants and cafes (orange)

o Pubs (purple)

. Takeaways (dark green)

. Houses (grey)

. Leisure (brightgreen)

. Community/health/day nurseries (although these are not the same use classes) (brown)
o Vacant units (yellow); and

. Other (nocolour)

2.6 To ensure consistency, once the first stage survey work is complete the team will discuss

boundary definition usingan example town. In line with the NPPF, the policy approach will be one of
defining Town Centre areas to encompass broad central areas in towns where there is existing retail
and commercial activity and potential to accommodate more activity. Using this survey informati on
the team will seek toidentify the extent of the Town Centre and the Primary Shopping Areaona
map (this will be transferred onto the Proposals Map later). The town centre should be of a size that
ensuresitislarge enoughto provide flexibility and scope for more activity but without beingso large
that itcould lead to dispersal of commercial activity into separate unconnected areas of the town.
Ease of physical movementand connectivity is seen as critical, therefore the defined shopping area
should be comfortable to walk around and across for reasonably active people. Uses which support,
and are essentialto, town centre activity, forexample publictransport hubs, should be included
withinthe town centre as we would not want to lose these to other uses. Given the range of usesin
ClassE (and the permitted changes between uses) and the relatively constrained town centre areas,
these areas may coincide butthisisa matterfor discussion.

Town Centre Health

3.1 The presence of charity shops, along with vacantunits, is considered to be an indication of
poor town centre health (they typically pay less rentthan otherretail uses and enjoy rate reliefand
so theirpresence suggests alack of demand for premises from otherretailers). Please note which
units are charity shops as this will inform the commentary. We have the 2012 maps for comparison
and changes overthe past 10 years should be noted and it should be possibletoidentify
buildings/areas where vacancyisanissue.

page 143




Primary Shopping Frontages

41 In previous plans we have identified Primary Shopping Frontages which weretightly
focussed onthe principal areas of retail activity and commercial facilities with ‘active’ frontages
which contribute to the vitality of the area. | do not propose to identify PSF’sin this plan because the
new E class allows the loss of retail to non-retail uses as permitted developmentandsoitis
superfluous.

Commentary

5.1 Please produce ashort commentary forthe town to provide an overview of the special
characteristics of the town centre, an example fromthe 2012 study is provided overthe page. The
commentary should discuss the current uses and ‘health’ of the town centre (ata highlevel) and
considerthe possibleavailability of sitesin and around the town centre for alternative usesin

future. If there are longstanding regeneration aspirations for some towns eg Websters Garage in
Axminster, orprominentlong-term vacant buildings then these should be mentioned.

Appendix 1 (to the Survey methodology)
NPPF Requirements and Definitions of Terms

90. Planning policies and decisions should supportthe rolethat town centres playatthe heart of local
communities, by takinga positiveapproach to their growth, management and adaptation.Planningpolicies
should:

(a) define a network and hierarchy of town centres and promote their long-term vitality and viability —by
allowingthem to grow and diversifyinawaythat canrespond to rapid changes inthe retail andleisure
industries, allows a suitable mix of uses (including housing) and reflects their distinctive characters;

(b) define the extent of town centres and primary shoppingareas,and make clear the range of uses permitted
insuchlocations, as partofa positivestrategy for the future of each centre;

(c) retain and enhance existing markets and, where appropriate, re-introduceor create new ones;

(d) allocatea rangeof suitablesites in town centres to meet the scaleand type of development likely to be
needed, lookingatleast10years ahead. Meeting anticipated needs for retail, leisure, officeand other main
town centre uses over this period should not be compromised by limited siteavailability, so town centre
boundaries should be kept under review where necessary;

(e) where suitableand viabletown centre sites arenot availablefor main town centre uses, allocate
appropriate edge of centre sites that are well connected to the town centre. If sufficientedge of centre sites
cannot be identified, policies should explain howidentified needs can be met in other accessiblelocations that
are well connected to the town centre; and

(f) recognisethat residential development often plays animportantrole in ensuringthe vitality of centres and
encourage residential development on appropriatesites.

NPPF Definitions

Edge of centre

For retail purposes, a location thatis well connected to, and up to 300 metres from, the primary shopping
area. For all other maintown centre uses, a location within 300 metres of a town centre boundary. For office
development, thisincludes locationsoutsidethetown centre but within 500 metres of a publictransport
interchange. In determining whether asite falls within thedefinition of edge of centre, accountshould be
taken of local circumstances.

Main town centre uses

Retail development (includingwarehouseclubs andfactory outlet centres); leisure, entertainment and more
intensivesportandrecreation uses (includingcinemas, restaurants, drive-through restaurants, bars and pubs,

page 144



nightclubs, casinos, health and fitness centres, indoor bowling centres and bingo halls); offices;and arts,
cultureand tourismdevelopment (includingtheatres, museums, galleries and concerthalls, hotels and
conference facilities).

Out of centre

A location whichis notinoron the edge of a centre but not necessarily outsidethe urban area.

Primary shopping area

Defined area where retail development is concentrated.

Town centre

Area defined on the local authority’s policies map, includingthe primary shoppingarea andareas
predominantly occupied by maintown centre uses within or adjacentto the primaryshoppingarea.
References to town centres or centres applyto city centres, town centres, districtcentres andlocal centres but
exclude small parades of shops of purely neighbourhood significance. Unless they are identified as centres in
the development plan, existing out-of-centre developments, comprisingorincluding maintown centre uses,
do not constitute town centres.

page 145



APPENDIX 4- Sequential Test Impact Assessment Threshold

The National Planning Policy Framework, in Paragraphs 90-95 requires all proposals for main town
centre uses which are not inan existing centre ordo not accord with an up-to-date planto be
subjecttoa sequential test. Main town centre uses should be located intown centres, thenin edge
of centre locations; and only if suitable sites are not available (or expected to become available
withinareasonable period)should out of centre sites be considered.

When assessing applications forretail and leisure development outside town centres, which are not
inaccordance with an up-to-date plan, local planning authorities should requirean impact
assessmentifthe developmentis overaproportionate, locally set floorspacethreshold (if thereis no
locally setthreshold, the default thresholdis 2,500m? of gross floorspace). Inthe current adopted
Local Plan thisthresholdissetat 500 m2.

The Council does not considerthat the default 2,500m? gross threshold provides sufficient comfort
that retail development across East Devon can be controlledin terms of itsimpact. In common with
many historicmarketand coastal towns, premisesin East Devontown centrestend to be smaller,
oftensingle fronted but capable of combination orextension, as well as use of up perfloors. In order
to determine an appropriate threshold we have considered the scale of existing retail stores across
the town centresin the District, particularly those stores which underpin/anchordefined centres.

In relation to convenience retail provision, there isawide range of store sizes with many of the
largersupermarkets eitherin edge or out-of-centre locations. Town centres generally have smaller
foodstores. In many cases, the smallerfoodstores provide an important contribution to the health of
centresandin some cases provide ananchor role. In many cases they are also the largest units town
centresand therefore proposals forsimilarsized storesin edge orout of centre locations are unlikely
to be caught by the sequentialtest as no comparable vacant premises/sites will exist. Therefore, we
considerthata trigger point of 500 m?gross for retail proposalsinvolving the potential sale of
conveniencegoods continues to be appropriate inthe Local Plan. This should apply to new stand
alone retail floorspace, proposed extensions to existing stores and applications to vary the range of
goodsto be sold from existing floorspace. In addition, we consider that this threshold should apply
consistently across the whole of the District for both edge of centre and out of centre locations.

In respect of comparison goods retailing asimilar exercise has been undertaken. There are a wide
variety of unitsizes, varying from smaller unitsin general inthe smallertown centres with alarger
average size of unitin centres such as Exmouth, Sidmouth and Honiton. In out of centre locations,
unitsizestendtobe large, focusing on large format bulky goods sales. Generally speaking, single
comparison goods retailers do not provide alone sole anchor to defined centres, although the range
and quality of comparison goods retailers provides a very important contribution to their health and
attractiveness. With such arange of retailers presentinthe East Devon areait is difficultto be
precise overthe exactscale of floorspace which could have a detrimental impact upon the health of
defined centres, however given trendsin the retail sectorin recentyears and the evolution of the
retail warehousing sector, we considerthat a trigger of 500 m? gross floorspace should also be
appliedtoimpact assessments for comparison goods floorspace. This should also apply to new stand
alone retail floorspace, proposed extensions to existing stores and applications to vary the range of
goods to be sold from existing floorspace. This threshold should also apply to bulky and non-bulky
goods proposalsand, like convenience goods uses, be applied consistently across the whole of the
East Devonarea forboth edge of centre and out of centre locations.

page 146



The 500 m? threshold has been successful established foranumber of years. The Council considers
that it continuesto strike an appropriate balance between control overinappropriate development
and notbecomingoverly restrictive oronerous to applicants.

page 147



Agenda Iltem 10
|

Report to: Strategic Planning Committee

Date of Meeting: 5 March 2024

Document classification: Part A Public Document —— .
District Council
Exemption applied: None

Review date for release N/A

East Devon Playing Pitch Strategy
Report summary:

This report provides details of work to date on production of the Playing Pitch Strategy for East
Devon. [t is highlighted in the report that substantive work has been undertaken on the
evidence gathering side of strategy production, this has been undertaken in accordance with
Sport England guidance. As we near completion of this evidence side of work we will need to
move onto the strategy (the what do we do about it) element of the work. Amongst other
matters committee are asked in this report to consider how they may wish to progress matters.
It is also highlighted that there is a forthcoming report to the Cabinet of East Devon District
Council that will addresses matters and raises considerations around how the Council may
choose to be more pro-active in delivery of leisure and sporting services. The available
resources will impact on what the strategy should contain since any strategy should be
deliverable.

Is the proposed decision in accordance with:
Budget Yes X No [
Policy Framework Yes X No [
Recommendation:
1. That committee note the ongoing work on production of the Playing Pitch Strategy and

provide in principle support for the work to date and direction of travel.

2. That committee consider making a recommendation to the Cabinet meeting on the 27t
March 2024 regarding the role that the Council should play in the delivery and
enhancement of playing pitch provision in the district and the resources that should be
put in place to enable this work.

3. That committee note that following resolution on the Council’s role in delivering the new
Playing Pitch Strategy and the resourcing of this work, a strategy to address the issues
highlighted by the work will be developed with the sports governing bodies and clubs
and brought back to the committee as a final draft of the strategy in the summer.

Reason for recommendation:

To ensure Members of committee are aware of the emerging Playing Pitch Strategy and the
need, assuming the Council wishes to see better facilities, of Council actions, coordinated with
others, to see delivery of enhanced pitch provision.

page 148



Officer: Ed Freeman — Assistant Director, Planning Strategy and Development Management,
e-mail — efreeman@eastdevon.gov.uk, Tel 01395517519

Portfolio(s) (check which apply):

Climate Action and Emergency Response
Coast, Country and Environment

Council and Corporate Co-ordination
Democracy, Transparency and Communications
Economy and Assets

Finance

Strategic Planning

Sustainable Homes and Communities

Tourism, Sports, Leisure and Culture

Equalities impact Low Impact
Climate change Low Impact

Risk: Medium Risk;

Links to background information

Links to background documents are contained in the body of this report.

Link to Council Plan

Priorities (check which apply)

Better homes and communities for all
L1 A greener East Devon
L1 A resilient economy

1. An overview of sports planning and provision

1.1 The role of a Playing Pitch Strategy (PPS) is to understand the levels, quantities and
quality of existing playing pitches, compare this against current and projected future
levels of use, need and demand and to draw up actions to address requirements of the
future.

1.2 The Planning Policy section at East Devon District Council has taken the lead role in
production of this PPS. The new strategy will supersede an earlier strategy that was
completed in 2015 and the new strategy has been produced in collaboration with Sport
England and the following National Governing Bodies: (NGBs), at County/Regional
level:

e England and Wales Cricket Board
e England Hockey Board

e The Football Association

e The Lawn Tennis Association and
e Rugby Football Union.

page 149


mailto:efreeman@eastdevon.gov.uk
https://eastdevon.gov.uk/councilplan/

1.3

1.4

15

1.6

2.1

2.2

2.3

The Playing Pitch Strategy works with and is informed by the Council’'s adopted
Leisure Strategy and also sits alongside the Council’s Built Facilities Strategy.

In somewhat simplified terms the Built Facilities Strategy is concerned with sports that
are played indoors and the PPSis concerned with sports played outdoors. But of
course in reality some sports are and can be played at competitive level both indoors
and outdoors. This indoor/outdoor split applies even more so in respect of training
activity, non-competitive games and differing codes, formats or variations on the
mainstream sport.

It is highlighted that the PPS is primarily concerned with pitch and court needs,
demands and provision in respect of:

e cricket,

e hockey

o football

e rugby (Union) and

e tennis.

It is recognised that there are many other sports that are played outdoors in East
Devon, including, at higher participation levels, netball and bowls. But these other
sports, inline with common approaches taken to such work, are not addressed in any
depth inthe PPS. In subsequent council work there may be the desire to broaden
council thinking and work around such other outdoor sports. It is also recognised that
many spaces used for formal sports use can also provide for wider recreation and
amenity use (though noting some other uses, such as dog walking and associated
waste, can be directly incompatible with sports use). Also sports pitches can provide
aesthetically attractive green spaces.

The benefits of having an up-to-date PPS

An up-to-date PPS ensures that there is a good understanding of sporting activity and
of the challenges that currently exist in meeting the needs of clubs and the
opportunities to plan for the future.

The PPS is, therefore, a valuable tool to help understand where actions and activities
may be directed, what resources may be needed and how and why decisions may or
should be taken. It provides strong evidence to inform and justify the actions and
activities of the Council and wider partners.

Provision of sport facilities can often be very expensive and frequently will rely on
multi-agency partnership approaches to fund and deliver therm. A PPS should
provide a framework for agreeing and articulating such approaches and as such can
be instrumental in ensuring partnership funding of initiatives. This can be especially
important where funding bids are made to sport’'s governing bodies or third-party
sponsors and organisations to help finance proposals.

page 150



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

4.1

Sport England Guidance and the draft status of the PPS

Sport England has issued detailed guidance, drawn up in collaboration with sport
governing bodies, on the process for preparation of a PPS pps-guidance-october-
2013-updated.pdf (d1h1m5892gtkr7.cloudfront.net)

There are five stages of work set out:

e STAGE A — Prepare and tailor the approach

e STAGE B - Gather information and views on the supply of and demand for
provision

e STAGE C — Assess the supply and demand information and views

e STAGE D - Develop the strategy

e STAGE E - Deliver the strategy and keep it robust and up to date

This guidance has been followed in production of the East Devon PPS and we have
also drawn on the work and content of the existing PPS. We will also draw on
strategies of sport governing bodies in our work.

We have reached a point where Stages A, B and C (above) are nearing completion.
We have, therefore, developed a very good understanding of the pitch and tennis court
supply and quality issues across East Devon, clubs and teams that are using pitches,
demands that are placed on them and views of sports clubs and governing bodies.

We do not have agreement and ‘sign-off from the sport's governing bodies on
completion of Stages A, B and C, and the iterative nature of the PPS work is such that
these stages of work may be reviewed and updated as other work, Stages D and E,
progress. We do have, however, a robust body of evidence. As such we can now
tentatively consider approaches to strategy development and delivery (Stages D to E).

We would highlight that Stages D and E will need a body of work for completions but
from an East Devon District Council officer perspective and understanding there is an
emerging picture that we can present and this is set out in Appendix 1 to this
committee report that will help with theses stages. Please note that Appendix 1 refers
to terms and matters addressed throughout this report and as such should be read in
the context of full report content.

Developing the strategy and delivery (Stages D and E)

The Sports England guidance on PPS production is clear that the development of the
strategy (Stage D), which specifically includes “developing recommendations and (an)
action plan” needs to be undertaken in conjunction and agreement with sport
governing bodies. The PPS should be a document that has a wide level of support
and agreement and critically it needs to adopt a partnership approach to agreed
actions if itis to be supported, successful and lead to implementation.

page 151


https://d1h1m5892gtkr7.cloudfront.net/s3fs-public/pps-guidance-october-2013-updated.pdf?VersionId=afnAz9cYWu47InVNn_t3QCSem9.uRnwg
https://d1h1m5892gtkr7.cloudfront.net/s3fs-public/pps-guidance-october-2013-updated.pdf?VersionId=afnAz9cYWu47InVNn_t3QCSem9.uRnwg

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

5.1

5.2

5.3

Part of the partnership approach, if the PPS is to be meaningful, also needs to support
active involvement of East Devon District Council and this points towards differing
services and departments of the Council agreeing to and ‘buying into’
recommendations and actions.

The district Council owns and manages many of the pitches across East Devon,
though many are also owned, managed or operated by sports clubs themselves,
charities, parish councils and in some cases private bodies or other institutions or
organisations. It is stressed that the PPSis not just about District Council assets and
operations, far from it, the PPS is concerned about the provision of pitches that
provide public and community access regardless of who runs or operates them.

Part of the work, therefore, on strategy development will involve consideration of the
‘ownership’ (in its broadest definition) of pitches and their overall improvement and
enhancement.

The Sports England guidance on PPS production provides very clear guidance in
respect of three key terms when it comes to development and implementation of the
strategy, these are:

e Protect
e Enhance, and
e Provide.

These terms are referenced throughout the Sport England Guidance (see for example
pages 47 to 49 of their guidance). These terms are expanded on in the report
sections below with specific commentary around district council responsibilities and
general issues, understandings and challenges emerging from the PPS work to date.

Protect - Protection of existing pitches

Protection can be looked upon as not losing the sports pitches that we have now in the
district. The sport England guidance (para D6) states of “......the need to protect
playing pitch provision irrespective of ownership and the degree of community access
and use, along with unused sites and land allocated as a playing field in any relevant
development plan document.”

The protect element falls very much within the planning remit and role of the council.
Across England, and looking back over recent decades, there has been significant
accounts of reporting of playing fields being sold on and used for development, often
house building, without suitable replacement. Government policy has significantly
tightened in respect of this challenge and policy provision on protecting loss of sports
pitches is set out in existing and emerging local plan policy.

In East Devon we are aware that some losses of sports pitches have historically
occurred. Where possible losses would result from development being proposed the
Council has robust planning policy in place to resist such loss with policy provision to
seek replacement provision or equivalent where development may otherwise be

page 152



5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

6.1

6.2

appropriate. The very rare exception to this rule would be in exceptional cases where
it can be demonstrated that an over-provision of pitches may exist in a locality.

From the PPS work undertaken to date (Stages A to C) we do not see, however,
evidence that there is any kind of picture or pattern of over-provision (any exceptions
would therefore be very rare and unusual). In all of our towns, in particular,
assessment presents a general picture of pitches (including taking match play and
training into account) being in very high demand and frequently they are ‘over-played’.
Feedback received advises of clubs finding significant challenges in finding pitches to
play on and in many cases clubs report of inadequate facilities inhibiting the formation
of new teams and therefore limiting the ability of people to participate in sport — this is
especially so female participation.

In rural areas and villages the demand picture can vary slightly from towns. Levels of
pitch provision vary from some village locations that do not have any facilities, others
that may have little (perhaps a single cricket or football pitch) through to a few villages
that are well supplied (in quantity terms at least) with pitches. In this later case Feniton
is a good example of a village with good sports facilities, specifically for football and
cricket, that serve a local and wider need.

A non-development form of ‘loss’ with cases highlighted in the draft PPS is where a
landowner or manager cease to manage land for sports pitch use or ceases to make it
available for community use or activity. The draft PPS reports on some cases where
there may arguably be an over-supply consideration, a possible example being at
Clyst Hydon where there were historically two cricket pitches but assessment work
indicates one is no longer being maintained, this is a case where itis assumed that
the local community does not generate sufficient demand to warrant maintaining two
pitches.

There are, however, cases where landowners will cease to lease, rent or allow
community use of land and pitches that they control. Where there is no need for
planning permission, i.e. development is not proposed or occurring, there are typically
very few direct intervention powers that can be exercised to stop such losses
occurring. But where this happens, and particularly at extremes, it can have significant
impacts on availability of pitches in some localities.

Enhance — enhancement of the pitches that already exist

Enhancement is about improving the facilities we have and how they are managed.
The Sport England Guidance (para D8) states “.... recommendations and actions
should look to make the best use of existing provision ensuring better quality, access
and management.”

From a District Council perspective the enhancement side falls to services and

departments at the Council that are responsible for managing and maintaining sports

facilities and operating services that lease or rent pitches or courts that provide for

community access. This side of matters most naturally falls to pitches that are owned

by the Council or over which the Council has some form of lease or management role.
page 153



6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

7.1

7.2

However, there may be (greater) potential for the Council to look at partnership
arrangements more fully with third parties in respect of enhancement works
irrespective of ownership or control.

In respect of pitches overall it is critical, however, to reiterate that many pitches are not
owned or controlled by the District Council. Often such pitches will be maintained and
managed to very high standards by dedicated staff with limited resources.

Challenges around the enhancement of pitches are of fundamental concern. The PPS
work to date clearly shows that many pitches are played on and used for training
purposes to levels that are at and beyond carrying capacities. Overuse problems are
most pronounced in wet winter months when pitches can become unplayable and
matches need to be cancelled or postponed. Though disruption of cricket tells us that
it's not just a winter problem.

Enhancement of pitches through differing and better maintenance and management
can go some way towards accommodating and allowing for more use. However, such
works can be expensive and from a straight commercial perspective costs involved
may significantly exceed financial returns resulting, for example from any scope for
extra pitch rentals.

In respect of pitch use and impacts we specifically mention training because
competitive match play alone may not result in degrees of use or overuse that
necessarily warrant significant enhancement activity. The PPS assessment work
suggests that on the basis of match play alone most pitches are not overused,
notwithstanding the fact that under more sever weather conditions just about any pitch
can become unpayable. But clubs and teams do need to train and often it will be the
pitches they play matches on that form the only (or at least an important) venue for
training to take place. It can be the cumulative impact of match play and training that
is critical to overuse. Feedback indicates that many clubs struggle to find suitable
training venues.

Provide — Provision of new sports pitches and facilities

Providing is about new and extra pitch delivery. The Sport England guidance (para
D10) advises that PPS work “.... may suggest that alongside the enhancement of
existing provision new natural and/or artificial grass pitches are required to meet
current and/or future demand.”

In respect to provision of pitches alongside new development (for example big new
housing schemes) the planning service of the Council has a direct role. But where
provision is about addressing shortfalls that may exist at present the role of who may
or should lead on delivery from the District Council may fall across varying
departments. There is not, however, currently an overall lead department at the
Council with this remit, nor one therefore, that coordinates such Council activities. The
departments that this work does touch on such as Property and Estates and Leisure
do not have sufficient resources in either staff or capital funding to undertake this work

at present.
page 154



7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

The PPS work to date, noting a clear picture of need and under-provision in many
locations, and limitations on the degree to which existing pitch enhancement would
address shortfalls, demonstrates a demand and need for new pitches. This is no real
surprise and it was a concern highlighted inthe previous PPS dating back to 2015.
But providing new pitches is a significant challenge. Amongst concerns we would
highlight are:

a) Costs —new pitches can be expensive to provide — costs add up taking into
account land acquisition, gaining permissions/authority to develop, facilitating
and engineering works, laying out pitches, providing ancillary and supporting
facilities, etc and then there are running costs. And

b) Identifying suitable locations — from a planning and development perspective
there is a shortage of land that easily and naturally lends itself to new pitch
provision. Much of East Devon is hilly and as such not great for sports that
need flat pitches and also much land is of high environmental, heritage or other
sensitivity to development (including for sports pitches).

Whilst planning permission is required for any new sports pitch provision; delivery is
often most readily achieved where larger scale strategic development is proposed or is
occurring. Through legal powers (specifically Section 106 agreements) we can
negotiate provision of new facilities alongside development where that development is
of a scale or kind that generates sufficient need to warrant the extra provision.

At Cranbrook, as an extreme case for East Devon, where large scale housing
development is occurring there has been and will be delivery of new sports pitches
and (ideally) these should be proportionate in scale to meet the needs generated by
the growing population of the new town. Though an important planning matter to
highlight is that legal agreements in respect of planning permissions granted cannot
address matters of need that are not generated by the development in question.
Essentially we can’'t grant a planning permission for a development and ‘in return’ seek
provision to address an existing under provision of facilities.

Rather than provision on big development sites, what can be far more challenging, in
so far as planning powers go, is addressing the cumulative need for extra sports
facilities that lots of small-scale new developments might generate. Schemes for a
few new houses ‘here and there’ will individually generate minimal need but
collectively they may generate a need that is substantive. Whilst the collection of
Community Infrastructure Levy money can open potential to generate funds that can
be used for new pitch provision there are competing demands on what is a finite pot of
monies and also there are challenges more broadly around securing actual delivery.

We would highlight that the expectation may be that the final PPS will point towards
the need for bespoke assessment work being needed to determine appropriate levels
of pitch provision at the second new community in East Devon.

page 155



8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

The role and relevance of Artificial Grass Pitches and surface

To date much of this report relates directly to issues and considerations specifically or
mostly relevant to grass pitches. It is important, however, to highlight the importance of
artificial surfaces (i.e. non-grass surfaces) for outdoor sports use. Artificial Grass
Pitches (AGPs), sometimes referred to as Atrtificial Turf Pitches (or ATPSs), play a very
significant and increasingly important role in playing pitch provision and use.

AGPs mimic grass surfaces and have seen significant improvements over the years,
with new technologies and pitch types being developed. The PPS work records that
there are 11 AGPs in East Devon, though pitches at Bicton College, Exeter City
Football Club CIiff Hill Training Ground and the Commando training centre at
Lympstone have limited or nil community use accessibility. The other AGPs in East
Devon are located at or next to school sites and provide mixed school and community
use — as such they also have some limitations on community availability.

AGPs are also referenced in the Council's Leisure Strategy and Built Facilities
Strategy but we include them in the PPS, as well, as they are of significance for
outdoor pitch-based sports use (especially so for training). An important consideration
to be aware of in respect of AGPs is that they come in differing forms, primarily
determined by pile length (the rough equivalent to how short or long a grass may be
cut to on a grass pitch) and also the dressing type used (the material that sits around
and underneath the pile).

Differing AGP surface types have differing suitability for different sports. All
competitive hockey matches are now played on AGPs, though only short pile surfaces
are suitable. Competitive hockey in East Devon is played on AGPs in Sidmouth and
Ottery St Mary. On a compromise basis, and up to certain league levels, competitive
football matches can be played on short pile surfaces, but not rugby. Better for
football, and essential for rugby, is the need for longer pile surfaces, though these are
not acceptable for hockey. That said the PPS work shows that there are few football
and no rugby teams that play their home matches on AGPs. Specifically in the case of
rugby it is reported that there is a very clear resistance to the potential use of AGPs for
competitive match play.

Other than for hockey, where the AGPs are essential for outdoor match play use, the
key importance of AGPs is in respect of providing for training. All sports will seek to
make use of the AGPs for training purposes (and for many training activities the
surface type may be of limited importance). PPS feedback received reveals a picture
of demand for AGP use by sports teams exceeding supply and availability.

The provision of additional AGPs offer particular potential for enhancement of sports
pitch provision in East Devon. AGPs have the distinct advantage in that they do not
suffer from wear and tear in the same way that grass surfaces do and as such they
can accommodate much more use. However, they are expensive to install, do require
some maintenance and if the desire is to floodlight them (and as such offer extended
winter/dark month use) they can cause (additional) adverse neighbour and adverse
environmental impacts. Also, noting that different sports require different surfaces for

page 156



9.1

9.2

10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

match play purposes there is not a single surface that suits or is ideal for all and every
sport.

Tennis in East Devon

Tennis is worthy of important mention in that is also mostly played on artificial surfaces
though these differ from the mainstream AGP surface types. The PPS records a total
of 77 tennis courts in East Devon with 31 being outdoor floodlit courts, 39 outdoor unlit
courts plus a further 7 being indoor courts, also with artificial lighting. A limited
number are grass courts.

Some surfaces (and court areas) used for tennis do also support use for other sports.
There are, for example, netball courts overlaying tennis courts in East Devon.

The further development of the PPS and the Strategy and Action Plan

The stages ahead in terms of PPS production and completion are identified as:
o Completion of the evidence gathering and assessment — Stages A, B and C
o Developing the actual strategy — (the what is planned to be done about it
element of work) - Stage D, and
o Delivering the strategy and keeping it robust and up to date - STAGE E

Stages A, B and C, as already referenced in this report, are nearing completion.
Subject to data and information refinement (with limited extra information gathering),
referencing the extra material in the appended draft report, and potentially information
challenge and verification, it would be expected that this stage of work will be
completed at around Easter time.

With respect to Stage D of the work itis important to reiterate that the PPS should
have wide ranging ownership and endorsement, as such and as a minimum (outside
of East Devon District Council inputs and endorsement) this should include inputs
from, consideration by and approval of the sports governing bodies.

The intention is that there will be ongoing work with the sport governing bodies over
the coming weeks leading to conclusions around their inputs later in the Spring/by
early Summer.

This leaves a question, however, around if or how East Devon District Council, at both
a wider officer and Member level wishes to or should be involved with the strategy
aspect of PPS production. One option would be to simply report back to committee on
conclusions reached by the Sport Governing Bodies, through discussions with
Planning Policy officers at the Council. This work would (or could) then come to
committee with a recommendation that conclusions reached are endorsed and the
PPS should be endorsed and approved/adopted.

However, members of the council may wish to be (more) active or pro-active in
respect of the strategy side of production and be more directly involved in shaping and
page 157



10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

forming the strategy that is finally to be agreed. Should this be the view of Members,
or committee, then itwould be desirable for any debate to be shaped around the form
that such involvement should take (notwithstanding the fact that members should not
lose sight of the need for sport governing body endorsement and active involvement).
Members of committee may be aware of the role that the LED Monitoring Forum has
played in helping to shape aspects of Leisure Strategy planning and as such may see
this or a similar body or grouping as a way to further the strategy aspect of the PPS.

Whatever approach that committee may favour in respect of member input to PPS
work there is a need to consider overall timetables. The PPS has taken longer to get
to this stage than would be desirable. Work started pre-covid but the pandemic put
things on hold, we have then made solid but slow progress since. The aspirations is,
however, to draw to conclusions in a timely manner, this should certainly be before the
end of summer 2024 and ideally would be early summer. We need the PPS in place
to support the local plan through plan Examination.

With respect to Stage E - Delivering the strategy and keeping it robust and up to
date, this very much relates to a report that the Assistant Director for Leisure at the
Council is planning to take to Cabinet on the 27 March 2024. In this report issues of
overall delivery of leisure and sports services of and by the Council will be addressed
in detail with options set out for how the Council may seek to go forward into the
future.

It is important to note that the previous Playing Pitch Strategy and associated Exmouth
Sports Pitch Strategy and Honiton Sports Pitch Strategy all identified significant
projects to enhance provision across the district. These strategies are available at:
Open Space — Playing Pitch Strategy — East Devon.

In recommending these strategies to Members for adoption, in 2015 in the case of the
Playing Pitch Strategy and 2016 and 2017 for the Exmouth and Honiton specific
strategies, the need for additional resources to help deliver these strategies was
highlighted. It was always envisaged that the council would play a facilitating role in
the delivery of the Playing Pitch Strategy. This would be done in partnership with
sports bodies and clubs through co-ordinating funding bids, negotiating with
landowners and assisting with land acquisition and project delivery. Unfortunately,
resources were not found to undertake this work and so the actions of the previous
strategies remain undelivered. This has caused some frustration in recent times
particularly in Honiton and officers are concerned about developing a further strategy
to address these issues and the additional needs arising from the new strategy without
clarity about the role that Members see the Council playing and the resources that
would be committed to aid its delivery.

The new strategy needs to be deliverable, however itis acknowledged that this is not
a statutory area of work and given budget constraints the Council could legitimately
say that the resources needed simply do not exist. From a planning perspective it also
important to note that previous work highlights how land constraints particularly in
Honiton and Exmouth mean that there are no easy solutions and in some cases there
may be no solutions to some of the issues highlighted. Involvement in sport and

increasing activity levels generally is however vitally important to the health and
page 158


https://eastdevon.gov.uk/planning/planning-policy/environment-and-green-infrastructure/open-space/playing-pitch-strategy/

wellbeing of residents. With all of this in mind Members are asked to make a
recommendation to Cabinet that consideration be given to the role that the Council
wishes to take in the delivery and enhancement of playing pitches in the district and
the resourcing of this work. Once officers have clarity on these matters then a strategy
for addressing the issues highlighted in the work so far can be produced ensuring that
the Council’s role is made clear and the strategy is deliverable.

10.12 The PPS itself, after adoption, will need to be regularly updated. PPSs are deemed to
be out of date three years after approval and as such, and over time, any PPS will
carry diminishing weight and importance. Any debate on future update of the PPS
and much more importantly issues about its use and implementation should, however,
fall to Cabinet deliberation later in March 2024 and actions arising thereatfter.

Financial implications:

There are no direct financial implication resulting from the report, however the implementation
of the strategy could have financial implication the council must consider.

Legal implications:

There are no direct legal implications resulting from the report.

page 159



Appendix 1 —an emerging picture of sports pitch needs in East Devon

In this appendix we present an overview of emerging evidence on Sports Pitch needs in East
Devon drawn from the draft Playing Pitch Strategy work to date. It should be stressed that this
assessment is initial work only, it has been undertaken by officers of East Devon District
Council and has not been discussed with nor agreed with Sport England or sport governing
bodies or any other organisations. However, it does provide a guide to the demands that we
in East Devon face. The ‘we’ reference does and can mean East Devon District Council and
the Council actions but also it is a wider reference that will include Sport England, sport
governing bodies, sports clubs themselves and anyone else with an interest in or responsibility
for sports pitches.

The protection of existing pitches

The assessment work undertaken shows minimal evidence of an oversupply inany locality of
sports pitches. The only possible exceptions are in more remote locations where there may
be very good provision for a particular sport, perhaps multiple pitches where a local and wider
catchment population would not fully justify such provision. Therefore, there should be a
general presumption that existing sports pitches, and areas of land that may have been used
for sports in the past, even though not currently used or available, should be protected from
loss to alternative uses. The exception would be where loss, for example to built
development, will be offset by new provision of at least an equal but preferable better quality
and serving the need in its locality.

Seeking to avoid the loss of pitches where planning applications are proposing development
does not typically place an additional financial burden on the Council. Rather work would
typically be absorbed into regular running costs of the planning service. Though sometimes
additional work is required or specialist advise may need to be bought in. What can be more
challenging, however, is where the loss is a product of a landowner or manager not
maintaining an area of land for sports use or excluding the public from using it. There are a
number of former pitches in East Devon where this is the case and intervention actions
seeking to return them into public use and accessibility could become very expensive.

The enhancement of existing pitches

The work on the PPS has recorded wide ranging concerns around the quality of existing
pitches across East Devon. In dry and mild conditions pitches will frequently look good and
function well but in wet winter conditions even the best of pitches can suffer very badly from
use and become unplayable. The standard of pitches has been assessed through PPS work
and this standard informs ability to accommodate use.

Of the 70 football pitches categorised through assessment 33% were classed as Good, 54%
Standard and 13% Poor. Improving pitch quality, through enhancement work, offers scope to
accommodate many more matches and whilst just about all pitches might benefit from some

enhancements actions to raise the grading of many of the 67% that were graded Standard or
Poor could open up potential for more use — both match play and for training. Cricket pitches

page 160



tended to be more likely to be rated Good or Standard. Rugby pitches, of which there are
fewer are reported to be of variable quality.

A very common theme in engagement feedback was the overplaying of pitches. In some
cases assessment suggests it may be match play alone that leads to a pattern of overplay but
more typically it is a combination of match play and training that causes the most concerns
(and of course exacerbated by, if not directly resulting from, wet weather).

We have not sought to quantify how much could be spent on sports pitch enhancement but if
money were no object it’s clear that it could run into hundreds of thousands of pounds.
Facilities at sites are also of variable quality with lack of provision of facilities such as toilets,
holding back activity levels.

Theprovision of new pitches

The PPS work shows that there are areas where there is such a shortage of pitches that
enhancement work alone is very unlikely to address needs and as such new or extra provision
is a logical step, assuming the aspiration is to seek to meet needs. One of the fundamental
challenges is that matches are frequently played at the weekends, junior football matches for
example most typically on Saturday mornings and adult matches on Saturday afternoons.
Whilst some pitches may have spare carrying capacity spread across the whole week to
accommodate more matches they can only be used for one match at a time and it's at the
weekend, especially Saturdays, when demand peaks. It is at such times where the number of
existing (or more importantly potential teams) wanting to play at the same time can exceed the
pitches that exists.

Part of the solution to pitch deficiency can be the provision of new pitches. But finding suitable
sites can be challenging and actually building them can be very expensive. There is a general
picture of demand for new pitches in East Devon towns. In rural areas needs are more difficult
to quantify and qualify and in some cases some villages have good facilities and even some
smaller villages can be very well supplied (in quantity of pitch terms if not necessarily quality).

The rest of this appendix concentrates on need and demand issues specifically the main East
Devon Towns.

Demand for pitches by town location

Bearing in mind enhancement and especially provision considerations we set out below an
initial indicative review of pitch provision considerations by town location.

Axminster

AGP There is an AGP in Axminster that is not used for match play but is heavily
used for training sessions by football clubs, from within the town and
beyond. Feedback reports on challenges in finding suitable training slots to
book. The AGP is not suitable for hockey and there are no clubs in the town
or close by.

page 161



Football
pitches

There are two sets of grass football pitches in use in Axminster - Cloakham
Lawns and Axminster Town pitches. The former may have possible
capacity for some extra use, the latter has pitches that assessment shows
(especially taking any training use into account) are over-played. Axminster
Town have an area at their site for a new small format pitch but have not
built this. Provision would alleviate pressure to some degree on the pitches,
but any new pitch would be costly to provide.

Rugby
pitches

There are no rugby pitches or clubs in the town. Feedback suggests that it
is very unlikely that new rugby clubs will form. No pitch need is therefore
identified.

Cricket
pitches

There is one cricket pitch at Cloakham Lawns and space (now used for
football) where a second pitch used to exist. The one pitch was categorised
as Standard quality but it does accommodate a nhumber of teams. Given
that a second pitch is not maintained it is assumed unlikely that quantified
demand for extra pitches exists.

Tennis
courts

There are two tennis courts at the LED Leisure centre. Compared to other
towns this level of provision is low and there is potential need for extra court
provision.

General
observations

Generally, Axminster would appear reasonably well provided for sports
pitches. The AGP provides for club training though with feedback of over-
use/challenges for booking, with pressure from clubs using the facility from
surrounding areas.

Budleigh Salterton

AGP There is no AGP in Budleigh Salterton. No doubt provision would offer use
opportunities, though AGPs at Exmouth and Bicton College are relatively
close.

Football One adult and two junior pitches, at Budleigh Salterton FC, provide for

pitches football in the town. From just match play use the adult pitch is at or beyond
use capacity and any extra training use will worsen problems. It is likely that
there is a case for some additional football pitch provision in the town.

Rugby There are no rugby pitches or clubs in the town. Feedback suggests that it

pitches Is very unlikely that new rugby clubs will form. No pitch need is therefore
identified. There are two clubs in nearby Exmouth.

Cricket There are two new cricket pitches in Budleigh Salterton that support a large

pitches number of teams. In quantity pitch terms provision is good but there are
some supporting facility deficits and pitch quality is not yet established.

Tennis Budleigh Salterton Games Club (Tennis Section) provides a large number of

courts courts in the town.

General For a small town Budleigh Salterton appear reasonably well supplied with

observations

pitches. Additional (or at least enhanced) football pitch provision would be
likely to be looked upon favourably with pressure on existing facilities, but for
others sports, specifically cricket and tennis, overall provision is good.

page 162




Exmouth

AGP

There is full size AGP and a junior size AGP in Exmouth. The full size AGP
is suitable for hockey match play but there are no East Devon based teams
using the facility (two Exeter based teams make some use). The pitches are
widely used and in demand for training use and some junior football match
play. The Football Foundation have identified Exmouth as a priority location
for new AGP provision, recommending the replacement of a grass football
pitch at Exmouth United with a new AGP.

Football
pitches

There are arange of football pitches and Ex Dons have one team playing in
the town. The only other club supporting adult teams in in the town is
Exmouth United — though they do support a large number of teams at adult
and also junior level. In addition Brixington Blues also support a large
number of youth teams. A range of pitch sites are used by Exmouth clubs
with some teams travelling out of the towns to other locations for match play.
Given the size of the town football pitch provision is low and it is of some
surprise that the town supports only one significant club with adult teams.
The Warren View site would appear to be significantly over played, other
sites and pitches potentially less so. New pitches should be available inthe
near future at the former Rolle College, but these will still leave a deficient in
pitch availability. There is a strong case for extra football pitch provision in
Exmouith.

Rugby
pitches

There are two rugby clubs in Exmouth. They both support a range of adult
and junior teams, but do so on just three adult sized and one junior sized
pitch. The rugby pitches do not have sufficient capacity for training nor for
match play and all are overplayed. Match play overuse being exacerbated
by training use. A clear pitch deficient is identified in the town with both
clubs having a case for extra pitch provision.

Cricket
pitches

For a town of its size it is perhaps somewhat surprising that Exmouth is
home to just one cricket pitch. But pitch assessment reports a high-quality
facility and it supports a large number of adult and junior teams. The fact
that there is only one pitch in Exmouth may suggest a pitch deficient, given
the size of the town, but we do not have direct feedback calling for or
seeking more provision.

Tennis
courts

There are arange if indoor and outdoor tennis courts in Exmouth at various
sites. We do not have information that may indicate that there is an unmet
demand.

General
observations

Exmouth has real pressure on sports pitches specifically including for
football and rugby. Grass pitch numbers in the town are low compared to
the population size with real pressure on the pitches that do exist and clear
evidence of use on a number of pitches exceeding reasonable carrying
capacity. It is the East Devon town that would appear to see the greatest
need for extra pitch provision. A new AGP would alleviate pressures to
some degree but itis not clear whether overall it would be sufficient to
address need, especially so given that football and rugby have pitch deficits.

page 163




Honiton

AGP

There is currently no AGP in Honiton though the Football Foundation have
identified Honiton as a priority location for new AGP provision. There is an
overall demand for sports pitches in Honiton, from football, rugby and
hockey, that would justify provision but no single surface type would suit all
sports for higher standard match play purposes. There is one hockey club
based in Honiton who play home matches in Ottery St Mary and have
previously raised concerns about not having facilities in the town. We are
also aware of demands for football use and might expect the rugby club,
should a facility be available, seeking to use it for training purposes.

Football
pitches

Honiton Town adult FC support two teams playing on 2 adult pitches,
overmarking the cricket pitch at Mountbatten Park Sports & Social Club.
Drainage concerns are highlighted in survey work on what are recorded as
Standard quality pitches. Match play does not exceed capacity but
demands for training on the pitches are unknown. Honiton Town Youth are
recoded as supporting 13 teams playing at St Rita’s on what were recorded
as three marked out pitches — two recorded to be of Standard quality and
one Poor (though there may have been four in past seasons). The club
advise of insufficient capacity to accommodate the number of teams/players
that would want to play and also advise of lack of facilities, with this
adversely impacting on girl participation.

Rugby
pitches

There is one rugby club in Honiton playing with a large number of teams on
two pitches inthe town. The pitches have insufficient capacity to
accommodate training needs of the club (and they have marginal capacity to
accommodate the full match play needs). Taking into account match play
and training the pitches are understood to be overplayed. Drainage
concerns have been identified as a particular problem and concerns have
been raised around quality of changing rooms.

Cricket
pitches

Honiton Cricket club support five teams playing at the Mountbatten Park
Sports & Social Club. The cricket outfield is overlayed by two football
pitches and as well as this causing pitch quality concerns there can be
scheduling conflicts from overlapping seasons of play. Pitch quality was
assessed as being Good.

Tennis
courts

There are two outdoor tennis courts in Honiton atthe LED leisure centre,
these are overmarket by netball courts. We do not have information that
may indicate that there is an unmet demand though compared to other
towns, given the size of Honiton, court numbers are low.

General
observations

Honiton has been identified as having a pressure for youth football pitch
provision and it also noted that the rugby pitches are overplayed with a
particular lack of capacity for training use. There is a Honiton hockey club
but they have no AGP to play on in the town.

page 164




Ottery St Mary

AGP There is one AGP in Ottery St Mary located at the Kings School/LED leisure
centre. This AGP is used by both of the two Hockey Clubs located in East
Devon, for both match play and training. It is also reported to be heavily
used by other sports clubs, notably football teams, for training purposes.

Football Ottery St Mary Football Club supports 16 teams at youth and adult level all

pitches playing home matches on two adult and two junior pitches at Washbrook
Meadows. Adult pitches are reported to be of a good standard. There is
potentially some limited spare capacity from match play use but this would
not take into account any use and impacts arising from training.

Rugby There are no rugby clubs in Ottery St Mary.

pitches

Cricket Ottery St Mary Cricket Club supports 14 teams playing at what is reported

pitches as a busy ground of good quality.

Tennis There are five recorded outdoor tennis courts in Ottery St Mary. We do not

courts have information that would indicate that there is any an unmet demand.

General Ottery St Mary supports a wide range of sports and clubs on a decent

observations

supply of sports pitches and courts.

Seaton

AGP There is no AGP in Seaton but there is one at the nearby Colyton Grammar
School LED site. The Colyton LED is suitable for hockey use but supports
no hockey clubs. The AGP is, however, used by a range of other sports
clubs for training purposes. The Football Foundation have identified the
Seaton/Sidmouth area as a priority location for new small sized AGP
provision.

Football Seaton Town FC support three adult teams and a youth team playing at the

pitches single pitch Colyford Road site. This was recorded as a good pitch but with
tight margins. Match play at the pitch is close to capacity and any training
use may well result ina pitch that is overplayed. The club also support a
further seven youth teams playing at a single pitch site at Elizabeth Road
Recreation Ground.

Rugby There are no rugby clubs in Seaton.

pitches

Cricket Seaton Cricket and Lawn Tennis Club at Court Lane have a pitch that was

pitches rated as good though is playing at close to capacity. The club supports an
impressive 13 teams at adult and junior levels at this site.

Tennis There are eight tennis courts in Seaton. We do not have information to

courts indicate that there is an unmet demand and this is a comparatively high level
of provision at the town compared to other towns.

General Seaton would appear poorly provided for in respect of football pitches but

observations

tennis court provision is high, the cricket pitch is of good quality and the
Colyton AGP is relatively close by, but heavily booked.

page 165




Sidmouth

AGP

There is one AGP in Sidmouth that is suitable for and extensively used for
club hockey matches. The AGP supports training use for other sports. It is
not floodlit but there have been past proposals for floodlighting. See also
comments in respect of Seaton and small size additional AGP.

Football
pitches

Sidmouth Town Football Club supports 19 teams at adult and youth level.
They play on a range of pitches in Sidmouth and Sidford with adult games
played atthe Manstone Recreation Ground pitch which is rated as Good,
based just on match play it would appear to have some spare capacity.
Youth teams play at Byes Lane pitches at Sidford, St John's International
School and at the relatively close by settlement of Newton Poppleford, at
Back Lane. Balls Sport FC also play at Byes Lane and the football pitches
here would appear to offer some spare capacity for match play use.

Rugby
pitches

Sidmouth Rugby Football Club supports 17 teams at adult and youth level.
The Blackmore forms the main town centre pitch used by the club and they
also use two pitches Byes Lane in Sidford. The Sidford pitches are
overplayed for match use and these and The Blackmore will be exacerbated
by any training demands. Pitch maintenance and storage have been
highlighted as concerns. It should be noted that there is a third rugby pitch
at Sidford but there is no record of the levels of use made of this.

Cricket
pitches

Sidmouth Cricket Club support 17 cricket clubs at adult and youth levels.
They play at the Sidmouth Cricket Club Field that is rated as good.

Tennis
courts

Sidmouth (including Sidford) has 13 tennis courts which is a high nhumber
compared to other towns. We do not have information on unmet need and
given levels of provision this would appear unlikely.

General
observations

Sidmouth (including Sidford) has good overall sports facilities. As with other
towns supporting rugby clubs there is pressure on pitches but Sidmouth has
more pitches than other locations. The cricket pitch is well used and there is
very good tennis court provision. It is a town, however, where the football
team travels out of town for some youth football matches.

It should be noted that at Cranbrook pitch delivery is occurring alongside new development
and in this Appendix provision and use levels are not specifically commented on. There will
need to be bespoke work undertaken for the second new community that is planned for East

Devon.

page 166




	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the previous meeting
	7 Local Plan Timetable Update Report
	8 Consultation on Housing Sites
	2a. Housing sites report_Appendix 1_Site Selection v2

	9 Topic Paper relating to Town Centres, Retail and Sequential Test in the new Local Plan
	3a. Retail, Town Centres and Sequential Test topic paper- Appendix 1

	10 East Devon Playing Pitch Strategy

